China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
hEt X EEERBEIERBRAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (7B 22 &M Z BB R A 7))
(Stock Code i% {7 1t5%5: 00039)

Annual Report

2024




Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Management Discussion and Analysis

Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Biographies

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-Year Financial Summary

CONTENTS
B &%

Page
=F ¢
NEIE R 2
HMHBEE
EPEIERE &kl 5
TEEARABRSE 28
EEERE 51
BEEERE 55
%jV@%ﬁ% 66
BmkEMEEUARSE
74
REMBRRE 76
ReRmEER 78
SEESRER 79
B IRRMIEE 82
EE?I%%#E}EK 224

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2024 F1§

1



CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. JIANG Jiancheng (Chairman)
(Resigned on 28 January 2025)

Mr. LIU Xiaopeng (Vice-chairman)
(Appointed on 1 July 2024)

Mr. KE Xionghan

Mr. CHEN Chen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAO Wanjiang (Vice-chairman)
(Resigned on 9 August 2024)

Mr. LI Jin (Vice-chairman)
(Appointed on 9 August 2024)

Ms. HO Wing Yan

Mr. LI Dawei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa

Mr. YANG Yunguang

Mr. CHEN Zhifeng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Yunguang

Mr. CHEN Zhifeng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa (Chairman)
Mr. JIANG Jiancheng

(Resigned on 28 January 2025)
Mr. LIU Xiaopeng

(Appointed on 28 January 2025)
Mr. CHEN Zhifeng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. JIJANG Jiancheng (Chairman)
(Resigned on 28 January 2025)

Mr. LIU Xiaopeng (Chairman)
(Appointed on 28 January 2025)

Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa

Mr. CHEN Zhifeng

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric
(Resigned on 21 March 2025)
Ms. He Xiaoping
(Appointed on 1 April 2025)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024

E5g

BITES

TEMRSE (F/E)
(MR_BE_HE—B-+/N\B#MD

B NBB A (B E/E)
(MR-ZE_NEtH—HEZD

1] B e A

BRELE

JERITES

WEIIRE (B/1F/E)
(RZEZWENBABED

AT (5F/E)
MRZZEZEENBABEZD

EE S

EAEBIE

B ERITES

RRELE

S B E

PRES #2E4

B%EZEY

SRRELE (FE)

BELLE

PRES #2504

HNEEGE

RRERE (FF)

TR EE

MRZEZHAF—AZ+N\B#D
EUN s

RZE_HAFE—ABAZ+/ \HEZMD
PRES #2504

RHZEEY

TIRBMEE (F/E)
MRZE-_AFE—BZ+N\B&D

2l NBBRAE (F/E)
MR_BE_AE—B-+/ \BEZMDF

IREKIESLE

PRES #2504

NEIME

FRER R Ao
(MR-_BE_AFE=A-+—H&D

AN L4
(R_BE_AFEMNE—RHEZD)



AUDITOR
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube

8 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2880 5033

Facsimile: (852) 2880 5398

Website: http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinabeidahuang

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3

Building D, P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square

338 King’s Road, North Point

Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION/STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited : 00039

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Agricultural Bank of China Limited

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARAE

% 2hEm
@St EBFRARAT

SEMERE

P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

MMEERERETEE R ME

EENEE

JLEEE TR IERSR

BIS35218225=

g% 1(852) 2880 5033

{HE :(852) 2880 5398

3L < http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinabeidahuang

FERKDBRELE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3

Building D, P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110, Cayman Islands

ERARMBRERDE

BEELARAT

&

=)
B
JEA R 2783385
M 57 E 52
33123301-04%

TH

EHER RIS
ErMEaXZAERAT 00039

FEFRIRTT
BELEESRTARAF
PEEZERRITRMODBRAT
PREIEHRITRMODARAT
PREEXRITRDARAT
BERIRTROBRAF
EERRERIBTROBIRAE

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2024 F1§



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEEE

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
B &E F#ET FET
(&R &E5)
For the year ended 31 December HE+-BE=1+—~H
EFE
Continued operations: FrBREER
Revenue A 182,085 219,729
Loss for the year FEEE (28,097) (23,118)
Loss attributable to owners wmE ANELEE (25,548) (31,525)
Loss per share from continued FBREER 2 S REE
operations
Basic and diluted (in HK cents) BEARKEE (B (0.40) (0.50)
Discontinued operations: BARIEREET .
Loss for the year FEBHE (271,645) (145,588)
Loss attributable to owners B AELEE (270,260) (121,792)
Loss from continued and discontinued B R AR ILEE T
operations for the year FEEIB (299,742) (145,588)
Loss from continued and discontinued FF@8 R BEARILEEERF >
operations attributable to owners BEANFERGLER
for the year (295,808) (153,317)
Loss per share from continued and FENMERIRE R
discontinued operations SREE
Basic and diluted BARKE#E (4.60) (2.42)
Average shareholders’ equity TR R E DR 423,047 710,911
Average capital employed THBAER 512,695 818,561
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—H
Total indebtedness MBS 1 108,093 553,357
Shareholders’ equity AG Rt i 226,083 620,011
Capital employed FAER 2 310,785 714,606
Ratio Eb
Return on average capital employed S SE )= wNEIETES 3 (58.46%) (17.79%)
Return on average equity TR ElER = 4 (69.92%) (21.57%)
Total debt to total capital MERRABEEARLEE 5 31.15% 47.52%
Notes: Mk -
1) Total indebtedness = total interest bearing borrowings 1) BB = tEEEERE
2) Capital employed = shareholders’ funds + non-controlling 2) FABER = REEE + JEER#ER + B0
interests + non-current liabilities E=NE
3) Return on average capital employed = (loss)/profit for the 3) FHFPAEARRRE = £E (B8 &7
year/average capital employed S B AE A
4) Return on average equity = net (loss)/profit attributable to 4) THEDOHRE = A AENG (B18) i
owners/average shareholders’ equity AP R R
5) Total debt to total capital = debt/(shareholders’ funds + non- 5) WEEEEEARLER - 865,/ (REES +

controlling interests + debt)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2024 ("Year”), the
Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$182.09
million (2023 (restated): approximately HK$219.73 million),
representing a decrease of 17.13% from last year. Gross
profit of the Group was approximately HK$42.66 million
(2023 (restated): approximately HK$60.04 million). The loss
(net of tax) from continuing operation for the Year was
approximately HK$28.10 million (2023 (restated): loss (net of
tax) from continuing operation was approximately HK$23.12
million). The increase in loss (net of tax) from continuing
operation was mainly due to the decrease in revenue and
gross profit.

The Group will continue to control the costs and focus on
existing resources to further strengthen and grow the Group's
business both organically and through acquisitions when
appropriate opportunities arise. The Group considered the
business mix has been diversified during the past few years.
The Group will focus on the existing businesses and will
expand by self-development and investing in similar business.
Investments would be carefully selected among all the
choices we explore and would be operated with experienced
business partners.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Trading of Food Products Business

Trading of food products business recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$110.36 million (2023 (restated):
approximately HK$123.00 million) and accounted for
approximately 60.61% (2023 (restated): approximately
55.97%) of the total revenue. Gross profit of this business
segment for the Year was approximately HK$2.73 million
(2023 (restated): approximately HK$2.35 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R D

Rental Business

The rental business was engaged in the leasing of logistic
facilities in Hong Kong and office facilities in the PRC. This
business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$71.72
million (2023 (restated): approximately HK$96.73 million)
and accounted for approximately 39.39% (2023 (restated):
approximately 44.02%) of the total revenue. Gross profit
of this business segment for the Year was approximately
HK$7.65 million (2023 (restated): approximately HK$7.09
million). The decrease in revenue from rental business was
mainly because part of the tenancy agreements lapsed during
the Year. The Group has rental business in Hong Kong and
will keep on exploring and investing in potential renting
facilities.

Financial Leasing Business and Mineral Products
Business

The financial leasing business and the mineral products
business of the Company were conducted by its subsidiaries
namely Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan Financing Lease
Co., Ltd.* and Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi Trading Limited
respectively.

Reference is made to the Restructuring disclosed in the
section headed “DEBT RESTRUCTURING” and the circular
of the Company dated 24 July 2024 (the "Restructuring
Circular”). As mentioned in the Restructuring Circular,
Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan Financing Lease Co.,
Ltd.* and Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi Trading Limited*
were among the group of the Scheme Subsidiaries. The
Restructuring involved (among others) the Creditors’
Scheme, the terms of which included disposal of the Scheme
Subsidiaries. Upon the Creditors’ Scheme becoming effective
on 4 December 2024, the Group ceased to have any interest
in the Scheme Subsidiaries (and their respective wholly-
owned and non-wholly-owned subsidiaries). Accordingly, the
Scheme Subsidiaries (and their respective wholly-owned and
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries) ceased to be subsidiaries
of the Company and their financial results are no longer
consolidated in the Group’s results.

* For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group achieved a revenue of approximately HK$182.09
million (2023 (restated): approximately HK$219.73 million),
representing a decrease of 17.13% over last year. Gross
profit of the Group was approximately HK$42.66 million
(2023 (restated): approximately HK$60.04 million). The loss
(net of tax) from continuing operation for the Year was
approximately HK$28.10 million (2023 (restated): loss (net of
tax) from continuing operation was approximately HK$23.12
million.)

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$7.76 million (2023 (restated): approximately HK$8.03
million), representing a decrease of approximately 3.40%
from last year and approximately 4.26% (2023 (restated):
approximately 3.66%) of the Group’'s revenue. It was
relatively the same as last year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$41.55
million (2023 (restated): approximately HK$42.46 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 2.12% from
last year and approximately 22.82% (2023 (restated):
approximately 19.32%) of the Group’s revenue. It was
relatively the same as last year.

Finance Costs

Finance costs were approximately HK$7.31 million (2023
(restated): approximately HK$15.96 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 54.16% from last year and
approximately 4.02% (2023 (restated): approximately 7.26%)
of the Group’s total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R D

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
there were trade deposits of approximately HK$26.03 million
(31 December 2023: approximately HK$241.18 million) paid
for food products and mineral products and approximately
HK$22.18 million (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$24.18 million) was paid as rental deposit for the rental
business as at 31 December 2024.

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2024, the total number of issued shares
of the Company was 7,560,191,876 shares (31 December
2023: 6,332,312,083 shares). No share options were
exercised during the Year.

During the Year, the number of issued shares increased
by 1,227,879,793 shares. These new shares were issued
pursuant to the Restructuring as more particularly described
in the section headed “DEBT RESTRUCTURING” in this
Management Discussion and Analysis and the Restructuring
Circular.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had net assets to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$226.08 million
(31 December 2023: approximately HK$620.01 million).
Net current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2024
amounted to approximately HK$38.47 million (31 December
2023: net current asset of approximately HK$35.97 million).
The current ratio (calculated as current assets to current
liabilities) for the Year was approximately 0.71 (31 December
2023: approximately 1.03).

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
2024 amounted to approximately HK$10.64 million (31
December 2023: approximately HK$13.00 million), which
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's total bank and
other borrowings amounted to approximately HK$28.77
million (31 December 2023: approximately HK$441.65
million). All of the Group’s bank and other borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. As at 31
December 2023, included in bank and other borrowings
approximately HK$379.21 million was default payment for
other borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The bank loans, other borrowings and amounts due to
related parties are charged at fixed interest rates. The gearing
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2024 (calculated
as net debt divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company) was approximately 85.54% (31 December
2023: approximately 199.67%). The ratio was at reasonably
adequate level as at 31 December 2024. Having considered
the Group’s various measures, arrangements and current
unpledged cash and cash equivalents, bank and other
borrowings, banking facilities, possible fund raising and the
business operation income, the management believes that
the Group’s financial resources are sufficient for its day-to-day
operations. The Group did not use financial instruments for
financial hedging purposes during the Year.

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Fluctuations in Renminbi may impact the Group’s results
and net assets value as the Group's consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
treasury policy is to manage its foreign currency exposure
only when its potential financial impact is material to the
Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange position and, if necessary, utilize hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, investment properties with
fair value of approximately HK$284.84 million (31
December 2023: approximately HK$294.83 million) and
personal guarantee by a shareholder of the Company (the
“Shareholder”) and related parties were used to secure the
Group's bank borrowings and bills payable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R D

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to expand its existing businesses by
developing its core business segments. The Group will also
look for and invest in other potential businesses and related
profitable businesses.

Investment Cooperation Agreement

During the Year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
has entered into an investment cooperation agreement with
Yueyang Huamo Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)* (EfEECXEEAE LY (BEESE)),
Hunan Tianyufu Trading Co., Ltd.* GHEE X EBEBREA
B]), Hunan Taste Good Food Co., Ltd.* (HEHKEIEEE &
BFRA7), and Changsha Chenye Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd.* (ENVREEGEEEBRAT), collectively
referred to as (the “Business Partners”), in relation to the
establishment of a company, Hunan Magic Foods Technology
Company Limited* CHEEEAB RERBRAR) ("Magic
Foods"”) to manufacture and sales of 100,000 tons of konjac
semi-finished products and 10,000 tons of konjac snack
foods and ready-made foods per annum. The Business
Partners have extensive experience in the manufacturing and
sales of snack foods and ready-made foods sector.

Initially the main target market of Magic Foods is China, and
it may further expand into other countries in the future. The
Company believes that the konjac foods market has good
development prospects.

Further details about the above investment cooperation

agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 December 2024.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cooperation Framework Agreement

In view that the konjac foods market has good development
prospects and the manufacturing and sales of konjac powder,
konjac semi-finished products and konjac foods might
develop a continuing source of profit for the Group, on 13
December 2024, the Company entered into a cooperation
framework agreement (the “Agreement”) with Jiangcheng
Hani and Yi Autonomous County People’'s Government
(the “Jiangcheng County Government”), in relation to the
intensive processing project for imported konjac based on
equality, win-win cooperation, honesty and trustworthiness.
A subsidiary of the Group, Hunan Magic Foods Technology
Company Limited* (mEZEREEERAE)
("Magic Foods”), currently it is principally engaged in the
manufacturing of konjac semi-finished products and konjac
foods. The upstream is the processing industry of agricultural
and sideline products, and the downstream is food
manufacturers, brand operators and direct consumers. Magic
Foods purchases konjac powder for intensive processing and
manufactures konjac semi-finished products and konjac foods
and making profits by selling products. By entering into the
Agreement, the Company can reduce cost and achieve the
whole industrial chain of konjac, including planting, initial
processing, intensive processing and sales. The construction
of the new processing plant is mainly to process konjac into
konjac powder, and it will also indirectly expand the output of
other konjac related products.

Further information about the Agreement was disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 17 December
2024.

Proposed Acquisition of BOT Concession Project
Framework Agreement

On 13 January 2025 (after trading hours), the Company
entered into a framework agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Mr. Liu Qinghe (the “Potential Vendor”) (“First BOT
Announcement”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company
or one of its subsidiaries nominated as the potential
purchaser (the “Potential Purchaser”) intends to acquire, and
the Potential Vendor intends to dispose of, the entire issued
shares (the “Sale Shares”) of Huapan and Hao Resources Co.,
Ltd* (the "Target Company”) (the “Proposed Acquisition”).
To the best of the Directors’ knowledge after making all
reasonable enquiries, the Target Company and the Potential
Vendor are third parties independent of and not connected
with the Company and its connected persons.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R D

The Target Company is a company incorporated in Laos and
is principally engaged in investment and development. The
Target Company had acquired the BOT concession of the
“Laos Boten International Port Health and Animal and Plant
Inspection and Quarantine Center” by way of tender (the
"BOT Project”) in 2016. The scope of cooperation authorised
by the BOT Project covers all the administrative responsibilities
of international health, animal and plant inspection and
quarantine (including existing highway ports, and the entry
and exit ports set up for the roads, highways and railways
to be built in the future), as well as the corresponding right
for the toll, related real estate investment and income in
Boten area, Louang Namtha Province, Laos. According to
the BOT investment cooperation agreement signed with
the Louang Namtha Province Government of Laos, the
Target Company will jointly establish a project operation
company with the Louang Namtha Province Government
of Laos for an operation period of 90 years, during which
the Target Company can share 90% of the profits of the
project operating company and the Louang Namtha Province
Government of Laos can share 10% of the profits of the
project operating company every year after the completion
of the construction of the BOT Project. After the expiration
of the operation period, the BOT Project will be transferred
to the Louang Namtha Province Government of Laos for free.
Furthermore, according to the BOT investment cooperation
agreement, the investment and income of other real estate
such as commercial building, warehousing, logistics, and
supporting hotels derived from the BOT Project belongs
to the Target Company, and the Target Company can sell
and realize the real estate (including shops, residences,
warehouses, hotels, logistics real estate and other properties)
developed by the BOT Project or hold them for leasing and
investment purposes.

The consideration for the Proposed Acquisition (the
“Consideration”) shall be further negotiated between
the Company or the Potential Purchaser and the parties
to the Agreement agrees to use reasonable endeavors to
negotiate the terms and conditions of a sale and purchase
agreement (“Formal Agreement”) in relation to the Proposed
Acquisition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Potential Vendor has agreed that the Company and
the Potential Purchaser and their adviser(s) shall conduct a
business, financial and legal due diligence exercise on the
Target Company and is BOT concession, the properties and
construction in progress with a view to acquiring the Sales
Shares. The due diligence period will end on 28 February
2025 (or such later date as may be agreed in writing by the
parties to the Agreement).

The Potential Vendor further agreed not to enter into
negotiations, whether formal or informal, with any party
other than the Company or the Potential Purchaser
concerning the disposal of the Sale Shares or the sale or
transfer of the Properties, and the Potential Vendor shall
promptly notify the Company and the Potential Purchaser
of any inquiries by any third parties regarding the foregoing
during the period of 60 days from the date of the Agreement
(or such later date(s) as the parties to the Agreement may
agree in writing).

The Group has been exploring viable investment
opportunities from time to time to broaden its source
of revenue to ensure sustainable growth. The Directors
consider that it is in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole to enter into the Agreement to
explore the business of the Group.

The Proposed Acquisition, if materialized, will constitute
a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and
is subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and
Shareholders" approval requirements.

Should the Company enter into the Formal Agreement
or if there are any material developments with respect to
the Possible Acquisition, the Company will make further
announcement(s) in accordance with the Listing Rules as and
when appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R D

Proposed Acquisition of BOT Concession Project
Supplemental Agreement

On 28 February 2025, the Company and the Potential Vendor
entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) in relation to the Proposed Acquisition of the
BOT Concession Project (“Second BOT Announcement”).
Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement, the Parties agreed
to extend the due diligence period to (i) 30 March 2025, if
the Louang Namtha Province Government of Laos approves
that the BOT concession of the “Laos Boten International
Port Health, Animal and Plant Inspection and Quarantine
Center” is still legal and valid (the “Written Consent”)
on or before 15 March 2025; or (i) within 20 days from
the date of obtaining the Written Consent, if the Louang
Namtha Province Government of Laos approves that the BOT
concession of the “Laos Boten International Port Health,
Animal and Plant Inspection and Quarantine Center” is still
legal and valid after 15 March 2025. Save as disclosed in the
Second BOT Announcement, all other terms and conditions
of the Agreement remain unchanged. The Second BOT
Announcement is supplemental to and should be read in
conjunction with the First BOT Announcement.

Acquisition of Sales Shares of Hunan Tianyu Ecological
Agriculture Development Co., Ltd*

On 24 January 2025, Shenzhen Tianyu Magic Food
Technology Co., Ltd* (RYITmRBEKEREEBRA
&)) (an indirect subsidiary of the Company) as the Purchaser
and Yueyang Huayuyuan Trading Co., Ltd* (EBFZELIR
B HPRAB)as the Seller entered into the Agreement,
pursuant to which, among others, the Purchaser agreed
to purchase, and the Seller agreed to sell, the Sale Shares,
representing approximately 51% of the entire issued share
capital of Hunan Tianyu Ecological Agriculture Development
Co., Ltd* CHFEERXMEREXERAERAE) ("the Target
Company”) at Completion, for the Consideration of
RMB14,280,000 payable in cash, subject to the terms and
conditions of the Agreement ("“Proposed Acquisition”).

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Consideration was determined after arm’s-length
negotiations between the Seller and the Purchaser taking
into account, among others, (i) the unaudited net assets of
the Target Company as at 31 October 2024, (ii) the amount
of registered capital of the Target Company attributable to
the Sale Shares; and (iii) the prevailing business environment,
market situation and prospects in connection with the
operation of the Target Company.

The Proposed Acquisition is subject to satisfaction of certain
conditions precedents (“Conditions Precedents”). Subject to
the fulfilment of the Conditions Precedent, Completion shall
take place on the Completion Date. As at 24 January 2025,
the Target Company held subsidiaries, which all the issued
share capital held by the Target Company will be transferred
to the Previous Shareholders before the Completion. Upon
Completion, the Target Company will become an indirect
subsidiary of the Company and the results and net assets of
the Target Company will be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group. As at the date of this report, not all
the Conditions Precedents have been satisfied.

In the event that any of the Conditions Precedent is not
fulfilled on or prior to the Long Stop Date (being three (3)
months after the date of signing the Agreement or such later
date as the Purchaser and the Seller may agree in writing),
the Agreement shall become null and void and be of no
further effect whatsoever and all the obligations and liabilities
of the Purchaser and the Seller thereunder shall cease and
determine.

The Seller is a company incorporated in Mainland China
with limited liability and is principally engaged in investment
holding which is directly held as to 51% and 49% by Mr.
Liu Xiangrong and Mr. Liu Chi respectively. To the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, as at the date of this report, each of the
Seller and its ultimate beneficial owners is an Independent
Third Party.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R D

The Target Company is a company established in Mainland
China with limited liability on 3 November 2008, and has
a registered and paid-up capital of RMB20,000,000 as at
the date of the Agreement. Before the Completion of the
Proposed Acquisition, the Target Company is directly held
as to 70% and 30% by the Seller and the Partnership
respectively. The Target Company is principally engaged in
(i) processing and sales of agricultural and sideline products,
meat products (marinated meat products) and vegetable
products (pickles); and (ii) procurement, planting, storage and
sale of fresh vegetables, grain, oil crop and edible oil, etc. As
at the date of signing the Agreement, the Target Company
held the land use rights in relation to a piece of industrial
land in Yueyang, Hunan Province with an aggregate site area
of 16,388 square metres.

It is expected that the Target Company can generate a
stable and recurrent source of income to the Group. It also
strengthens the assets of the Group and enables the Group
to explore and widen its business prospect in Mainland
China.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that the terms of the Agreement including
the Consideration for the Proposed Acquisition are fair and
reasonable and are in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.

Further details about the Proposed Acquisition were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 27 January
2025.

Supply Contract

On 13 February 2025, a subsidiary of the Company, Hunan
Magic Foods Technology Company Limited* GHFEE A B
ERHE A RAT) (the “Magic Foods”) has entered into a
supply contract (the “Supply Contract”) with Hunan Busy
Ming Commercial Chain Co., Ltd.* CHEBISRIT R %£E
$HAEBRAE) (formerly known as “Hunan Snack Foods Busy
Commercial Co., Ltd.* CHEEZBRITHEEHERLA) "
(the “Snack Foods Busy"”). Pursuant to the Supply Contract,
Magic Foods will supply snack foods to Snack Foods Busy
with a contract term of one year. To the best of the Directors’
knowledge, after making all reasonable enquiries, Snack
Foods Busy is third party independent of and not connected
with the Company and its connected persons.

* For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Snack Foods Busy was established in Changsha City, Hunan
Province, China in 2017, which is a pre-packaged snack
brand service provider, through a combination of online and
offline sales model, to provide customers with all kinds of
snack foods, and it also provide franchise services. It is one
of the largest group in bulk sales of snack foods in China
and currently has over 7,500 stores across 13 provinces in
China, including Hunan, Jiangxi, Hubei, Guizhou, Guangxi,
Guangdong, Henan, Chongging, Yunnan, Sichuan, Shanxi,
Gansu and Anhui.

Further details about the Supply Contract were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 14 March 2025.

LITIGATIONS

(i) HCA 1867 of 2015
On 18 August 2015, the Company received a
writ of summons issued from the High Court of
Hong Kong (the “Writ") relating to a claim by Mr.
Qu Shuncai (“Mr. Qu”), a former Director of the
Company. Pursuant to the Writ, Mr. Qu claims against
the Company for the sum of HK$6,069,000 being
damages for the Company’s wrongful refusal of the
issue of 2,500,000 shares of the Company to him
upon his exercise of the share options. The trial was
heard before Judge from 8 December 2022 to 14
December 2022, and on 10 February 2023,
adjudicated by the Court that the Company shall pay
damages to the Plaintiff, assessed at HK$4,394,000,
and costs. The Company has decided to appeal against
the said judgment, and thus the Company filed a
Notice of Appeal on 6 March 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(i) HCA 1948 of 2019

On 24 October 2019, the Company received a writ
of summons (under HCA 1948 of 2019) issued on
behalf of Gemini Funds Limited for an order to direct
the Company to deliver up the share certificate of
5,000,000 (Bonus) Shares issued in January 2016
and damages to be assessed. The said Gemini
Funds Limited has also taken out an application for
summary judgment against the Company returnable
before a Master of the High Court on 9 April 2020.
The legal representative of the Company filed an
Acknowledgment of Service on 6 November 2019,
and the Company has filed a notice to the Court
to oppose the application by the said Plaintiff to
enter judgment against the Company. The hearing
was heard before a Judge on 21 January 2021 and
pursuant to the Judgement, the Company delivered up
the said share certificate to the Plaintiff on 24 March
2021. At the same time, the Company filed a Notice
to Appeal on 18 February 2021.

(i) CACV 71 of 2023
On 6 March 2023, the Company filed a Notice of
Appeal to the Court to appeal against the Judgment
of HCA 1867 of 2015 that the quantum of damages
be HK$2,944,000.00 only.

DEBT RESTRUCTURING

As discussed in the result announcement published by
the Company on 28 March 2024, in light of the current
liquidity constraints and financial challenges of the Company,
including the Petition dated on 10 January 2023, 27
January 2023 and 15 March 2023, the Company has been
working closely with its professional advisers and is using
its best endeavours to explore various options available
for restructuring the Company's debts (the “Proposed
Restructuring”), including but not limited to the restructuring
of debts by engaging with its creditors, other stakeholders
and potential investors and by way of a scheme of
arrangement in Hong Kong (the “Creditors’ Scheme”). The
Company will strive to engage in dialogues with creditors
of the Company (the “Creditors”) in order to facilitate
the implementation of a value preserving solution with all
relevant stakeholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company announced on 23 March 2023 that the
convening hearing in respect of the Creditors’ Scheme,
at which an order will be sought to convene the scheme
meeting for the purpose of considering and, if thought
fit, approving (with or without modification) the Creditors’
Scheme, was scheduled to be heard before the High Court
on 16 June 2023 (Hong Kong time). On 16 June 2023, it
was ordered that the convening hearing in respect of the
Creditors’ Scheme be adjourned before the Companies Judge
to a date to be fixed no later than 5 July 2023. On 20 June
2023, the High Court directed that the convening hearing in
respect of the Creditors’ Scheme be adjourned to be heard
before the Companies Judge on 31 July 2023. On 31 July
2023, it was ordered that the convening hearing in respect
of the Creditors’ Scheme be further adjourned to 18 August
2023.

At the hearing on 18 August 2023, the High Court granted
leave for the Company to convene a meeting of the Creditors
under the Creditors’ Scheme, with any adjournments as
may be appropriate, for the purpose of considering and,
if thought fit, approving (with or without modification)
the Creditors’ Scheme proposed to be made between the
Company and the Creditors pursuant to Sections 670, 671,
673 and 674 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). A hearing of the High Court for the
purpose of sanctioning the Creditors’ Scheme was scheduled
on 29 November 2023.

On 20 November 2023, the Scheme Meeting was convened
and held for the purpose of considering and, if thought
fit, approving (with or without modification) the Creditors’
Scheme proposed to be made between the Company and the
Creditors pursuant to Sections 670, 671, 673 and 674 of the
Companies Ordinance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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A total of 30 Scheme Creditors holding Voting Claims
(as defined in the Explanatory Statement of the Scheme
Document) in the aggregate principal amount together
with accrued and unpaid interest of HK$1,009,153,816.42
(representing 98.46% of the total value of outstanding
Voting Claims) attended and voted, in person or by
proxy, at the Scheme Meeting, with a total of 26 Scheme
Creditors holding Voting Claims in the aggregate principal
amount together with accrued and unpaid interest of
HK$946,353,267.75 (representing 92.33% of the total value
of outstanding Voting Claims voting at the meeting) voting
in favour of the Creditors’ Scheme. As such, the Creditors’
Scheme was approved by the requisite majorities of Scheme
Creditors.

On 29 November 2023, the Creditors’ Scheme was
sanctioned without modification by the High Court at the
Sanction Hearing. The Creditors’ Scheme has not become
effective, and the Company has yet to enter into the
Restructuring Agreement to supersede and replace the
legally-binding Term Sheet. The Creditors’ Scheme will not
become effective until (1) an office copy of the order of
the High Court sanctioning the Creditors’ Scheme (without
modification) is registered by the Registrar of Companies in
Hong Kong under Part 2 of the Companies Ordinance and (2)
the Initial Cash Payment in the amount of HK$45,000,000 is
received by the Scheme Company.

On 12 December 2023, an office copy of the order of the
High Court sanctioning the Creditors’ Scheme has been
delivered to the Companies Registry in Hong Kong for
registration.

The Creditors’ Scheme

The Creditors’ Scheme involves, among others, (i) the Scheme
Share Issue (under which the Company will allot and issue
377,879,793 Scheme Shares to the Scheme Creditors, or
in the case of any Scheme Creditor who has validly elected
to receive cash in lieu of the Scheme Shares that they
would otherwise be entitled to receive under the Creditors’
Scheme, to the Scheme Company for the benefit of such
Scheme Creditor); and (ii) the Disposal (under which Interests
in Scheme Subsidiaries will be disposed to the Scheme
Company).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Restructuring Agreement and the Subscription

On 25 January 2024, the Company and the Investor
entered into the Restructuring Agreement in respect of the
conditional Subscription by the Investor of 850,000,000
Subscription Shares at the Total Subscription Price of
HK$85,000,000, representing a Subscription Price of
HK$0.10 per Subscription Share. Upon the allotment
and issue of the Subscription Shares to the Investor,
the Subscription Shares shall in aggregate represent
approximately 11.24% of the Enlarged Issued Share Capital.

Appointment of Independent Financial Adviser

On 14 February 2024, Alpha Financial Group Limited, a
corporation licensed to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities)
and Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), was appointed as the Independent
Financial Adviser (“IFA”) to advise the Independent Board
Committee and the Independent Shareholders in respect
of the Subscription, the Disposal and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

Establishment of Independent Board Committee

An Independent Board Committee of the Company
("IBC") was appointed by the Board to advise Independent
Shareholders in connection with the Subscription and the
Disposal and the transactions contemplated thereunder.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R D

Restructuring EGM, Restructuring Circular and
Completion

The Subscription and the Scheme Share Issue are subject to,
among other things, the Independent Shareholders’ approval
at an extraordinary general meeting to be convened and
held for considering and approving, among other things,
transactions contemplated by the Proposed Restructuring
which requires Shareholders’ approval (the “Restructuring
EGM"). The Subscription Shares and the Scheme Shares in
accordance with the terms of the Creditors’ Scheme will
be allotted and issued under respective specific mandates
to be granted by the Independent Shareholders at the
Restructuring EGM. A circular (“Restructuring Circular”)
containing, among other things, (i) further details of the
Restructuring Agreement (including the issue of Subscription
Shares under Specific Mandate), the issue of Scheme Shares
under Specific Mandate, the Disposal, and the transactions
contemplated thereunder, (i) a letter of recommendation
from the Independent Board Committee to the Independent
Shareholders, (iii) a letter of advice from the Independent
Financial Adviser to the Independent Board Committee and
the Independent Shareholders, (iv) a notice convening the
Restructuring EGM, and (v) other information as required
under the Listing Rules, was expected to be despatched by
the Company to the Shareholders on or before 19 February
2024.

As additional time is required to prepare and finalise certain
information to be included in the Restructuring Circular,
the proposed date of despatch of the Restructuring Circular
was postponed from 19 February 2024 to 1 April 2024, and
then to 16 May 2024, 31 May 2024, 28 June 2024, and
31 July 2024. The Restructuring Circular was despatched to
the Shareholders on 24 July 2024 earlier than 31 July 2024,
where the Restructuring EGM was convened on 9 August
2024 according to the EGM Notice accompanied therein.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As disclosed in the Restructuring Circular, the Board takes
the view that the Proposed Restructuring pursuant to the
Restructuring Agreement is a strategic and realistic response
to the current market challenges which will enable the Group
to reach a settlement with its indebtedness in a formal and
orderly manner such that all of the Company’s indebtedness
and liabilities to the Creditors will be released and discharged
pursuant to the terms of the Creditors’ Scheme, which is
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole and which represents a good opportunity for the
injection of new investment into the Group, without which
the Company, as a holding entity and as disclosed above,
would be subject to an unsustainable financial situation and
would be at risk of insolvent liquidation, and the expected
returns to the Shareholders and Scheme Creditors would
likely be lower or become minimal. The proceeds from the
Subscription after settlement of the Creditors’ Scheme and
payment of professional fees and expenses for the Proposed
Restructuring will be retained as working capital for the
Group, which will improve the financial and liquidity position
of the Group.

Having considered the above, the Board is of the view that
the terms of the Restructuring Agreement are on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and the
entering into of the Restructuring Agreement is in the best
interest of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole.

Having considered the principal factors and reasons stated
in the letter from the IFA contained in the Restructuring
Circular, the IBC considers that the terms of the Subscription
and the Disposal are fair and reasonable so far as the
Independent Shareholders are concerned, the transactions
contemplated under the Subscription and the Disposal are
on normal commercial terms and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly,
IBC recommended the Independent Shareholders to vote in
favour of the resolution to be proposed at the Restructuring
EGM to approve the Subscription and the Disposal and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw R D

The IFA, taking into consideration of the above principal
factors and reasons, are of the opinion that the terms of the
Restructuring (including the Subscription, the Issue of Scheme
Shares and the Disposal) are on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable so far as the Company and the Independent
Shareholders are concerned and are in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly,
the IFA recommended the Independent Shareholders, as
well as the IBC to advise the Independent Shareholders, to
vote in favour of the relevant resolution(s) proposed at the
EGM thereby approving the Proposed Restructuring and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

At the Restructuring EGM, all proposed resolutions in relation
to (among other things) the Restructuring Agreement, the
Subscription, the grant of the Specific Mandate, the Scheme
Share Issue, the Disposal and the transactions contemplated
thereunder as set out in the EGM Notice were duly passed by
the Independent Shareholders.

Because of the postponement of the dispatch of the
Restructuring Circular as above mentioned, the Long Stop
Date for the satisfaction of the Conditions Precedent was
extended from 31 May 2024 to 31 July 2024 and then to
31 August 2024. As at 31 July 2024, save for Condition
Precedent (d), none of the Conditions Precedent has been
fulfilled.

As disclosed in the Restructuring Circular, Completion of the
subscription is subject to the Conditions Precedent being
satisfied (or waived, if applicable) on or before 31 August
2024, or such later date as the Company and the Investor
may agree in writing. As at 30 August 2024, Conditions
Precedent (a), (b), (c) and (d) were fulfilled.

The Company and the Investor entered into subsequent
separate agreements (“Extension Agreement(s)”) pursuant
to which the parties agreed to further extend the Long Stop
Date from 31 August 2024 to 30 September 2024, and
then to 31 October 2024, 15 November 2024, 29 November
2024 and 6 December 2024 respectively, and according
to the Extension Agreement dated 29 November 2024,
Completion shall be subject to the Conditions Precedent
being satisfied (or waived, if applicable) on or before 5:00
p.m. on 6 December 2024. On 4 December 2024, the Board
announced that the Proposed Restructuring was completed
on 4 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 4 December 2024 (the date of Completion), 850,000,000
Subscription Shares, representing approximately 11.24% of
the Enlarged Issued Share Capital were issued to the Investor
by the Company at HK$0.10 per Subscription Share pursuant
to the Restructuring Agreement. The Subscription Price of
HK$85,000,000 was then applied in the following manner:
(a) HK$45,000,000 was paid to the Scheme Company on 4
December 2024 and will be used, subject to the payment of
any Preferential Claims and the Scheme Costs, for the benefit
of the Scheme Creditors pursuant to the Creditors’ Scheme;
(b) HK$20,000,000 was used to offset against the Loan for
Restructuring Costs drawn by the Company; and (c) the
remaining (which was designated for general working capital
purpose of the Company) was fully utilized as working capital
of the Company by the end of 31 December 2024.

On Completion, (1) HK$45,000,000 out of the Subscription
Price was paid to the Scheme Company, namely Gain
North Limited EBEAE], (2) the Creditors’ Scheme
became effective, and (3) the Company allotted and issued
377,879,793 Scheme Shares, representing approximately
5.00% of the Enlarged Issued Share Capital as of 4
December 2024 to the Scheme Company on trust for the
benefit of the Scheme Creditors. The Scheme Shares will
either be transferred to the Scheme Creditors who are
entitled to and have validly elected to receive Scheme Shares
under the Creditors” Scheme, or they will be disposed of and
the cash proceeds from such disposal will be used to make
payments to the Scheme Creditors who elect to receive cash
in lieu of the Scheme Shares.

To effect the Disposal pursuant to the Creditors’ Scheme,
the Scheme Company and the Group entered into separate
transfer agreements (and supplemental agreements thereto)
for each Scheme Subsidiary that takes effect upon the
Creditors’ Scheme taking effect (the “Disposal Agreements”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to transfer 100% equity
interest in the Scheme Subsidiaries to the Scheme Company
at nil consideration.

Upon the Creditors’ Scheme becoming effective on 4
December 2024, the Group ceased to have any interest in
the Scheme Subsidiaries (and their respective wholly-owned
and non-wholly-owned subsidiaries). Accordingly, the Scheme
Subsidiaries (and their respective wholly-owned and non-
wholly-owned subsidiaries) had ceased to be subsidiaries of
the Company and their financial results were deconsolidated
from the Group’s results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERES SRR

The financial effects of the Disposal and the Restructuring
were fully disclosed in the Restructuring Circular and the
shareholding structure of the Company immediately upon

BT

completion of the Restructuring is depicted below:

HESEREHNUBRZE
ERE MEBEETHBRELTNRER

BEREHEBERE

Number of

Shares Approximate %
Shareholders B in & B BE49 %
Directors -
Jiang Jiancheng IR 27,868,000 0.37%
Ke Xionghan I3 10,120,000 0.13%
Chen Zhifeng PRES #2 900,000 0.01%
Yang Yunguang BE 900,000 0.01%
Ho Wing Yan (B3N 900,000 0.01%
Li Dawei EAME 40,000 0.00%
Substantial Shareholders FERE
The Investor (Note 1) BEHE (H:E1) 850,000,000 11.24%
Jiang Jianjun (Note 2) IEE (f5r2) 829,326,165 10.97%
Scheme Company &R A 377,879,793 5.00%
Public Shareholders A3
Beidahuang Business Group (HK) IEATEEER & 660,000,000 8.73%

International Trade Co., Limited EREZBRAE (IzE3)
(Note 3)

Chen Jiayi (Note 4) PREE (MIEE4) 33,440,000 0.44%
Other public shareholders H AR R 4,768,817,918 63.08%
Total H 7,560,191,876 100.00%
Notes: MisE -

The Investor is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Quijiang Fund, a sub-fund of CIS Fund, an open-ended fund
company incorporated in Hong Kong. CIS Securities Asset
Management, being the investment manager of CIS Fund
and designated sub-funds (including China Qujiang Fund),
shall be entitled to exercise, or refrain from the exercise
of, any voting or other rights attaching to the Subscription
Shares following Completion as CIS Securities Asset
Management shall in its absolute discretion think fit, subject
to any instructions given to CIS Securities Asset Management
by the directors of CIS Fund.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2. These 829,326,165 Shares comprise 807,366,165 Shares
beneficially owned by Mr. Jiang Jianjun, and 21,960,000
Shares beneficially owned by his spouse Ms. Li Zhuoxun.
Mr. Jiang Jianjun was a former Director who resigned as an
executive Director with effect from 14 June 2023.

3. Beidahuang Business Group (HK) International Trade Co.,
Limited has ceased to be a substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and is no longer
a connected person of the Company. Shares held by it will be
counted towards the public float of the Company.

4. These 33,440,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Mr.
Chen Jiayi, who is the father of Mr. Chen Chen, an executive
Director. Mr. Chen lJiayi is also a holder of Class D Shares in
CIS Fund, which sub-fund wholly owns the Investor.

5. Percentage figures are rounded to two decimal places, and
certain percentage figures included in the above table have
been subject to rounding adjustments. Accordingly, figures
shown as totals may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the
figures preceding them.

Further details of the Proposed Restructuring are disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 25 January 2024,
19 February 2024, 28 March 2024, 16 May 2024, 31 May
2024, 28 June 2024, 31 July 2024, 9 August 2024, 30
August 2024, 30 September 2024, 31 October 2024, 29
November 2024, 15 November 2024 and 4 December 2024
(the "Restructuring Announcements”) and the Restructuring
Circular dated 24 July 2024. Unless the context otherwise
requires, capitalized terms herein shall have the same
meanings as defined in the Restructuring Announcements
and the Restructuring Circular.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had approximately 45
(2023: approximately 147) employees in Hong Kong and
the PRC with total staff costs amounting to approximately
HK$5.77 million (2023 (restated): approximately HK$5.78
million). Remuneration of employees is offered at competitive
standards, generally structured with reference to market
terms and individual qualifications. The Company has
adopted the share option scheme aiming to provide
incentives to participants for their contributions to the
Group, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain quality
employees to serve the Group on a long-term basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company that shareholders can maximise their benefits
from good corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions set out in
Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year
ended 31 December 2024, except where otherwise stated in
this report.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate culture
focusing on customer first, reliable products and services, and
highest standard of business conducts, which is underpinned
by its objectives and values that enable employees across
the Group to thrive and meet their full potentials by acting
in a lawful, ethical and responsible manner that allows the
Company to deliver sustainable performance for long term
development and operate in a way that benefits society and
the environment.

The Company’s objectives and values serve as a guide
for employees’ conduct and behaviours, ensuring that
they are integrated throughout the Company's business
practices, workplace policies and practices and stakeholder
relationships.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. Daily operations and execution
are delegated to the management. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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(@) to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors
and employees; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) provide the Group with a wide range of expertise
and experience. Their participation in Board meetings bring
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interests and management
process, to ensure that the interests of all shareholders are
taken into account. The independent non-executive Directors
ensure that the Board accounts for the interests of all
shareholders and that all issues are considered in an objective
manner.

The Board believes that the balance between executive
and non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors in the best interests of
the Company and that the current Board size is adequate for
its present operations.

At 31 December 2024, the Board comprised four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Jiancheng (Chairman), Mr. Liu
Xiaopeng (Vice-chairman), Mr. Ke Xionghan and Mr. Chen
Chen; three non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Jin (Vice-
chairman), Ms. Ho Wing Yan and Mr. Li Dawei; and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chong Cha
Hwa, Mr. Yang Yunguang and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Biographical
details of the Directors are set out on pages 51 to 54 of this
annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
(i) at least three independent non-executive Directors under
Rule 3.10(1), and (ii) at least one of the independent non-
executive Directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10(2); During the period from 1 July
2024 to 27 January 2025, the Company failed to meet
the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules (which
requires that the independent non-executive directors
represent at least one-third of the board of directors)
following the appointment of Mr. Liu Xiaopeng as an
executive Director and a Vice-chairman of the Board with
effect from 1 July 2024. On 28 January 2025, Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng (“Mr. Jiang”) resigned as an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Board. Following Mr. Jiang’s resignation,
the ratio of the number of independent non-executive
Directors complied with the requirement of the minimum
one-third of the Board under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and considers them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has put in place mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. This
is achieved by giving Directors access to external independent
professional advice from legal advisers and auditor, as well
as their declaration of independence according to the Listing
Rules during the Year. The Board reviews the implementation
and effectiveness of the aforementioned mechanisms on an
annual basis.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other except
(where if any) as disclosed in the “Directors’ Biographies” of
this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company did not officially have a position of chief
executive officer since 24 June 2016. The Chairman of the
Board provides leadership to the Board to ensure that the
Board works effectively and all important issues are discussed
and dealt with in a timely manner. For the year ended 31
December 2024, Mr. Jiang Jiancheng was the Chairman of
the Board. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Group’s structure as business continues to grow and
develop in order to assess whether any changes, including
the appointment of a chief executive officer, are necessary.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid in the Articles of Association of the
Company. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the website
of the Company.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting. The non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors are appointed for specific term ranging
from two to three years.

Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of Association provides
that Directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the first
annual general meeting after their appointment, and shall be
eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee different aspects of
the Company’s affairs. The terms of reference of these
committees are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee since
2001. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Group’s financial statements, overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting, risk management and internal control systems,
and making recommendations to the Board. Meetings of the
Audit Committee shall be held at least twice a year.

At 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chong Cha
Hwa, Mr. Yang Yunguang and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Mr. Chong
Cha Hwa is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there were two
meetings held by the Audit Committee to (i) discuss auditing
and financial reporting matters, including review of the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023, and the unaudited financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2024 with recommendations to
the Board for approval; (i) review the independence of the
auditors; (iii) review and make recommendations to the Board
on the auditors’ re-appointment and remuneration; and (iv)
review the Group's risk management and internal control
systems.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’'s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy. No individual Director or any of his/her
associates is involved in decisions relating to his’/her own
remuneration. The remuneration of Directors is determined
by the Board by reference to his/her duties and responsibilities
with the Company, the Company’s remuneration policy and
the Remuneration Committee’s recommendation. In order to
align the interests of Directors, employees and consultants
with the Group, share options may be granted to Directors,
employees and consultants under the Company’s share
option scheme. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the model under code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee
shall be held at least once a year.
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At 31 December 2024, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one executive Director, namely Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng; and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chong Cha Hwa and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Mr.
Chong Cha Hwa is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there were three
meetings held by the Remuneration Committee to (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management; and
(ii) review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the new Director.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2024 are disclosed in notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment of Directors and Board
succession with reference to the board diversity policy and
the nomination policy of the Company. Meetings of the
Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

Selection Criteria: Selection of candidates will be based on
the Company’s Nomination Policy as well as the following
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board, having due regard to
the benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs
of the Board without focusing on a single diversity aspect.
The Board's composition will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report annually.
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Review: The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time. It will discuss any revisions
to the Board Diversity Policy and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the key selection criteria and
nomination procedures of the Nomination Committee in
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Nomination Criteria: In assessing the suitability of the
candidate to the Board regarding the appointment or re-
appointment of any existing Director(s), the Nomination
Committee will consider the following factors: the candidate’s
character, integrity and competent to act as Director,
skills, knowledge, and experience in the commercial and
professional fields which are relevant to the principal business
of the Group, availability to devote time and attention to the
Board; and with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy.

Nomination Procedures and Requirements: The Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting to invite nominations
of candidates from Directors (if any) or it may also nominate
candidates for its consideration. The Nomination Committee
shall use adequate due diligence in making recommendation
regarding the appointment or re-appointment of any existing
Director(s) for the Board's consideration and approval. The
procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a Director should follow the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director”. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting.

Review: The Nomination Committee will review the
Nomination Policy from time to time. It will discuss any
revisions to the Nomination Policy and make recommendation
to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee considered that the Board
has sufficient diverse expertise, particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and
human resources management, for the Company’s business.

At 31 December 2024, there was one female Director (non-
executive Director) and nine male directors (comprising four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors), which was about 10%
female representation of the Board. The Board targets to
maintain at least the current level of female representation
and will continue to take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified.
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As at 31 December 2024, more than 31% of the Group’s
workforce (including senior management) was female, with
only 1 senior management role being held by a female.
The table below summarizes the proportion of women at
different position levels across the Group as at 31 December
2024.
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general. The Board will continue to explore opportunities to
increase the proportion of female Board members and female
staff across the Group’s workforce over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified.

At 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Jiang Jiancheng,
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there were three
meetings held by the Nomination Committee to (i) review the
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors with
reference to the requirements under the Listing Rules; (iii)
nominate the retiring Directors for re-election at the annual
general meeting held on 28 June 2024, (iv) review the Board
Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy; and (v) nominate
the proposed candidates for appointment to the Board.

The Directors’ attendance at the above committees’ meetings
held in 2024 is set out in the section headed “Meetings and
Directors’ Attendance” below.
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MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, there were five regular
Board meetings held by the Directors to (i) review and
discuss the matters relating to the Group’s development
strategies, investment projects, business operations and
financial performance, and (i) approve the annual results for
2023 and the interim results for 2024. Under code provision
C.5.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should
be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. During the Year, certain regular Board
meetings were convened with less than 14 days’ notice to
enable the Directors to react timely and make expeditious
decisions in respect of transactions which were of significance
to the Group’s business. As a result, the aforesaid regular
Board meetings were held with a shorter notice period than
required with no objection by the Directors. The Board will do
its endeavours to meet the requirement of this code provision
in future. In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman of
the Board met with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors.

The Chairman leads the role in setting the agenda for
meetings. Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board
committees with appropriate details are open to all Directors
for inspection.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain
independent professional advisers if necessary. They also have
unrestricted access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or Director arise, the matter is discussed in a
physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent non-executive Directors with no
conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, follow all the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings
for committee meetings.

Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board
committees’ meetings and general meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out as follows:
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Attendance/Eligible to attend

HERY/ AERLEERY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting
BERZEE  HMWZEe R4ZEE
Name of directors B2ty - 6 6 83 RREEXE RRBIKE
Executive Directors HITEZ
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TRMEE 5/5 - 33 33 10 10
Mr. Liu Xiaopeng® 2 BEEe i - - - 000 0
Mr. Ke Xionghan fEBLE 5/5 - - - 10 11
Mr. Chen Chen BELE 55 - - - Wi Wi
Non-executive Directors FHATEE
Mr. Zhao Wanjiang® HETLEY bk} - - - 0/ 0/
Mr. Li Jin® Tt 112 - - - 000 000
Ms. Ho Wing Yan (Gl 5/5 - - - 10 11
Mr. Li Dawei FRERE 2/5 - - - 0N 0N
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRERE 5/5 Wy 33 33 10 10
Mr. Yang Yunguang BREREE 5/5 i - - Wi 0
M. Chen Zhifeng BB 555 n 33 33 " "
= The Director is not a committee member. - ZESNIFEEEME -
Notes: MI5E
(a) Mr. Liu Xiaopeng was appointed as an executive Director and (a) ZNEEER ST _MELtA—HESFT

a Vice-chairman of the Board on 1 July 2024.
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(b) Mr. Zhao Wanjiang resigned as a non-executive Director and
a Vice-chairman of the Board on 9 August 2024.

(©) Mr. Li Jin was appointed as a non-executive Director and a
Vice-chairman of the Board on 9 August 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Mr. Liu Xiaopeng, who was appointed as an executive
Director and Vice-chairman on 1 July 2024, and Mr. Li Jin,
who was appointed as a non-executive Director and Vice-
chairman on 9 August 2024, obtained the legal advice
referred to in Rule 3.09D, and both of them had confirmed
that they are fully aware of their responsibilities and
obligations as Directors under the Listing Rules and the
relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has provided relevant
materials published by professional bodies or regulators to
the Directors to keep them abreast of the latest development
of legal, regulatory and corporate governance. The Company
has also devised a training record in order to assist the
Directors to record the training they have undertaken and
they are requested to provide a training record to the
Company.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the REBEAABGREZLF EETNHEZST
training that the Directors received for the year ended 31 “HE+ZA=+—HIEFEEZ 25
December 2024 is summarized as follows: MmN

Attending seminars/
conferences/courses/
readings relevant to
the business,
corporate governance
or directors’ duties

SHBERMER-
TCHEEARESTHEZ
FEXE g
Name of directors EEN4 =2 RERRAMN
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng” IR TE”
Mr. Liu Xiaopeng eI b v
Mr. Ke Xionghan i3 e v
Mr. Chen Chen =S v
Non-executive Directors FEPITESE
Mr. Zhao Wanjiang” MEIIfE
Mr. Li Jin FHEE 4
Ms. Ho Wing Yan CE/qnn v
Mr. Li Dawei FREERE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIFPITEE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa SRRESLE v
Mr. Yang Yunguang WBEATE v
Mr. Chen Zhifeng FRES #2500 v

Under code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should
provide a record of the training they received to the issuer.
The Company did not receive the training record for the year
ended 31 December 2024 from Mr. Zhao Wanjiang and Mr.
Jiang lJiancheng, who resigned from the Board on 9 August
2024 and 28 January 2025 respectively.

RBEEEATNZFRMFCEC .45
FMEEERBUERSETXRE UER
o 58 37 LA 58 e % AE 0 U0 1) 54T 3R fit
PREZEINNLCEHR ARAB L EZEHSE
ARERIRMAEBE S _ME+—
B=+—HUEEEZEIILHR  BHEDH
KT _MFENRBANBKRZE_HF—H
“HN\HBREEFERS-

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2024 F1§

39



40

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code on ethics and securities
transactions (the “Code"”), which incorporates a code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company are also subject to the
compliance with the Code. Having made specific enquiry
of all existing Directors, the Company confirms that the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Code and the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2024.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

EFEZEAFTRS
KABERM—IBEBEREFRZ T (T
)  ERHIERESFETESRZ Z1T
TR HIERIL AR EHRAIET EH
BTANEFETIEFIZHRETR (TR%E
SR REZRE-BIREERARBTRLHA
REMZEERETABTTR KERAMA
RAEEFFHREERR AR EEIES
REE_SE_NF+_A=+—HLEFER
—HETTRIAMRETRIEEZRE-



DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced
assessment of the Group's performance and prospects. The
Directors also acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. As detailed in note 2.2 to
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2024 (“Note 2.2"), the Group’s financial
position as at 31 December 2024 indicates the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. In
view of such condition, the management of the Group (the
“Management”) has considered carefully the Group’s current
liquidity, performance and available sources of financing
in assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Management has also taken or will continue
to implement the plans and measures as detailed in Note
2.2 to mitigate the Group’s liquidity pressure and to improve
the conditions of its cash flow. Based on the presumption
of successful and continued implementation of these plans
and measures and the Group’s cash flow projections which
cover a period of twelve months from 31 December 2024,
the Management and the Directors are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient working capital for a period of not
less than 12 months from 31 December 2024, and hence it
is appropriate to prepare the Group's consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Management
and Directors are of the view that the Group will, based on
the action plans and measures devised, have sufficient cash
resources to satisfy future working capital and other financing
requirements as and when they fall due for the period of not
less than twelve months from 31 December 2024.
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In respect of the plans and measures proposed to be taken
by the Management and the Directors to improve the
Group’s liquidity as set out in Note 2.2, the Management
is of the view that the Company has a reasonable prospect
of successfully implementing these actions because (i)
while the Company is not aware of any intention of the
banks to request early repayment of the borrowings, the
Management is confident that the Group can, through
proactive negotiation with the bankers, take advantage of
the much improved financial position (compared with last
year) which resulted from the successful implementation of
the Restructuring in December 2024, to secure necessary
facilities to meet the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the near future; (ii) the related party has
already undertaken to continue to provide its financial
support to the Group within the next 12 months from the
date of this report; and (iii) the Group has restored to a
better operational and financial status after the Restructuring,
which is in turn expected to enhance the Group's capability
to explore more business opportunities whether through
new business development or acquisitions to attain profitable
and positive cash flow operation, with continuous effective
control of the Group’s costs.

After considering the Management’s rationale and
explanations, the Directors and the Audit Committee are
satisfied with the Management’s views, action plans and
measures and concurred with the Management that it is
appropriate to prepare the Company’s consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. Save as disclosed above
and in Note 2.2, for the purpose of the Company’s financial
year ended 31 December 2024, the Board was not aware
of any other events or conditions that might cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to these
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 71 to 73 of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the
outcome of plans and measures disclosed in Note 2.2, which
are subject to successful implementation.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

N2 2P EEE RESHEIUNRER
EERBESNAERERMS  EEER
WMERNBBEGENMEMINERZFTE
HABOHBEAATLAMEBRITEEMER
RABEERNEER BEEBAREL &
“ETNE+BRNETEMRR SEE
AEBRRTRIBES  MBAERBREN
RSO (R RFARLL) - FTESPRERREE > MU
BAREERTARKRNEEES KM BT
KBRS BAGER A3k S B HAE St R 2R12
BRRNEERRERRHEMBIR ; Rii)E
HE ~EENEEAMBRANEMEER
ERF BRI B AEEBBMET LR
HWBIEREZSHMAIE S LUEREM K
ERTRANES ARFEAMMMERAE
B AYRY 7S ©

KESEEENERABRER EFNEX
ZEEHEEENRER - THF 8 RERE
TaE RS EEERAUFELEER
MUARNBGREMBREDBETR KL
XK MizE2 2FA I BBE N A RBBEE
TME+ZA=+—HLEYHREEMS &
EETANENEHNAERFEEEZES
BREXREBZEREMEAIARDR -

ZEBEHZSEVMHRRARKEZESEHNE
FRENEVBEZBIUZHEIRERN

REVBRREEIRFECENERLGRR
HAEXMIEBURI M52 2P 1 BB B 51 8 K 5 7
WAER > =S et B RIE TR AR N B I



AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited, in respect of their audit services provided to the
Group was HK$1,600,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and Objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management
and internal control systems are designed for managing
risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and the management has to ensure
the effectiveness of these systems.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities of each level of the structure are summarized
below:

The Board is responsible to determine the business strategies
and obijectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines
the nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives; ensures that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems; and oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems.
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Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to
perform its responsibilities of risk management and internal
control systems; overseeing the Group'’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis; reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually, and such review should
cover all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance control, as well as the process for the
identification, evaluation and management of significant
risks (including ESG risks) faced by the Group; ensuring the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget for the Group'’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, as well
as those relating to the Company's ESG performance
and reporting; and considering major findings on risk
management and internal control matters, and reports and
makes recommendations to the Board.

The senior management designs, implements and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; identifies, evaluates and manages the risk
that may potentially impact the major processes of the
operations; monitors risk and take measures to mitigate risk
in the day-to-day operations; gives prompt responses to and
follow up the findings on risk management and internal
control matters raised by the internal auditor or external
risk management and internal control adviser; and provides
confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Internal auditor is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems; and reports to the Audit Committee on the
findings of the review and makes recommendations to the
Board and management to improve the material systems
deficiencies or control weaknesses identified.
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The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and considers them effective and
adequate, save that the Company has not had a Financial
Controller in overseeing the Group's finance and accounting
function since September 2022. On 28 October 2024, the
Company appointed the new Financial Controller with the
right qualification and experience to oversee the Group’s
financial reporting and internal control and risk management
functions.

Risk Management Process

In addition to the Board’s responsibilities, the Company has
developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks and to resolve material internal
control defects. Senior management is responsible for the
annual risk reporting process. Internal auditor will meet with
various members of the senior management to review and
assess risks and discuss solutions to address material internal
control defects, including any changes relevant to a given
year. Risks are compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation
plans are documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by
certain members of senior management and presented to the
Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management
based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the
Company’s financial results; (ii) the probability that the risk
will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which a risk could
occur.
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Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the
risks as follows:

o Risk elimination — senior management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

° Risk mitigation — senior management may implement
a risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or the severity of the risk to an
acceptable level.

o Risk retention — senior management may decide that
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable
for the Company and that no action is required. The
risk would continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk does
not increase to an unacceptable level.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the
internal auditor who reports directly to the Audit Committee.
Internal auditor plays an important part in the assessment
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

The internal auditor conducts internal reviews on material
controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are
identified and communicated with operations management
to address an issue, non-compliance or deficiencies identified.
The internal auditor monitors the implementation of his
recommendations by operations management and reports
the outcomes to the Audit Committee.
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The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and
dissemination of inside information under the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has a set of procedures
and controls in place to preserve the confidentiality of inside
information relating to the Group. All Board members and
senior management, who are likely to possess the Group’s
inside information because of their offices or employments
in the Group, are required to follow the guidelines of the
code of conduct and the staff handbook to keep unpublished
inside information strictly confidential.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
Secretary of the Company was Mr. Chan Kwong Leung,
Eric (“Mr. Chan”), who was engaged and appointed by
the Company from an external secretarial services provider
and his primary corporate contact person at the Company
was Mr. Chan Siu Fung, the Vice General Manager of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr.
Chan has complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under code provision F1.1 of the CG Code, the issuer
should have a policy on payment of dividends and should
disclose it in the annual report. As the Company is still in its
development phase and the performance will continue to
be impacted by the relevant industry and economic outlook
in the foreseeable future, the Board is of the opinion that it
is not appropriate to adopt a dividend policy at this stage.
The Board will review the Company’s status periodically and
consider to adopt a dividend policy if and when appropriate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any two or more shareholders (including a
recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s))) holding, as
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, on a
one vote per share basis, in the share capital of the Company
can deposit a written request at the head office and principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room
225, 2/F, Mega Cube, 8 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or
Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary general
meeting ("EGM").

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in
accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules
and the Company’s Articles of Association. In the event that
the request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition,
the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

ARERZ R
BRRREFIARERIELHERZER

BEBEARBEBERZMAIE721R EAWHG
FUERR (BEERTEER (HEAR%
M) IR RE2EBAEREHARERFRER
RAXRBWERFAINAATDRRAGE
RZBEREF DR +D2Z— (BER—FMN
BE) I EREZHAEREARB ZBMER
REBEBZERME GhutHEBNENEEE
I ESTR R RIF218225%) » ERARKR
BFRIRE (RERAE)) FBHEBHEARE
ES=LIYNSIEIE L

KRBRAERRBZEBRNBRELDE
ZEERER THEAMERBSERE
ER MEBREFTERRRRFIARE I
BE LB RAKRAQAEERERMRFTER
ERMAZMRREL DB - HERH
EXRZEAE  AARRERENEGERG
RMAREFEREBERBARRS A
R e

NEFEEEXREXEHES21BR KB
IRedRRRFIARE IIZLNZE
EREBRATHRKFEPEEZEERERA
THRRRABBFHZEMAL FJEITRE
EedRERBER ErEEND 28R
RRFINAG BNEERZERZFABEE
KREXBHEF=ZERERERT BHEX
EXRATHESFERAEARAGTEMBRZE
HEEER RAARAREBEEERERA L.



Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of the Board or Company
Secretary via the followings:

Address :  Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube,
8 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax © (852) 2880 5398

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2024.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant
information to shareholders in a timely manner. The
Company also recognises that people other than
shareholders, such as potential investors and the investment
community generally may have an interest in information
about the Company.
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Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to shareholders
and the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. All
the shareholders of the Company are given not less than 21
days' notice of the date and venue of the annual general
meeting of the Company. The Company complied with the
requirements concerning voting by poll under the Listing
Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed
at general meeting are voted separately.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and notices of general meetings, as well as the terms of
reference of Board committees are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the shareholders’ communication policy including steps
taken at the general meetings, the handling of queries
received (if any) and the multiple channels of communication
and engagement in place, and considered that the policy has
been properly implemented during the Year and is effective.
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The directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. LIU Xiaopeng, aged 61, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and a Vice-chairman
of the Board in July 2024. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Liu is currently a director
of an international trading company in China. He has been
engaged in international import and export trading business
for more than 30 years, and has many years of extensive
experience in marketing and management.

Mr. KE Xionghan, aged 60, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in June 2016. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ke graduated
from the Department of Law of Huazhong University of
Science and Technology. He is the president of Shenzhen
Tiantianwang Taige Technology Co. Ltd.* (IR KL
B AERAT), a company mainly engaged in the import
and export business of electronic products and mineral
products. Mr. Ke was the general manager of Indonesia
Huaming Yang International Trading Company* (ENJE ZBE[5
EPR & 5 /A E)) and worked in the Bank of China, Zhanjiang
Branch for over 20 years, during which period, he served as
the section chief of Retail Business Department, Company
Business Department and Credit Management Department as
well as the president of the sub-branch.

Mr. CHEN Chen, aged 25, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in September 2021. He graduated
from Wuhan Sports University (E0£88 B 2 %) majoring in
sport training. Mr. Chen is currently working in Dongguan
Junjing Hardware Products Company Limited* GRET B =
FERRBERAR).

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. LI Jin, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company and a Vice-chairman of the Board
in August 2024. He currently is the secretary of the party
committee and a director of Beidahuang Grain Logistics
Co., Ltd* JEAFRBYRAERAE), the secretary of the
party committee and a director of Heilongjiang Nongken
Beidahuang Logistics Group Co., Ltd* (B IEEIEAR
YR EBARAT), and a director of Beidahuang Business
Group (HK) International Trade Co., Limited (”Beidahuang
HK"). Mr. Li graduated from the College of Economics and
Trade of Heilongjiang Bayi Agricultural University (2&81
N—REZEAE), majoring in Agricultural Economics and
Management.

Ms. HO Wing Yan, aged 43, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company in April 2015. She holds
a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in Applied
Economics from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
Degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University
of Hong Kong (currently known as Hong Kong Metropolitan
University). Ms. Ho is an Associate Member of both The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (“HKCGI") and
The Chartered Governance Institute. She is also a holder
of the Practitioner’s Endorsement issued by HKCGI. Ms.
Ho is a director of BMI Listed Corporate Services Limited
and is responsible for managing the business operations of
the company secretarial and administrative services for the
reputable listed groups in various industries. She has extensive
experience in a diversified range of professional corporate
services for Hong Kong and offshore companies from various
business sectors. Ms. Ho particularly specializes in corporate
governance advisory, corporate restructuring, corporate
financing and directors’ professional development with
emphasis on listed companies and she continues to advise
on these matters on a consultancy basis. Ms. Ho actively
participates in the formulation and execution of strategy at
the companies. She has been providing practical professional
services to companies listed on the Main Board and GEM of
the Stock Exchange for over 15 years. Ms. Ho currently serves
as a non-executive director of Silkwave Inc, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
and as an independent non-executive director of Solowin
Holdings, the shares of which are listed on the Nasdag in the
United States.

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. LI Dawei, aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company in January 2022. He graduated from
Mineral Processing and Utilization Engineering Department of
Coal Chemical Technology, Heilongjiang Mining Institute (£
B IBREERBYMNMIANAIRRZBELECIIEER). Mr
Li is a senior accountant. He is currently the general manager
of Tianjin Dahuang Electronic Commerce Co., Limited* (<
BATMBTFEFBRAT)and a senior management of the
member companies of Beidahuang HK.

Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
December 2018. He is also a member of the nomination
committee, the chairman of each of the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chong is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants. He holds a bachelor degree of management
with honours from the University of Science, Malaysia.
Mr. Chong has more than 20 years of experience in the
accounting and finance area servicing private and publicly
listed companies in Hong Kong and the Southern Asia region.
He currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of Solowin Holdings, the shares of which are listed on the
Nasdagq in the United States. Mr. Chong was an independent
non-executive director of Sino Energy International Holdings
Group Limited from March 2021 to October 2022, the shares
of which were delisted from the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 16 December 2022. He was an
executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(currently known as Wuxi Life International Holdings Group
Limited) from October 2020 to April 2021, the shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. YANG Yunguang, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in July
2018. He is also a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Yang holds a Master's Degree in National
Economics from Northwest University. He has served as senior
management positions of insurance companies in the PRC
since 1989. Mr. Yang has over 30 years of experience in the
financial industry and corporate management.

Mr. CHEN Zhifeng, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in May
2021. He is also a member of each of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Chen graduated from Zhanjiang Ocean
University (currently known as Guangdong Ocean University)
majoring in Business English. He is currently a manager of
Shenzhen Qianhai Badi Industrial Company Limited* &Il
mAE N \MEEERAT). Mr. Chen has over 9 years of
experience in property leasing and management in the PRC.

*  For identification purposes only
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 74 to
223.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the Year.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 224. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 27 of
this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the Year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial Highlights on page 4 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2024, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$Nil, representing
the share premium account of the Company of approximately
HK$1,662,112,000 million less the accumulated losses as
at 31 December 2024 of approximately HK$1,568,655,000
million. Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands (as
amended), the share premium account of the Company is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium account may also be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, sales attributable
to the largest customer of the Group amounted to
approximately 15% of the total sales and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 39% of the Group’s
total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, purchases
attributable to the largest supplier of the Group amounted to
approximately 43% of the total purchases and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for 52% of the Group’s
total purchases.
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None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. JIJANG Jiancheng (Chairman) (resigned on 28 January 2025)

Mr. LIU Xiaopeng (Vice-chairman)(appointed on 1 July 2024)

Mr. KE Xionghan
Mr. CHEN Chen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAO Wanjiang
(Vice-chairman)

Mr. LI Jin (Vice-chairman)

(resigned on 9 August 2024)
(appointed on 9 August 2024)

Ms. HO Wing Yan
Mr. LI Dawei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa

Mr. YANG Yunguang

Mr. CHEN Zhifeng

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Liu Xiaopeng and Mr. Li Jin will retire and
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Li Dawei, Mr. Chong Cha Hwa and Mr.
Yang Yunguang will retire by rotation and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 51 to 54 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party subsisted at any time during the
Year or at the end of the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s

Name of directors Capacity and nature of interest shares held issued shares
(E VNG
2#1Tkinz
Bt B kEDZEE FERMHE BAEaL
M. Jiang Jiancheng Beneficial owner 27,868,000 0.369%
IRMEE BalEBA
Mr. Ke Xionghan Beneficial owner 10,796,000 0.143%
a3 b BmEBA
Mr. Chen Zhifeng Beneficial owner 900,000 0.012%
PR #EEE BR#EBA
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Beneficial owner 900,000 0.012%
sk + Bm#EBA
Mr. Yang Yunguang Beneficial owner 900,000 0.012%
BETE EHEEA
Mr. Li Dawei Beneficial owner 40,000 0.001%
FARBRE BmEAA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none M EXFIEEEIIN R _E_WE+_A

of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’

INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the following interests in shares
of 5% or more of the issued shares of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position:

5 g

FERRREMATRROPZ Em

MR TENE+"HA=+—H UFEZ
NEBBITRMHS5%IU EIBD 7 HFE B iR
RARBIRIERF R ABERGIFE3I36EBTF
ENELAMA

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held  issued shares
VNS
B&1TRirzZ
Wi, BE B kiEmEEE FERiHEE MO
Jiang Jianjun Beneficial owner 840,716,165 11.12%
IRE BmEE A
Interest of spouse 21,960,000@ 0.29%
FofdtEm
Li Zhuoxun Interest of spouse 840,716,165® 11.12%
BB [y e
Beneficial owner 21,960,000 0.29%
BamEEA
China Dynamic (Hong Kong) Limited Beneficial owner 850,000,000 11.24%
% (&%) BRAR BB A
CIS Fund OFC - China Qujiang Fund Interest of controlled corporation 850,000,000 11.24%
REREE RS
CIS Securities Asset Management Limited Investment manager 850,000,000 11.24%
|ELZESBEEERERAH RELE
Beidahuang Business Group (HK) International Beneficial owner 660,000,000 8.73%
Trade Co., Limited (“Beidahuang HK")
TAFHEER (B8 BREZERAT B A
(HEXRFREH)
Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Business Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000 8.73%
Trade Liability Group Co., Ltd*
(“Beidahuang Business Group”)
BRIRELATHEEREREEAT REREE RS
(MR EER))
Beidahuang Agribusiness Group Co., Ltd* Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000 8.73%

("Beidahuang Group”)
TARREERBERAE (EAFER))

*  For identification purposes only
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Notes:

These 21,960,000 shares were held by Ms. Li Zhuoxun, the
spouse of Mr. Jiang Jianjun. Mr. Jiang Jianjun was therefore
deemed to be interested in the 21,960,000 shares held by
Ms. Li Zhuoxun by virtue of the SFO.

These 840,716,165 shares were held by Mr. Jiang Jianjun,
the spouse of Ms. Li Zhuoxun. Ms. Li Zhuoxun was therefore
deemed to be interested in the 840,716,165 shares held by
Mr. Jiang Jianjun by virtue of the SFO.

China Dynamic (Hong Kong) Limited is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is a
wholly owned subsidiary of China Qujiang Fund, a sub-
fund of CIS Fund OFC, an open-ended fund company
incorporated in Hong Kong. CIS Securities Asset
Management Limited, being the investment manager of
CIS Fund OFC and designated sub-funds (including China
Quijiang Fund), shall be entitled to exercise, or refrain from
the exercise of, any voting or other rights attaching to the
subscription shares following completion of the Restructuring
as CIS Securities Asset Management Limited shall in its
absolute discretion think fit, subject to any instructions given
to CIS Securities Asset Management Limited by the directors
of CIS Fund OFC.

These 660,000,000 shares were held by Beidahuang HK,
which was wholly owned by Beidahuang Business Group
which in turn was wholly owned by Beidahuang Group.
Accordingly, each of Beidahuang Business Group and
Beidahuang Group was deemed to be interested in the
660,000,000 shares held by Beidahuang HK by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no person,
other than the directors of the Company whose interests are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2017
Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June 2017
(the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the 2017 Scheme is
to provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Group. The 2017 Scheme, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
the Adoption Date. Further details of the 2017 Scheme are
disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27
June 2022, the scheme mandate limit for the 2017 Scheme
was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders
to allow the Company to grant share options entitling
holders thereof to subscribe for up to 622,512,568 shares,
representing approximately 8.23% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report.

The number of share options available for grant under the
scheme mandate limit of the 2017 Scheme as at 1 January
2024 and 31 December 2024 was both 622,512,568.

During the Year, 399,754,000 share options were lapsed, and
no share options were granted, exercised or cancelled under
the 2017 Scheme. As at 31 December 2024, there were no
outstanding share options under the 2017 Scheme.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

Rt 5T &
BE-—EBER_Z—tERANE (TRH
Hl)) BB ZRER A RERA— E%k%ﬁ
B (T2t &F58) —E—tEHEEE
HASERFEERRTERESSEEN o
ZEERSHEANTRHEERREIR FRIFS
TEUCHREHES] SR ZF—t F5t8#
REXRMERESHI0OFR—EEM -BRAZ
T—tFHEZE—TFRREESUHTRE
Pt EE34P9 ¥ B8

NRZEZZFRXBZ+EtHEGTZARE
BREBFAG L —T—tEFFE8 28K
T PR RE AR T8 3 3 JE S B 2 PR SR - U ET
ARNBARHEFEFEARMNIBERS
622,512,568 1D 2 R  HENRAAQE
RAREBIRE TN AI8.23% ©

m:;:m&—%—a&:;:m¢+:ﬁ
—t—H REBE_ZSE—tEtE st 2
@ﬁ?h&ﬁz%k%%@ﬁ%&zmzws
5o

FR RIBEZZE—tF58)399,754,00017
%&%E%ﬂ.ﬁmm%k%%ﬁﬁ 171858
HH R ZWOFE+ZA=+—H =&
—t FF BB TR RITERNERE



The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options granted under the 2017 Scheme during the
Year:

Number of share options
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TEREBEFATSATRE-_ZT-—LFEHERK
2z BREREE)

fERiEHE
Exercise
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At price of
Name or category 1 January during during during during 31 December Date of grant of  Exercise period of share
of participants 2024 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2024 share options share options options
i
® —EomE
ZEImE +ZA fAlRiE
SHRERLNLER —A-B FREH FRTHE FRFEH FREHY =+-B BRERHBH ERETES I8
HK$
per share
sRET
Director
F
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
RRERE
Other Employees
HitES
In aggregate 1,854,000 - - - (1,854,000) - 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
@5t
Consultants
R
In aggregate 397,000,000 - - - (397,000,000) - 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
st
399,754,000 = = - (399,754,000 -

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2024 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the directors or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Company conducted the Subscription
and the Disposal of the Scheme Subsidiaries under the
Restructuring, details of which were disclosed in the section
headed “DEBT RESTRUCTURING” in the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report and the Circular
of the Company dated 24 July 2024. These transactions
constituted connected transactions for the Company and are
subject to the reporting, announcement and the Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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The Subscription and Disposal of the Scheme Subsidiaries
were disclosed by way of an announcement of the Company
dated 25 January 2024 and approved by the Independent
Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 9 August 2024.

Continuing Connected Transactions
During the Year, there was no continuing connected
transactions of the Company subsisted.

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements fell under the definition
of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements, where
applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’'s total number of issued shares was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At 31 December 2024, none of the directors was interested
in any business, apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the paragraph titled “Share Option
Scheme” on page 62 of this report, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
Details of the discussion on the environmental policies and
performance of the Company are set out in the standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies according to industry benchmark as well
as the individual performance of employees. Share options
are granted to retain loyal employees with the aim to form a
professional staff and management team that can bring the
Group to different levels of success.
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The Group encourages its staff to participate in external
seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and
updates on areas of legal, compliance, financial accounting
and reporting, and market industry practices. Through these
types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors and employees to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills which includes
seminars and workshops, updates on regulatory requirements
and development and corporate governance practices.

The Group also strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment to the employees.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

RELIEF FROM TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the shares of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by directors and other officers of the
Group is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 December 2024.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Xiaopeng
Vice-chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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B st E B TA RN
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

To the shareholders of China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 74 to 223, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Material uncertainties relating to the going concern

basis

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
incurred a loss for the year from continuing operation of
approximately HK$28,097,000 and as of that date, the
Group had net current liabilities of HK$38,467,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the next twelve months, after taking into account the
following plans and measures:

(a)

The Group has classified bank borrowings
amounting to approximately HK$22,093,000 with
scheduled repayment dates that were more than
12 months from the end of the reporting period
but contain a repayment on demand clause as
current liabilities at 31 December 2024. Based on
the latest communication with the banks and taking
into account the security provided to the bank,
the Directors are not aware of any intention of the
banks to require early repayment of the borrowings.
Moreover, the Group is in the process of negotiating
with its bankers to secure necessary facilities to meet
the Group's working capital and financial requirements
in the near future.

We have obtained a waiver of amount due to related
party amounting to approximately HK$10,291,000 in
which the related party has agreed not to repay the
amount due to within the next 12 months from the
date of this report; and

The Group continues to monitor capital expenditure
to balance and relieve cash resource to support the
operations and take action to tighten cost controls
over various operating expenses and is actively seeking
new investment and business opportunities with
an aim to attain profitable and positive cash flow
operations.
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The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
cash flow projections which cover a period of twelve months
from 31 December 2024. The directors are of the opinion
that, taking into account the plans and measures as stated
above, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within twelve months from 31
December 2024. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist
as to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and
measures as described above. Whether the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group's ability to generate adequate financing and operating
cash flows in the near future.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned
plans and measures and operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter
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described in the “Material uncertainties relating to the going
concern basis” section, we have determined the matters to

be communicated in our report.

Valuation of investment properties

REMEME

Management has estimated the fair value of the
Group's investment properties to be approximately
HK$284,840,000 as at 31 December 2024, with net
loss in fair value for the year ended 31 December 2024
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$1,750,000.

N _E_NFE+_A=+—H > EEBEMLst E&E
BEMEZ ANELN#284,840,0008T BHEZE
“ME+ZA=+—HIEFEEst ALEBm REHAM
EEBARTZ A NEFEELN 1,750,000 7T

Independent external valuations were obtained in order
to support management's estimates. The valuations
are dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement, including market
unit value of comparable properties, market rental and
assuming the properties are capable of being sold in
the existing status.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
determination of the valuation of the investment
properties included:

RAMEEEEERBEVELEETZEFEE

o Evaluation of the independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
LB LERZERE ENREEN ;

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts; and
RBHRMEEEITEZNH R ERRMMGL
BEEZ NEAEARTEZRERRRESN
=4

o Checking, on sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.
HWEREMRBZHASE £ 2186
Mo

We found the key assumptions in valuation were
supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the
"Other Information”). Our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements does not cover the Other Information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
toward or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
BAAZEENIRS

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Kwok Tsz Chun.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Tsz Chun
Practising Certificate number: PO6901

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
LERmAkHMEEBARR

Year ended 31 December 2024

BE-T-MET A= T—BILEE

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FTET FHET
(restated)
(e E5)
Continuing operations: RRBEEER
Revenue A 5 182,085 219,729
Cost of sales FIER=0N (139,426) (159,686)
Gross profit EF 42,659 60,043
Other income, gains or losses HMKRA -~ IR &8 6 (4,828) 1,901
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBAX (7.760) (8,033)
Administrative expenses THAX (41,553) (42,455)
(Loss)/profit from operation & (B548) /a A (11,482) 11,456
Net allowance of expected credit losses TREEEEERHEREE (1,873) (22)
Finance costs (%N 9 (7.314) (15,956)
Share of loss of associates pak(uY: = UNCI)- 5= 21 (10,230) (17,593)
Loss before taxation BRI AIES 18 7 (30,899) (22,115)
Income tax credit/(expense) FTSMEE ) 12 2,802 (1,003)
Loss for the year from continuing FRELEEBZ
operations FEBE (28,097) (23,118)
Discontinued operations: BRIEREER .
Loss for the period/year from BRIEREER
discontinued operations HE/ FEHE 8 (271,645) (122,470)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBE (299,742) (145,588)
Other comprehensive expense Hth2EMAX
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently E&FIsEEHNEEERE
to profit or loss: ZIEE .
Release of exchange differences upon HE B A B FFE
disposal of subsidiaries [EREE (205,031) -
Exchange differences arising on translation % /9N 55 K B
of foreign operations and associates NEEEZERETE (16,695) (28,809)
Total comprehensive expense FEXHMAZEE
for the year (521,468) (174,397)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meiRmKkEMEEBRARE

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE_E_NME+_B=1+—HLEE

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 FTHET FAET
(restated)
(K E7)
Loss for the year attributable to: THEEEERIE
Owners of the Company ERBEBA
— Loss from continuing operations —FEEEEH B8 (25,548) (31,525)
~ Loss from discontinued operations —BRIEKEEH
518 (270,260) (121,792)
(295,808) (153,317)
Non-controlling interests FEER R S
— (Loss)/profit from continuing —FREEER 2
operations (B518) /& A (2,549) 8,407
— Loss from discontinued operations —BRIEREER
B518 (1,385) (678)
(299,742) (145,588)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FHIELEERE
attributable to: B51R48%E
Owners of the Company ERBEEA
— Loss from continuing operations —FEEEEH 218 (33,674) (41,450)
— Loss from discontinued operations —BRIEREER
518 (483,042) (140,351)
(516,716) (181,801)
Non-controlling interests FEER S
— (Loss)/profit from continuing —FEREER
operations (B518) /&F (3.333) 8,319
— Loss from discontinued operations —BRIEKEEH
E518 (1,419) (915)
(521,468) (174,397)
Loss per share for loss from continuing ZARXFHEE AEGIFER
operations attributable to the EEBRGEZSKRER
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (in HK cents) EAXRRE#E (B 14 (0.40) (0.50)
Loss per share for loss from continuing AT EHE AEGIFER
and discontinued operations BRIEREEEGEY
attributable to the owners of the gk
Company
Basic and diluted (in HK cents) BARRAEE CB) 14 (4.60) (2.42)

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIk RER
31 December 2024
—ETMFE+"A=1+—H

2024 2023
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M5 F#ET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y EN k] 15 22,811 36,756
Investment properties BREYE 16 284,840 403,448
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 41,601 65,051
Goodwill S 19 = 3,605
Interests in associates REE AT 2w 21 = 169,772
349,252 678,632
CURRENT ASSETS MEBIEE
Inventories 78 22 6,551 163,782
Properties for sale HEY=E 23 — 398,388
Trade receivables FEUT & 5 BR X 24 12,209 126,787
Loan receivables ElE™ 18 _ 194,597
Prepayments, deposits and other FENREBE-EERK
receivables HhE IR 25 64,291 287,050
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEEY 26 10,644 12,996
93,695 1,183,600
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade and bills payables FE1T B Z BRA
FE 4R 27 17,860 146,821
Other payables and accruals HMERIER
et & A 28 51,052 406,318
Contract liabilities BREE 29 7,278 110,573
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 30 28,774 441,653
Amounts due to related parties FE A RR B 5 RRR 39 10,290 3,900
Tax payable FE(THRIE 272 5,953
Lease liabilities HEaRE 32 16,636 32,408
132,162 1,147,626
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS g (BfR) /EEEE (38,467) 35,974
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEHERTBHAER
LIABILITIES 310,785 714,606

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARE MBI TR

31 December 2024

—EBNFET+_A=+—H

2024 2023
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
=2 FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBER 31 9,197 24,073
Lease liabilities HEE®E 32 62,683 79,296
Total non-current liabilities JERENBEMEEE 71,880 103,369
Net assets BEFE 238,905 611,237
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners BATEE NEL#ED
of the Company
Share capital &N 33 756,019 633,231
Reserves i (529,936) (13,220)
226,083 620,011
Non-controlling interests JEIERR R 12,822 (8,774)
Total equity EmABER 238,905 611,237
The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 223  $74E223B &G EMBHRERBESTGN -2

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Xiaopeng
Director

eI
EF

THEZRA=+t—H#tERERENE LA

TIESEAKREE

Ke Xionghan
Director

a3
EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n‘m * \ﬁ@;j%

Year ended 31 December 2024
BHEZZENF+"A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

G N
Share Share Exchange Non-
Issued premium option fluctuation Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total equity
Ex
BETRE IRiMEREER RRERRE RENRE iR it F[3230 3+ 4t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 TEn FEn TEn FEn TEn TR TE#n TiEn
At 1 January 2023 RZ%-=£-A-H 631,337 1,663,459* 648* (272,218)* (1,221,414)* 801,812 (16,178) 785,634
Loss for the year FEHR - - - - (153317) (153317) 7,729 (145,588)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEMZER:
Exchange differences on translation BESNEBRBEATELY
of foreign operations and associate ERER - - - (28,484) - (28,484) (325) (28,809)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEXENSAE - - S (28484) (153317) (181,801) 7404 (174397)
Exercise of share options Goticd 1 34 1,894 (1,347) (547) S = S = S
At 31 December 2023 and
1 January 2024 633,31 1,662,112* 101% (300,702)% (1,374,731)* 620,011 (8,774) 611,237
Loss for the year FEHE - - = = (295,808) (295,808) (3,934) (299,742)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHMZERS
Release of exchange differences upon disposal ~ HEMBAFFREREREE
of subsidiaries 8 - - - (205,031) - (205,031) - (205,031)
Exchange differences on translation BEBNEBRBEATEL Y
of foreign operations and associate ERER - - - (15,877) - (15,877) (818) (16,695)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEXERZAE - - - (220,908) (295,808) (516,716) (4,752) (521,468)
Lapsed share options BRUERE 34 - - (101) - 101 - - -
Release of non-controlling interest during ERERIEERES
the year - - - - - - 26,348 26,348
Issue of shares upon subscription of REWRAMETRE
new shares 3 122,788 - - - - 122,788 - 122,788
At 31 December 2024 RIE-ME+ZR=1-H 756,019 1,662,112* - (521,610)% (1,670,438)* 226,083 12,822 238,905
J These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZERERCANGEEMBFRIRZER
of HK$529,936,000 (2023: HK$13,220,000) in the S1# 529,936,000 T (ZE - =

consolidated statement of financial position.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

13,220,000 7T) ©



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_NMFE+_RB=+—HItEFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Loss before taxation from BIREER 2
continuing operation FRI AT ES R (30,899) (22,115)
Loss before taxation from BARIEKEERE
discontinued operation PRIRAIE 1B (271,645) (122,747)
(302,544) (144,862)
Adjustments for: ELUT R
Finance costs [Ey= N 9 7.314 100,553
Share of loss of associates DMEEE AT EE 10,230 22,468
Bank interest income IRITHRIE U A 6 21) (52)
Interest income FE WA 6 (643) (560)
Net allowance for expected credit FLAEU B Z R
losses (reversal)/recognised for (Bs[E) /HEsR 2 TaHh
trade receivables EEHIEREEER (837) 7,876
Net allowance for expected MEMEWRIE
credit losses recognised/(reversal) BB, (#EE) ~
for other receivables TRHAE ER1E
B3R 4,883 (10,073)
Net allowance for expected MEWERER 2
credit losses recognised TRHAE EF B
for loan receivables e = 3,365
Net allowance for expected credit MEE RN B BMERE 2
losses reversal for advances to TRHAE E R EERE
associates e (2,173) (754)
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERREITE
plant and equipment 15 12,274 13,897
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEITE 17 24,545 31,380
Unrealised fair value loss on KREMEZ KRBT
investment properties NAERE 16 1,750 1,121
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE BEKSEZ
and equipment E518 6 3,803 S
(241,419) 24,359
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘T | Eﬁﬁllllgﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2024

BE_ZMF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 FHET TFAET
Increase in properties for sale HEYFEIEM — (21,907)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories %fé b () 1,724 (17,416)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEW B ZaR™ (g )
receivables D5 (26,770) 15,551
Decrease in prepayments, SEANE R0
deposits and other receivables LAt & WRR TR R 18,244 18,279
Increase in loan receivables FEW E 80 (7,875) (2,403)
Increase in trade payables FE(T B 2 AR AL N 84,526 984
(Decrease)/increase in bills payable FETZE 4 CRiZL) /18 (63,167) 26,350
Increase in other payables and accruals ELtFE (S FIE K
FEST & FE NN 102,371 33,947
Increase/(decrease) in contract aHasdEm Gl
liabilities 7,162 (19,878)
Cash (used in)/generated from K& FrR) /s RE
operations (125,204) 57,866
Tax paid BIRIE (3,524) (56)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KESEE) (FRA) P
operating activities B& 558 (128,728) 57,810
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREED
Bank interest received BUIRTTHE 21 52
Purchases of property, BEYE BERKE
plant and equipment (8,723) (6,863)
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj’i¢%¥ 5= Bz
plant and equipment 12 PTSFIE 109 -
Net cash flows used in investing KEEEMARERE
activities R EE (8,593) (6,811)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

maRERER

Year ended 31 December 2024

HEZENFE+-B=1+—HIFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REED
New bank and other borrowings HIZRITREMEES 25,233 27,857
Repayment of bank and BEERTRAMBES
other borrowings (13,106) (23,753)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEaE (37,813) (47,426)
Net cash inflow from debt BREMAZIREMAFEE
restructuring 8 31,103 -
Proceed from issued shares as part of EZAEFEELE—IF D 21T
debt restructuring R1n Z FriS=ia 8,33 122,788 =
Increase in amounts due to & 1 A Bt 75 SR IE 3B A0
related parties 6,390 3,209
Interest paid BAFR (108) (7,509)
Net cash flows generated from/ MEEEPTE (PRA)
(used in) financing activities RER= 35 134,487 (47,622)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERBEEFEY GAL)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SR %E (2,834) 3,377
Cash and cash equivalents FYNRERIREFEY
at beginning of year 12,996 14,880
Effect of foreign exchange rate SMEER GBI EHRE
changes, net 482 (5,261)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNRERFAEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 10,644 12,996
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 o =

R #5 ¥R R P 51

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

1.

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
is a public limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered
address of the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is Room
225, 2/F., Mega Cube, 8 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Beidahuang (HK) International Trade Co., Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and the ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Ms. Li
Zhuoxun.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory

effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the

followings amendments to HKFRSs issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily

effective for the annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Non-current liabilities
with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangement

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.1
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new

and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sales or Contribution
And HKAS 28 of Assets between
an Investor and its

Associate or Joint

Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS 9  Amendments to the
and HKFRS 7 Classification and

Measurement of
Financial Instrument?
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements
Accounting Standards to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 113
HKFRS 18 Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial
Statements?
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2026.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2027.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
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R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2024

mE+—"A=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group incurred a loss for the year from continuing
operation of approximately HK$28,097,000 and as
of that date, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$38,467,000. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group will be
able to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within the next twelve months, after taking
into account the following plans and measures:

(@  The Group has classified bank borrowings
amounting to approximately HK$22,093,000
with scheduled repayment dates that were
more than 12 months from the end of the
reporting period but contain a repayment
on demand clause as current liabilities at
31 December 2024. Based on the latest
communication with the banks and taking into
account the security provided to the bank,
the Directors are not aware of any intention
of the banks to require early repayment of
the borrowings. Moreover, the Group is in
the process of negotiating with its bankers to
secure necessary facilities to meet the Group’s
working capital and financial requirements in
the near future.
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2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(b) We have obtained a waiver of amount due
to related party amounting to approximately
HK$10,291,000 in which the related party has
agreed not to repay the amount due to within
the next 12 months from the date of this
report; and

(0 The Group continues to monitor capital
expenditure to balance and relieve cash
resource to support the operations and take
action to tighten cost controls over various
operating expenses and is actively seeking new
investment and business opportunities with an
aim to attain profitable and positive cash flow
operations.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's cash flow projections which cover a period of
twelve months from 31 December 2024. The directors
are of the opinion that, taking into account the plans
and measures as stated above, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within twelve months from 31 December
2024. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the Group is able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above. Whether the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern
would depend upon the Group's ability to generate
adequate financing and operating cash flows in the
near future.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-
mentioned plans and measures and operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group's assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

1 o =

31 December 2024
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2.3

mE+"ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient
to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent ownership interests entitling their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience
to perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing outputs
and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the
ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in
June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) except for
transactions and events within the scope of HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, in which the Group applies HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed
in a business combination. Contingent assets are not
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBImRRMEE

31 December 2024
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2.3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangement of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after reassessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted retrospectively during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Gooawill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of associates is described below.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is or the
portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Any retained portion of an investment
in an associate that has not been classified as held for
sale continues to be accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests, that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after re-assessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the
relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal,
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

and is determined for an

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets with
finite useful lives and contract costs to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

31 December 2024
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2.3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024

2.3

EXGHBRENEGE (B)

RAEk 7S (&

(b)

()
(iii

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

—BEEAF=HEE
WEERE ME—8E
REBEZPERNBER
& ;

ZEREATERNARE
EERNBREAESRT
RILBVRREBREE ;

ZBERRX()FTIEE A
S HFHES]

(a)()Frfs1B A H ez B Re 1T
FEAFENYLZLESE
(HZEEHAT) B
EEAEDRHDP L
=4

I

\

ZERNHEHFIBERNGE
W E A B RAERIA
EESARRERHEIEEE
ANBRF -



2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 33%

10%-25%

10%

Leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Infrastructure and building

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

2.3

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H
BEAEHBRERBE (8B)

ME - BERRENTE

M BB Rk s (FER TAZRRIN) Thi%
BB R ITE RERBIEGEE
SRR -ME -BERREEENAEE
HBEBEREASZREEEZZEF
KRB ZEBERERG MM 2 HIZ
PRt -

ME - -BERRBEERABFRES
2% FIINEERFREER  —RK
ZEREEZPBEREBEm AR £
FEEBRENERT AR
XREENRACHEES CREES
E-HMYFE BERRBHNEEZEMNEA
DEREE AREERZEBMNERDR
BB E WIRES ER A ERFEE
FESHIRITEE o

BEYFE - BERRBEBZITENE
ORI B R A E 1L 14 5 °) A B
FEHRHREE -FULLENMEAZEE
FEROTF

AEYXEE. BEFHH33%
R REE (MEZ8REE)

AE 10%%E25%

ERZHREF  10%

H—IEYE -BErRESBDZEME
FREMLE AR ZBEREB D ZME
RREEER DR mEB o R EE R
FE-NFEE JERERRITER
EELEREBMBEEBETERR
AR WMEA) °

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2024 F1§

101



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 o =

31 Dec
=T

2.3

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2024

mE+"ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing cost on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Trademarks

Trademarks with definite useful lives are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
30 years.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

Contracts

Contracts are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over 5
years.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is a contract contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not
to separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the

Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 23 EBEATHHBHEEREE (B)
INFORMATION (continued)
Leases (continued) E (@
The Group as a lessee (continued) Z&ﬁ%@ TEAATN (B
Lease liabilities MESR

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise:

REERGBAR ZEERZARNTZ
HEMRMZBERSERGtEHEER
REEEEMMIREER  EHERS
MREEETE AEERBEERKBHE
MR ERENKRFHE-

StAEARSEZHEMNMERE !

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance o TN (EEE TREHIIE) FIE
fixed payments), less any lease incentives RIFENTE S B EHIE ;
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an o ERARIEH A XN SR E

index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate at the commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

IR AR B 2 IS BEE
KETHIATE S

. AEABRBRENGREERER
FETAIEER

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the o HEARMASIERE T/TEEIER
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the B BRI 1T B &
options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, o SR M AEETELLR LR

if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the lease.
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 23 EARTHERERBE (8)

INFORMATION (continued)

Leases (continued) HE @

The Group as a lessee (continued) KEFIEAERBN (B

Lease liabilities (continued) HEar’ @

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a RUTBR AEBEH=HES

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use B (LHERERAEEEEHBESR

assets) whenever: )

o the lease term has changed or there is a change o THERBEFT s 1T S B B 1E
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase T EEEEL RNZBR
option, in which case the related lease liability T B EaERERT A
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease BB A &ESTAEIR=XALIR
payments using a revised discount rate at the RETHEENRMENT=C

date of reassessment.

U the lease payments change due to changes o HMEMNZEEETEMESED
in market rental rates following a market rent BHcES EAHEEAGEE
review/expected payment under a guaranteed TTESMREESmEIREE *
residual value, in which cases the related lease HERT A EaEHEaY
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised BRI R ARIR B THE N
lease payments using the initial discount rate. MEHHtE-

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the HEaBER GBI REzhT/EE

consolidated statement of financial position. BIEE o

Lease modifications AEEET

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a HEETIER B AERBRASEEET

separate lease if: VEA—IBEEMHAEARE

o the modification increases the scope of the o ZIBEET @A MNERE—IE
lease by adding the right to use one or more ZIBMEESENENIEAES
underlying assets; and HE; &

U the consideration for the leases increases by o I ENRE BN E2E4E
an amount commensurate with the stand- BN EEIBEAYHENEBERS
alone price for the increase in scope and MEARMMISESNIE RYHE
any appropriate adjustments to that stand- B ERFIENEAEEEE -

alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a T IEEA—BEEBHEEAENIES
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability BiIm=s AEE DB BHEHETEM
based on the lease term of the modified lease by HER R R{E T B I RBLIB KT E
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised & B ETIREN M EEE st =28
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. Ea8Eo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

2.3

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

2.3

EXGHBRENEGE (B)

Leases (continued) HE @
The Group as a lessor KEBFFRLHHEN
Classification and measurement of leases HEZDEKTE

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement date
at amounts equal to the Group's net investment in
the leases, measured using the interest rate implicit
in the respective lease. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration under the contract to each
component. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 23 EAXEHHESHIEE (&)
INFORMATION (continued)

Leases (continued) HE @

The Group as a lessor (continued) KEFELAHBEN (&

Refundable rental deposits nRIEEESHES

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for BEUm e RERELS I IBES S
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. FRIRAE AR E 0% AR RV GIRA &
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are HE - RVTHEIBEHEANBEBELEZH
considered as additional lease payments from lessees. BB ERFA A 2 RBINEE ~Eho
Sublease S

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts EREFRARNHEAANA  NEEBEE T
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate AORSBHOAEAMBE IS D
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or HAERETFHYOMEENERAREESE
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset NEANBRKCEIEE > MIEXEEE
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the BEo

underlying asset.

Lease modification FAEEET

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that TIEEREREIEGE—LONEES

were not part of the original terms and conditions are KR BEIIEATREEITAE 81

accounted for as lease modifications, including lease FeECERASIEMNASES.

incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction

of rentals.

0) Operating leases (i) KEHE
The Group accounts for a modification to REFBRBKEHEESTBES]
an operating lease as a new lease from the EWBEBEEAEA—EBHEE A
effective date of the modification, considering B ZEIEEEMRE I AE
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating NREARENHIEAHAE
to the original lease as part of the lease B DA EHIE o

payments for the new lease.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivable arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL") are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loan receivables,
deposit and other receivables, advances to associates,
pledged bank deposit and cash and cash equivalents).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade receivable, loan receivables, advances to
associates and deposit and other receivables)
are each assessed as a separate group. Loans
to related parties are assessed for ECL on an
individual basis);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024
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2.3

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to
related parties, lease liabilities and bank and other
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on the weighted average method. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make sale.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 23 EAXEHHESHIEE (&)
INFORMATION (continued)

Properties for sale SEYE

Properties for sale are classified as current assets. FEYEREARHEE FRIEEER
Except for the leasehold land element which is HEEZEtREFEENAENAE S
measured at cost model in accordance with the HE L= FEY =R AR A
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties BT SR(E > WRE T BR o A1k B B2 i
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net- RIEERET  BE DR EYS 2 18R
realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific EELTE WER) BB 6EH -
identification basis including allocation of the related NI EEIEYEZGAEBREG
development expenditure incurred and where ST AR RETINERENRZ o
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalized. Net realisable THEMRMEN ~EIEHETEEES
value represents the estimated selling price for the NIt EMARAERETHEBRES
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs BIEIE S o

necessary to make the sales. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions 5

A provision is recognised when a present obligation RBTSEUHELREEEERETETS (T
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past BEEUEEEHHABERAELUE
event and it is probable that a future outflow of TEAERE BE S FURSR e mE
resources will be required to settle the obligation, I RBEIER RSN EEto

provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best R ABENSEANESREERE
estimate of the consideration required to settle TREBEFEREARENREMGHET BF
the present obligation at the end of the reporting StREESFAEBER R ABERRZE-
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties ERETAHBTRESEREMEIR
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is ShEestER HEESEA%ERS
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the TENHE HEeREFEEENEEE
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present EpNEK

value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2024 F1§

|



122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 o =

31 Dec
=T

2.3

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2024

mE+—"A=+—H

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘(loss)/profit
before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sales, except for freehold land, which
is always presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognizes the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

2.3

EXGHBRENEGE (B)

1A (&)

et EXEREIREREEERER
HEAENHEERZVELEREBEMS
FEEELEBEERBNRESRER
EREEENHEAR-

MREBENREENEEaRZEER
S ZEEREBGSHERE125%
FREMEEDRERRERREEK
HERG HNERAMKBERDHR A
ERAREEKREBESEREBAZERE
BRI AR A IE SR B IS AH H PO B SR o

BOEA R SE AR TP R 2 PO FESE ©

EREHWA
FEERBTROEER EHtl) #
B S ERNETHBENER
AR B9 TR ) 8% T & P R
WA e

(u]

BHEEE—BN—HRARNERK
RFBHAEABRAN—FRTIBEE M
AR5 o

o



2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. A contract
asset and a contract liability relating to same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

Revenue from the sale of wine and liquor, trading of
food products and mineral products are recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the products.

Rental income from properties leasing under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve. For share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Share options granted to non-employees
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the
fair value of the goods or services received, except
where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in
which case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterpart renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Shore term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. For
properties under development for which revenue is
recognised over time, the Group ceases to capitalize
borrowing costs as soon as the properties are ready for
the Group's intended sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statement, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of exchange reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributable to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed through
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gain or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit of loss for
the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalized as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2.3, management
is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Estimation of expected credit losses of trade
receivables, advances to associates, loan and other
receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement at amortised cost in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in note 41.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the
assessment of net realisable value. Estimates of net
realisable value are based on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
amount of provision/reversal of provision in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

Defterred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have determined that
all of the Group’'s investment properties as at 31
December 2024 amounting to HK$284,840,000
(2023: HK$403,448,000) situated in the PRC are
held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. The presumption that the
carrying amounts of certain of the Group’s investment
properties situated in the PRC are recovered entirely
through sale has been rebutted and the deferred
tax on the changes in fair value of these investment
properties is recognised according to the relevant tax
rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment

Right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an
asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
are HK$41,601,000 and HK$22,811,000 (2023:
HK$65,051,000 and HK$36,756,000), respectively.
Details of the right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment are disclosed in notes 17 and 15
respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker (the “CODM")
has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company. The CODM reviews the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has two reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@)  the trading of food products segment is
engaged in wholesaling and retailing of staple
food, cooking oil, alcohol and beverage, frozen
and fresh food, commodity hog;

(b)  the rental segment is engaged in the leasing
of logistic facilities in Hong Kong and office
facilities in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC");

An operation segments regarding wine and liquor,
construction and development, financing leasing,
mining products and trading of food products
were discontinued in the current year. The segment
information reported on the next pages does not
include any amounts for these discontinued operation,
which are described in more detail in note 8.

The CODM monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment results.
Segment results are measured consistently with the
Group's loss before taxation except that interest
income, finance costs as well as head office
and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on group basis.

4,

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

ﬁgé%ﬁ+ﬁi\§*‘l' (nﬁ)
MBEMS  2EEBNREBE KRR

MEREFBEMUDE MABRSLED

BT FEIMmIR

@ BERmOB RFRELTE
IR BAM ABKREE

SERFEER BRI

() MHEEDE RENEFBEHEYR
Rk HPEARLNE (T
) FHEW AR ;

ERBE BRAHAE BEEE E
EREERRNEEDHEERETEE
RIEEZE - TEERNDEEHNTFE
RS EREEEEBNERTER 5
BE2REMEES -

Sk

TEEBRREBUERFEFRK
ENBZ RS LR BERBERDE K
RIFFEZRR - DERFETHIREATR
SNREETE - DBEBTHEELUE
EBZERAEES IV E ) EF B

A REMAURBEREERZE

Eﬁi EAE‘}'EO

NEEETOLRBFEERIFEEFEYU
REMARDEBBREEEE JTHAR
ZEEELEAEEEE-

DEERFEBERTREMES BN
BB T R R Bt R D BECAB BF K b 3R
BE HHERZFEEUENREEE
o

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2024 F1§

185



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., KEHEER (&)
Continuing operations ;1,,§,4§<<M¥§§
Trading
of food
products Rental Unallocated Total
BEEM g KB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAR TR TR
Year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z-ME+-A=+-HILEE
Segment revenue: PERA
Sales to external customers HEFHIAZR 110,363 71,722 - 182,085
Revenue from contracts with customers ~ BRAHMA
Timing of revenue recognition LNt
At a point in time REEE 110,363 - - 110,363
Revenue from other sources HtRFEHA - 71,722 - 7,722
Other loss Htgig - (1,750) - (1,750)
110,363 69,972 - 180,335
Segment results PEEE 2,725 7,646 - 10371
Reconciliation: E/
Bank interest income RITFBBA 21
Unallocated other operating income or loss APEEMBERATEE (3,099)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses hrEREMFA RS (30,878)
Finance costs MERE (7.314)
Loss before taxation iR AR (30,899)
Taxation R 2,802
Loss for the year from continuing operations ~ ISELLEK Y EEER (28,097)
Segment assets PEEE 79310 434,197 - 513,507
Continuing operations RERELH
Reconciliation: E/
Elimination of intersegment receivables D ERERTE (253,144)
Corporate and other unallocated assets rEREMKAEEE 182,584
Total assets ERE 442,947
Segment liabilities NEafE 61,388 201,179 - 262,567
Continuing operations RBRELH
Reconciliation: E/
Elimination of intersegment payables HENEREAR (253,144)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ¢¥&Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂ%f 194,619
Total liabilities BEeE 204,042
Other segment information HihA 88N
Share of loss of associates AMEBERNFER - - (10,230) (10,230)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 759 33,933 7 35,469
Interests in associates REE Tz ER = = 42,083 42,083
Capital expenditure* BARREZ* 7,892 1,947 - 9,839
Fair value loss on investment properties REMEZAABER - (1,750) = (1,750)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

REQEERN (&

Trading
of food
products Rental Unallocated Total
BERA & KR it
HK$\'000 HK$'000 HK$5000 HK$'000

TER TEr TR TER

Year ended 31 December 2023 (Restated) HE_E-_-E4+-A-t+-ALEE
(@ =7)
Segment revenue: PEWA
Sales to external customers HETHIARER 123,000 96,729 = 219,729
Revenue from contracts with customers BRAMKA
Timing of revenue recognition LN
At a point in time NIRRT 123,000 = = 123,000
Revenue from other sources HtRREBA - 96,729 - 96,729

Other gain Sl 07 34 - 541
Other operating expenses By = (392) = (392)

123217 96,661 2 219,878
Segment results NERE 2,350 7,085 = 9,435
Reconciliation: /3
Bank interest income BONSHA 45
Unallocated other operating income or loss FORHMAENATER 1215
Corporate and other unallocated expenses PEREMFAEEE (16,854)
Finance costs HERE (15,956)
Loss before taxation HRTER @2,115)
Taxation RE (1,003)
Loss for the year FERE (23,118)
Segment assets NEEE 197,345 248,661 = 446,006
Reconcillation: g 7
Assets relating to discontinued operations HERMEELRERNEE 1,457,001
Elimination of intersegment receivables BN BRERE (759,045)
Corporate and other unallocated assets rEREMKRDEEE 718,270
Total assets HEME 1,862,232
Segment liabilities HEER 175,366 75,043 = 250,409
Reconcillation: g
Liabilities relating to discontinued operations HERIMTEXRERNER 814,03
Elimination of intersegment payables BN BRELTE (759,045)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities tEREMRDEEE 945,608
Total liabilities BERE 1,250,995
Other segment information HhDEEE
Share of loss of associates NERELRTER - - (17,593) (17,593)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE 1172 41,391 = 42,563
Interests in associates REEAF 2 R - - 169,772 169,772
Capital expenditure* Ery - 6,300 - 6,300
Fair value gain on investment properties RENEZ AAENE - 339 - 339
* Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, * BEAEYOEREYY HKEKD

plant and equipment and investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024

—ENFE+—RA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
The Group's operations are located in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Information about the Group's revenue
from continuing operations from external customers
is presented based on the location of the operations.
Information about the Group's non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of the
assets.

Revenue from external customers

4,

RENEEH (8
wEER

FEENEEUNTEREB KAEH
RECEXEBREIATRNRAE
FHREEBPIAEMES] - AEBIFRABE
ENERZEENMIBAUESZS -

non-current assets

RENRERHMA FRBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx TER TER
(Restated)
(=5
Continuing operations RERELH
The PRC H 135,626 158,398 296,821 589,318
Hong Kong B 146,459 61,331 52,431 89,314
182,085 219,729 349,252 678,632
5.  REVENUE 5. WA

The Group's revenue generated from trading of food
products business segment is revenue from contracts
with customers under HKFRS 15. Except for rental
all contracts are for period of one year or less, as
permitted by practical expedient under HKFRS 15,

the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

AEEREBEEERREFTOBEZIWRA
DEBUYBBREENEISHETZE
P& BRIBE NN RIBHHEH
BREERBISRAFZITERER
FOFRAGHNZERR—ERAUAR D

REZFABHNENZXBEBRTIU

o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024
“EOmFE+Z“A=+—H
REVENUE 5. WA
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ZERESHWARS
customers
An analysis of revenue by types of goods and services BE R EREENZIWMASUT
as follows:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(#&E5))
Continuing operations: FREaREER .
Revenue from contracts with EREBHKA
customers
Trading of food products BEEBMm 110,363 123,000
Total revenue recognised at a point in time 5 BRI BEFESD 2 48U A 110,363 123,000
Revenue from other sources HzRIRURA
Rental e 71,722 96,729
182,085 219,729
Continuing operations: FEREER
Revenue from geographic market: I A% 2 WA
The PRC =8 135,626 158,398
Hong Kong 58 46,459 61,331
182,085 219,729
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR (LOSSES) 6. HMaUk A~ Kz sl (B518)
An analysis of other income, gains or (losses) is as Emk A~ RE S (B518) 2ot -
follows:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(restated)
(REZ))
Continuing operations: FHRBREER
Interest income FEUWA 643 543
Bank interest income RITH] B WA 21 45
Government grants (Note) SR (MI5E) 17 53
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BEKZEZEIE
plant and equipment (3,803) -
Fair value (loss)/gain on KREWEZ A E (BB W
investment properties (1,750) 339
Others Hth 44 921
(4,828) 1,901
Note: MsE -
Government grants were mainly granted to the Group as BIAEENBTE T E A IFHEK
subsidies to support the operation of the PRC subsidiaries. BT BRI E) o I S 45 B & o ol
There are no special conditions or contingencies that are SRBIEEBET ABRIELE S

needed to be fulfilled and they were non-recurring in nature.

140 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

7. BRIRAIESIE

AEEZIRIRAEGREHNRER Gt A)

charging/(crediting): TIEBEERAES
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(restated)
(#BE5)
Continuing operations: FHEREER
Cost of inventories recognised as an RAERZZ2EFEERA
expenses 105,297 176,831
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BERZBINE
equipment 12,274 11,183
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 24,545 31,380
Expenses related to short term lease HIGHHEREEEEERRE
and low value assets IR 1,053 782
Gross rental income HHEWALEZE (71,722) (96,729)
Less: Direct operating expenses that B FREEHEERAZ
generated rental BEREKERY
income during the year 50,512 49,583
(21,210) (47,146)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE1EM B & 1,600 1,600
Employee benefit expenses EERAESZ (BEESMD) !
(including directors’ emoluments):
Wages and salaries TERE 5,612 5,374
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIHRR 154 401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The debt restructuring of the Group (the “Debt
Restructuring”) by way of a creditor scheme (the
“Creditors” Scheme”) was completed on 4 December
2024 (the "Date of Completion”) included the
followings steps:

(i) The Company had issued 850,000,000
subscription shares at HK$0.10 per share to
an investor on the Date of Completion, of
which HK$45,000,000 of the subscription price
has been paid to a scheme company namely
Gain North Limited (the “Scheme Company”)
for settlement of creditors which they have
preferential claims against the Company;

(i) On the Date of Completion, the Company has
allotted and issued 377,879,793 shares (the
“Scheme Shares”) to the creditors under the
Creditors’ Scheme who are entitled to and have
validly elected to receive Scheme Shares under
the Creditors’ Scheme; and

(i) the Scheme Company and the Group
entered into separate transfer agreements
for each of wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC, being (1) Shenzhen
Qianhai Dahuangyuan Financing Lease Co.,
Ltd, (2) Linxiang Qiangsheng Mining Industry
Company Limited, (3) Lianyungang Huajin
Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd, and (4) Shenzhen
Meiming Wenshi Trading Limited (the “Scheme
Subsidiaries”) (collectively the “Disposal
Agreements”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to transfer 100% equity interest in the
Scheme Subsidiaries to the Scheme Company
at nil consideration (the “Disposal”).

Upon completion of the Debt Restructuring, the
Group’s liabilities of approximately HK$713,070,000
would be discharged and released. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
4 December 2024. The Disposal discontinued the
operation of the Scheme Subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The loss for the period/year from the discontinued
operations of the Scheme Subsidiaries are set out
below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income have been restated to re-present the Scheme

Subsidiaries as discontinued operations.

Loss for the period/year from discontinued operations

was as follows:

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“ECmMFE+"A=+—H
ERIEEEET (B)
STEIME AR BRI EXF M
S EEBBEHINNT LEeBmkEM
PEBARKNVERBEFEET] U#
SEINB AT EMEN /ERLERE
E

ERIEKRSER BB FEBEN
o

1 January
2024 to
4 December
2024 2023
111 2
—B—HE
—E_WE
+ZAmMA @ —ZT”=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
(Restated)
(#RE7))
Loss for the period/year of the Scheme sTEIMEB AT 2 HAR, FEKE
Subsidiaries (note a) (120,295) (122,470)
Loss on disposal of the Scheme HESFEINB AT ZEEIE
Subsidiaries (note b) (151,350) -
Loss for the period/year from ERIEKEXEFT M FE
discontinued operations (271,645) (122,470)
Loss for the period/year attributable to N7 FE(GEERS, EEEE
— owners of the Company - YNEIEZZ=DN (270,260) (121,792)
— non-controlling interests —IEEREm (1,385) (678)
Loss for the period/year from BRIEREER M FE
discontinued operations (271,645) (122,470)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 AR

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 8.

Note:

(a) The results of the Scheme Subsidiaries for the period
from 1 January 2024 to 4 December 2024 (date
of completion of the Disposal), which have been

n\

M5t :

(a

IEEEE R (8)

SR B AR B 2 _ME—F—
AE_Z_NF+-AMH (HWEE
TEreA HER) BN EERE S TR

included in the consolidated statement of profit or EFFSESREMNEZEIKAZRE
loss and other comprehensive income/statement of SBERNT
profit or loss of the Group were as follows:
1 January
2024 to
4 December
2024 2023
T mE
—B—HZE
—ECE
+=BmA ZE2I=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
(Restated)
GE==gdl))
Revenue WA 374,856 625,270
Cost of Sales & Al A (362,857) (577,022)
Other income, gains and losses EHAWA -~ W K g5 38 1,214 521
Net allowance of expected credit TR ER B E T
losses - (392)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEEX (6,350) (9,982)
Administrative expenses THRX (45,145) (71,670)
Share of loss of associates MEBERABEE (507) (4,875)
Finance costs 3= 2% (81,506) (84,597)
Taxation [iz8eE| - 277
Loss for the period/year HARYEE SR (120,295) (122,470)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

(continued)

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 8.
Note: (continued)

Loss for the period/year from discontinued operations

has been arrived at after charging:

Wﬁ

(a

IEEEE R (8)
(uﬁ)

(&)

BRIEREEBE B, FEBR
THHEMBR TR BERER

1 January
2024 to
4 December
2024 2023
T mE
—A—HBZ=E
ZETMEFE
+—-BmA .
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
(Restated)
G==g7l))
Cost of inventories recognised as RAEMZZ2EFEMER
expenses 230,387 380,678
Depreciation of property, plant and 4%« = K sR 4T E5
equipment 1,003 3,249
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EFREEEITE 348 318
Employee benefit expenses EERMMEX 3,037 2,619

Analysis of the cash flow of discontinued operations

ERIEREEF RS RED U

is as follows: T
1 January
2024 to
4 December
2024 2023
—E_mE
—HA—HB=E
—E_@mEF
+ZBAmA B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
(Restated)
CE= )
Net cash generated from operating #&& EENFIEIRE FEE
activities 47,904 9,987
Net cash generated from investing & & EBNFFSIRE 35
activities 2 7
Net cash used in financing activities BRE EENFTAIREF58 (47,421) (11,809)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) RERA (RH) P48 485 (1,815)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBI RN
31 December 2024
—E_ME+-A=+—F
8.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 8. EBRIKEXERE G
Note: (continued) MisE : (8
(b) Summary of the loss on the disposal of the Scheme (b) HEAEWNB AT ZBEMMM T :

Subsidiaries is as follows:

HK$'000
FET
Analysis of asset and liabilities over KREZFIENEERBED
which control was lost:
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE 6,111
Investment properties KEE 106,945
Goodwill [EES 3,550
Interests in associates REE AR 2w 183,329
Current assets RENEE
Inventories e 154,066
Properties for sales HEME 384,176
Trade receivables EUE 5 BRFR 171,300
Other receivables H e IE 192,200
Loan receivables EWER 249,378
Tax receivables e 1B 945
Cash and cash equivalent HEMREEEY 1,856
Current liabilities wEaE
Trade and bill payables FET 8 5 AR FE 1 i (148,781)
Other payables and accruals HME A RIERESER (117,096)
Contract liabilities HHaE (108,754)
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEE (92,141)
Amount due to the Group FEI AR EBERIE (582,648)
Non-current liabilities ERENAERE
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBE A A (13,916)
390,520
Waiver of amount due to related parties R R S B 582,648
Release of translation reserve upon disposal & BF B[Ol & (# (205,031)
Release of non-controlling interest upon H & RO m
disposal (22,108)
Net assets disposal of BEHEEEZE 746,029
Subscription price paid to the Scheme [SENEE ISP L
Company 45,000
Issue of the Scheme Shares 1Tt S 37,787
Total expenses related to the Debt HEFEABRNERS
Restructuring 35,604
864,420
Less: liabilities discharged upon completion & : el ERREE (713,070)
Loss on disposal of the Scheme Subsidiaries & STEIM B AT 28 151,350

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024



9.

10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 9. FEMZ
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
(restated)
(REZ))
Continuing operations: FrEREER
Interest expenses on bank and other  R{TREMMEEZF BRX
borrowings
— wholly repayable within five years —BARAFERTHER 947 7,082
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEERZAEHRX 6,367 8,874
7,314 15,956
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEFN

Details of the directors’ remuneration of the Company
for the year, disclosed pursuant to Listing Rules and
Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
are as follows:

FRERBDESFHHMFB REL
MRRIRE B2 EFA F3831F M E L
T

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fees BE 2,530 910

Other emoluments: EHMENE

Salaries, allowances and e R REYH G

benefits in kind 324 2,890

Pension scheme contributions BRI - 51

324 2,941

2,854 3,851

FEIATEEEEZERERAT 147
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 o =

R #5 ¥R R P 51

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

10.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. E=FREIHEN (48)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
e ER BihE
s B &E BELEEN Pk
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE TER FTER FTER FER
2024 —EME
Executive directors HITESR
Mr. Chen Chen RELLE 360 - - 360
Mr. Liu Xiaopeng 2N BLE (iv) 60 = = 60
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng (Chairman) ~ STEREE (FF) (ii) 1,200 = = 1,200
Mr. Ke Xionghan iR E 360 324 - 684
1,980 324 - 2,304
Non-executive directors FRTES
Ms. Ho Wing Yan (IES s 100 - - 100
Mr. Zhao Wanjiang HETILE (iii) 61 = = 61
Mr. Li Dawei TRERE 100 = = 100
Mr. Li Jin FEEE () 39 - - 39
300 - - 300
Independent non-executive BiERTESR
directors
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RKELE 150 - - 150
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEXEE 50 - - 50
Mr. Chen Zhifeng BR#HLE 50 - - 50
250 - - 250
2,530 324 - 2,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 10. E=ERIHEN (48
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e ik Bk
e kil AR xRk
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Biist TAT TAT TAT AT
2023 =
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Chen Chen BELE 360 = = 360
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRERE 0] = 1,900 9 1,909
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng (Chairman)  SIER%EE (FF) (ii) = 656 7 663
Mr. Ke Xionghan TR E - 334 35 369
360 2,890 51 3,301
Non-executive directors FRTES
Ms. Ho Wing Yan (BB e 100 - - 100
Mr. Zhao Wanjiang HEIRE (i) 100 - - 100
Mr. Li Dawei TRERE 100 - = 100
300 - - 300
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRELSE 150 = = 150
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEXEE 50 = = 50
Mr. Chen Zhifeng BRE#REYE 50 - - 50
250 - - 250
910 2,890 51 3,851
Note: These represent the estimated fair value of MEt: ZELIERBERARBNR 22—t &
share options granted to the directors under the FAZ+=HRMN BRI
Company’s share option scheme adopted on 23 May TEEZHEREZGESANE Z
2017. The value of these share options is measured LR BETIRIEI 2. 3PTE
according to the Group's accounting policies for AEEERURNDIZAREBEIZZ
share-based payment transactions as set out in note G HRAE - 2EEYN G (B1F
2.3. The details of these benefits in kind, including REBREZ TERIARHE) 25
the principal terms and number of options granted, BRESERTERESE—BRK
are disclosed under the paragraph share option I sE3448 B8 o

schemes in the report of the directors and note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2024
—ETMFE+"A=1+—H

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 10. E=FREIHEN (48)
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the BE_Z_—FK_FT_NE+ZA
directors of the Company, its chief executive officer —H+—HIEE AEETEREES
and senior management of the highest paid individuals AT TZARNTEE -HITHAKES
as a discretionary bonus or an inducement to join or MEBELSNMNE  (EARS|IIMARE
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of B NASERRR IS LAl o 82
office during the years ended 31 December 2023 and Lo B o
2024.
None of the directors of the Company and chief HE SR -_E-WNE+_AH
executive officer of the Company agreed to receive —+—HIEE AR EERETH
or waive any emoluments in the years ended 31 R E B IS S AR E o
December 2023 and 2024.
(i) Resigned on 14 June 2023. 0) RoE-=FXA+mE&E-
(ii) Appointed on 14 June 2023, retired at the 2023 (i) R-E = B+UHEZT-
AGM on 28 June 2023, re-appointed on 28 June RE_=ZFX"B-_+N\HZ_Z
2023 and resigned on 28 January 2025. T EERERBAEARE FRBRBERC
E_=FXRAZ+/\BEMEZMGE
TR _E_AF—AZ+/\B#
fFo
(iii) Resigned on 9 August 2024. (iii) RoE=E-—mENB A BEF.
(iv)  Appointed on 1 July 2024. vy RIZ_WNFEtA—HEZE-
v) Appointed on 9 August 2024. (v) NZEZMENBNAESRE
11.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1. RLBE=SHES
The five highest paid employees during the year ERN AL EEHEETGEMSE (T
include two (2023: one) directors, details of whose T=FE ) EE HMES Eﬁ
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of GBI EXMIEE10c AANEER > Hig =
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three 2 (CE-=F:UL) BEEEHESE (I
(2023: four), highest paid employees who are not a FEXRNBES) ZHNEFBAOT -
director of the Company, are as follows:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Salaries, allowances and HE 2 REYH =@
benefits in kind 1,550 3,195
Pension scheme contributions BRREF B 54 45
1,604 3,240
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11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of non-director and highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

11.

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H
TaREHES (B)
HMNATE T EE RS HIFESEE
SHBEWT:

2024 2023
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ Z1,000,00078 7T 3 4
INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 12. FrfE1 (IB%) %
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax BEFRHECEREMREIRTERER
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax FEERAAD PEEB AR MEEEN
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. MEIG%25%
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong RIS AREHRB M KGR 1F R =5
Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of Era8REESERE2,000,000E7T
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, BY R 1%8.25% IR R EHAR > MiBa
and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 2,000,00078 7Ry /& F) BII3216.5% B2
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for TR - AR NS MR G BRI E
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continued BEREMNGENGEEIZ16.5%N8 —
to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the MEEHR - AL EEREEBEENS
Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity 2,000,000 st 5T FERR IR w1 K B 8
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of 2,000,000 st {5t ESR R i F 5 0
the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the AI%8.25% K% 16.5% IR K EE BF
estimated assessable profits above HK$2,000,000. 5o
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(restated)
CS==p Tl
Continuing operations FEREER
Current tax: BVHERFRIA !
— Hong Kong a8 58 589
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HREBERER 52 56
110 645
Over provision in prior years BEFEEBRER (2,474) -
Deferred tax IRIEIR TR (438) 358
Total tax (credit)/expense for the year ~EEIE (HK%R) B 4858 (2,802) 1,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A H
ARE

31 Dec

777

12.

13.

BA RS SR 2 2
ember 2024
“mWE+=A=+—H
INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued) 12. 5 (&%) X (@)
A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable %;Kﬁﬁé% (KABRERB AT N
to loss before taxation at the statutory rate for Hong ) SEERZE AN RN EENRIE
Kong in which the Company and its subsidiaries are %) X ERMREAENMR
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate, BERIHKR URBERE BPEER
and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the X) HEERMEEENT
statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as
follows:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
(Restated)
(&&= 7))
Loss before taxation bR AT ES 18 (30,899) (22,115)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMRETENRIE (5,099) (3,649)
Effect of different tax rates of B AR RERENEZE
subsidiaries (1,481) (5,487)
Income not taxable for tax BEFRUIA (609) (105)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary ~ REEBE R ERE 2 ML E
difference 5,415 8,973
Utilization of tax losses previously not B4Rl kMR 2 IR TER18
recognised 1,133 5,059
Expenses not deductible for tax RAIMBBEZ 396 610
Loss attributable to associates =Nl SF (2,557) (4,398)
Tax (credit)/expense at the Group's BAEEERREAEN
effective rate W18 (%) X (2,802) 1,003
DIVIDENDS 13. RE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any EEfEZFMNEE_ZE_NFE+A

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:

HK$nil).
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS PER SHARE 14.
For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per

share from continuing and discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“ECmMFE+"A=+—H
SkEHE
FERDRIEEEER
RXABHEEANRGFERERILKE
EH2BREARBEEERIVRET
PIBIRTE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
(restated)
(REZ))
Loss from continuing operations:  F/EKE ¥ FE A58 ¢
Loss for the year attributable to the KABVHEE NEBILFERE
owners of the Company (295,808) (153,317)
Add: Loss for the year from i BERIEREER
discontinued operations FERE 270,260 121,792
Loss for the year from continuing BARstBESRERNREEEIE
operations attributable to the ZERAFEBE ANEERFER
owners of the Company for the EERZFEEE
purpose of basic and diluted loss
per share (25,548) (31,525)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2024
—ETMFE+"A=1+—H

14.  LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 14. BREE (@)
2024 2023
‘000 ‘000
TFhe Th&
Number of shares: RISER :
Weighted average number of ordinary stEESRE AL EEIERFA
shares used as the denominator in EN SR EERMET I
calculating basic and diluted loss per
share 6,426,506 6,327,838
HK$ HK$
#IT BTT
(restated)
(#&E=5)
Loss per share for loss from TRATHEE ANBGFELE
continuing operations attributable ¥#EE5i8 2 SREE
to the owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (in HK cents) B EE (B (0.40) (0.50)
Loss per share for loss from TRFEBEANEBEFER
continuing and discontinued ERIEREEREEZ
operations attributable to the SREE
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (in HK cents) B EE (B (4.60) (2.42)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the BHE_T_NMHFEKRZZEZ=%+IZA

computation of diluted loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations were the same as the basic loss
per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

15.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ME-BERRME
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture Infrastructure
and Motor Construction and
fixtures Vehicle in progress building Total
g
MRKE BRRE
FRRRE HE TEIR kg &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER Thn TEn TEn TEn
Cost o
Asat 1 January 2023 RZBZ=%-F-H 120,329 4,088 21,8% 35358 181,671
Additions HE 6,863 = = = 6,863
Disposal HE (50) (916) - - (966)
Exchange realignment ERRE (7.227) M) 418) (3.958) (11,674)

As at 31 December 2023and  WZE-=#+-A=1+-HAkK

1 January 2024 —Z-mE-A-A 119,915 3,101 21478 31,400 175,894
Additions AE 6,775 1,948 - - 8,723
Disposal ﬁ% (63,913) - - - (63,913)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEMBAT (H58) (11,970) (1,150) (20,668) (31,083) (64,871)
Exchange realignment EQRHE (559) (57) (810) (317) (1,743)
Asat 31 December 2024 RZEZMEFZA=+-H 50,248 3,842 - - 54,090
Accumulated depreciation ~ BFHTERA(E

and impairment
Asat 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%-F-H 82,356 3,802 21,8% 29,613 137,667
Depreciation for the year EW%&E 11,840 282 - 1775 13,897
Disposal (50) (916) - - (966)
Exchange realignment @m*ﬁ (7,114) (67) 418) (3.861) (11,460)
As at 31 December 2023 and Eé:%:zﬁ:ﬂﬁ—ﬁ&

1 January 2024 S-ME-F-H 87,032 3,101 21478 21,527 139,138
Depreciation for the year Em?ﬁ’% 11,540 82 - 652 12,274
Disposal (60,001) - - - (60,001)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) ﬁ’ﬂﬁ%@ﬂ(ﬁﬁ?iﬁ) (9,026) (1,150) (20,668) (27,916) (58,760)
Exchange realignment EQ#R (281) (18) (810) (263) (1372)
As at 31 December 2024 RIBZME+ZA=1—H 29,264 2,015 - - 31,219
Carrying amount RELH
Asat31December 204  RZE_ME+ZA=+—H 20,984 1827 - - 22,811
Asat31December2023  RIEZZHE+”A=+-H 32,883 - - 3873 36,756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 IR R M EE

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

4 A
1 o =

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES =LY E
HK$'000
FET

At 1 January 2023 W_E_=F—H—H 412,381
Valuation loss on arising from NABEEHEENGERE

changes in fair value (1,121)
Exchange realignment bE DA R (7.812)
At 31 December 2023 and A _E_=F+"RBA=1+—HK

1 January 2024 —EWHFE—A—H 403,448
Valuation loss on arising from NABEEHEENGERE

changes in fair value (1,750)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEMRBAE (IEE8) (106,945)
Exchange realignment PE 2 58 (9,913)
At 31 December 2024 A _E_WNFE+_"_A=+—H 284,840
Unrealised net loss in fair value of investment & E¥X > AN ERESIREIEF1E

properties, included in profit or loss (Gt ABm 1,750

(a)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties

The fair value of the Group's investment
properties as at 31 December 2024 has been
arrived at the basis of a valuation carried out by
independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.

The fair value was determined based on
income capitalisation approach, which involves
estimating the rental incomes of the property
and capitalizing them all on appropriate rate to
produce a capital value respectively.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (continued)

There has been no change to the valuation
technique during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties,
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

Details of the Group's investment properties
and information about the fair value hierarchy

16.

4 A
177 g = |

A #5 SR R P 51

31 December 2024
—E-mE A=+~

—f

REME (8)
(@) FEBREVEZAREE

Py (R R B o

KRGS IEN R ER  PEH
RARRERESBRIBR-

RESHR ZEBREVEL
HBEURBERANEBEERZE

as at the end of the reporting period are as B
follow:
2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B - Jt B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FTHET
Investment properties REME - - 284,840
2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—R B F=4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT THET
Investment properties REME - - 403,448

REERREXREMERBRAR

2024 F1§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 AR

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—E-mE+=A=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of the Group’s

16.

REME (8)

TEEREMEZARESE

investment properties (continued) #8)
Relationship of
unobservable inputs
Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs  to fair value
EXTIRRHAYER
R fEER EAXTHRRHALR RRERRIME
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 7
Commercial properties 284,840 332,565 Income capitalisation approach and ~ Capitalisation rate, taking into A slight increase in the
located in the PRC market comparable method account the capitalisation of rental  capitalisation rate
income potential, nature used would result in a
of the property, and prevailing significant decrease in fair
market condition of nil in 2024 value and vice versa.
(2023: 4.8% to 5%)
Saleable unit rate per square foot A significant increase in
which compare with similar the saleable unit rate
location and other factor such used would result in a
floor level, building age, size and significant increase in fair
conditions of the properties are value and vice versa.
HK$42,000 to HK$73,000 (2023:
HK$59,000 to HK$63,000)
R PENEENE BABRIGERTHLEE R émt THEWAE  FRREACLRBH LA
HERERTR ZE_NE RERRARNEBETHR
,éfztfttt“%@ C2z=fF: R2Z T 4ke
4.8%%5%)
BRI REMANYEEE Fﬁﬁ"ﬂﬁﬁ BEXEL
1&g RIVRIOREEERL RHEHARBEARE
SEARAMH L EBER42,000 nu R2Z7Ae
AREB00ET (CBZE!
59,000% 70 £63,000%7t)
Residential properties - 70,883 Market comparable method and Saleable unit rate per square foot A significant increase in

located in PRC

IRPENETNE

Income capitalisation approach

HRLRERRAERLE

There were no transfer into or from level 3

during the year.
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which compare with similar
location and other factor such as
floor level, building age, size and
conditions of the properties are
HK$8,000 to HK$10,000 in 2023

Capitalisation rate, take into account
the capitalisation of rental
potential, nature of the property,
and prevailing market condition of
4.5% in 2023

SRR AMEINZER

the saleable unit rate
used would result in a
significant increase in fair
value and vice versa.

A slight increase in the
capitalisation rate
used would result in a
significant decrease in fair
value and vice versa.

Fﬁﬁ"ﬂﬁﬁ BEABL

B A NERRREREAL - BRERAAGARE
SI-ERTARAHLEER nu RZI5e
£8,00087T£10,000%7T
@itk éth ERSBA W%  FARENMCLERHY LS
BEREFTR S22 RERALEBEETR
thttfﬁ%A.s% Rz %o
FEpy TEBARBHE=4



16.

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The analysis of the carrying amount of
investment properties is as follow:

All the investment properties is situated in the
PRC under medium lease term to long-term
lease arrangement.

Pledge of investment properties

Investment properties with a carrying amount
in aggregate of HK$294,831,000 in 2023 are
pledged to bank for Group’s bills payables and
borrowings, details of which set out in notes 27
and 30.

Investment properties leased out under
leases

All of the Group’s property interests held under
leases to earn rentals are measured using the
fair value model and classified accounted for
investment properties.

The Group leases out its investment properties
to various tenants. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 2 year to 10 years, at the
end of which period all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

16. REME B
(b) REVMEZIRETEINNOT

FHERAEAEZHETZAR
BEREMEMNPE-

() IEHKEWME
“TE KRB EAHR
294,831,000 T2 REYED
MAEBZENEEREEIR
HFIRIT HFBE N M 27K
30°

(d) REBHEELHEZIREME

AEEREHEERA UBREE
EZFIEMERDRBAR
BRIFE Wt AKREYE-

FEERZLERPLEERE
ME BN —ROT HH2FE
105 HiimBEMEBATAF
o FRAB RIS PATEE

17. FREEE

Leased
Properties
HEME
HK$'000
FHET
Carrying amounts IREEE
At 31 December 2024 RZE_MNFE+"A=+—H 41,601
At 31 December 2023 N2 _=F+_B=+—H 65,051
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_Z_ME+"A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge rEZH 24,545
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_B_—&£+_A=F_HiFs
Depreciation charge FESZH 31,380

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2024 F1§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

1 o =
31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) FRESE (8)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
S =
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Expenses relating to leases of low- ERBEEEENEZHX
value assets excluding short-term (FrEFEREEEEZ
leases of low-value assets HATRE) 1,053 782
Total cash outflow of leases HEIRSREE%E 38,930 47,426

Details of total cash outflow of leases is set out in the
consolidated cash flow statements.

During the current year, the Group leases properties
for own use. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 5 to 12 years (2023: 2 to 10 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOAN RECEIVABLES 18.

An aged analysis of the loan receivables as at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024

—ENFE+—"B=+—H

RBEHER BIWERZRE DTN
o

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0 — 30 days 0&E30H - 13,839
31 to 60 days 31E60H - 22,549
61 to 90 days 61290H - 25,940
91 to 180 days 91&180H - 34,512
181 to 365 days 181&365H - 67,788
Over 365 days 365H L £ - 136,178
- 300,806

Less: Allowance for expected credit B FEHEERE (BEE
losses (“ECL") E518)) #BE - (106,209)
- 194,597

Movement in the allowance for expected credit
losses of loan receivables

Movement in allowance for ECL that has been
recognised for loan receivables in accordance with
general approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2024.

BB EMREREEGREEES

BE"_ZT_=—ERTTNF+"A
Z+—HLEFERBEEBMHZREE
AISBOSE PR 8 R — AR 75 A L FE W & "R B
R TAREEBEEEEEE-

Total

4mzt

HK$'000

FET

Balance as at 1 January 2023 ’5: LT —F—HB—HZEER 104,526

Recognition of ECL RTEMEEREE 3,365

Exchange realignment P A2 (1,682)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 and NS _=F+_"A=+—H

1 January 2024 "R_ENE—RB—HZ &% 106,209

Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR (104,602)

Exchange realignment bE s EE (1,607)

Balance as at 31 December 2024 RIE-WEFE+"_A=+—Hz#&e& -

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set
out on note 41.

TAHAE B IRsT(Esr IR R MY aE41 o

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2024 F1§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A H
ARE

R #5 ¥R R P 51

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

19.

GOODWILL 19. w5
Total
4Est
HK$'000
FET
Cost BN
As at 1 January 2023 R ey = R 88,841
Exchange realignment PE A 2 (1,696)
As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 WKW Z_=F+_BA=+—HK
—_E_MFE—HF—H 87,145
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HERB AT FIEES) (85,827)
Exchange realignment bE DA R (1,318)
As at 31 December 2024 A ZEMNFE+Z“HA=+—H -
Accumulated impairment R2itiRE
As at 1 January 2023 A _E_=F—HF—H 85,166
Exchange realignment bE D s R (1,626)
As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 T:;:_E-I— A=+—HK
—E_mE—HB—H 83,540
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEWB R E (FIsE8) (82,277)
Exchange realignment BE P FH 2L (1,263)
As at 31 December 2024 RZZEZWE+ZA=+—H -
Carrying amount IREEEE
As at 31 December 2024 R _E_NE+_HA=+—H =
As at 31 December 2023 A _E =+ _"H=+—H 3,605

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has
been allocated to cash-generating units (“CGU") of
mining business and the sales of green food products

for impairment testing.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

BREFRCHNUBZEEEIREE
F%%&mm&@?mzﬁﬁéﬁﬁu
(MReAEHEN) LE

TRERIE o



19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwiill

After recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
amounts of goodwill are allocated to groups of cash-
generating units as follows:

19.

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

mE (&)

B (A

RERAEERR BERASEDS
RETIREEHEMAR

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Mining business EENEETS - 673
Sale of green food products HEMABR M - 2,932
- 3,605

The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value in use calculations using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
prepared by independent valuers and approved by
senior management.

Sales of green food products

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 14.27% during 2023 and cash flows
beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using a
growth rate of 2% during 2023.

Mining business

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 12.95% during 2023 and cash flows
beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using a
growth rate of 2% during 2023.

The key assumptions for value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflows which
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such
estimation is prepared by independent valuers based
on past performance and management's expectations.

No provision of impairment loss on goodwill was
recognised to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year.

B U (O] 5 B8 75 AR % B 18 37 it (B Al A
RESHREEEREZRELFHRZ
MHERERBRERERAIRERE
BstEmMERE -

fﬁ:,f@ﬁu’ﬂ
“EC-FHERRIREREEAZR

ARG R 514.27% M _E_=F8
BAFHZRESEMENKBERE2Y%
HER o

‘Eeﬁ'—’;%f‘z
“EC-FHERRIREREEAZR

AIRGIREE2312.95% M _E_=F8
BREFHRZHEERENKAEBER2%
HER o

ERERBEtEZE2RKRTERN
RERAMG HOEREHERET
Ko FRMAF T RBIUAEMENBE
KEREEEHEMFL -

TERAFEZGEaREMEE
WARKEREE ZREBIERERE-

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2024
—ETMFE+"A=1+—H

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. HthE\EWEE

Trademarks
iR
HK$'000
FET

Cost (5N
As at 1 January 2023 R_ET_=F—HF—H 2,815
Exchange realignment FERAE (54)
As at 31 December 2023 and RIZEZ=F+ZA=+—8k

1 January 2024 “ZTFE—A—H 2,761
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEHB AT (H5E8) (2,719)
Exchange realignment B R AR (42)
As at 31 December 2024 RIZZMFE+ZA=+—H -
Accumulated amortisation Rt R (E

and impairment
As at 1 January 2023 R_ZT_=F—HF—H 2,815
Exchange realignment ERAE (54)
As at 31 December 2023 and R ZE=F+A=+—HK

1 January 2024 “ZTF—A—H 2,761
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEMRB AT (&) (2,719)
Exchange realignment b R A% (42)

As at 31 December 2024

Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2024

As at 31 December 2023

RIE-ME+—"B=+—H

IREEE
N2 _NE+_B=+—H

N _E_=F+"B=+—H

bt E AT S B R AR E A B
BT FIEEED (B304F) Plihsy o

Other intangible assets of trademark of wine and
liquor as above amortised over its estimated useful
lives, which are 30 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the BE_Z_NF+A=+—HLHF

trademark under CGU of wine and liquor business has B BEEXBRRTEHEUFIEEYH
disposed. Please refer to note 8 for details. E-BRHF F2RMES8e

164 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
—ECNE+"B=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REE AT Z#ER
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets TMEYEEFE - 107,121

Advances to associates, net of NS R R 53

allowance for expected credit losses ~ FEHER{E S E5IEE - 62,651
- 169,772

Details of assessment of expected credit losses on
advances to associates are set out in note 41.

HEBMEATDEMRAGEEGEZ

EAE NN

REERREXREMERBRAR

2024 F1§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

31 December 2024

“E2Omg+"A=+—H

21.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. REEATRZEZ (@)
The Group's interests in its principal associates, which KAEBNREFEHZS AT GELH) =
are unlisted, are as follows: W

Percentage of
ownership interest

Registered Place of attributable to
Name share capital registration the Group Principal activities
HERPELG
278 HfRE MG RERRSEAL  rmyg
2024 2023

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan RMB200,000,000 PRC/Mainland China - 30  Sales of food and fertilizer
E-commerce Group
Company Limited (ii)

RNTREA R SEFER AR200,000,000c  HE/FERM HERRRER
EBFRAH)

Shenzhen Dahuangyuan RMB50,800,000 PRC/Mainland China - 30  Sales of food, fertilizer,
International Trading wine and steel
Company Limited (ii)

(Formerly known as Shenzhen

Dahuangyuan Green Food

Distribution Company

Limited)

FTHATREERES AR50,800,0007c  FE]/FEIAH) HERm EHEERIM
BRAE)

BRI AT SR E

BREEERAR)

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan RMB50,000,000 PRC/Mainland China - 30 Guarantee
Non-Financing Guarantee
Company Limited (ii)

RB A EA TSI R E N ARM50,000,000  FE/FEAM #R
ERBRAEI)

Shenzhen Shengsiming Trading RMB50,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 40 40  General trading
Limited (i)

R TRB AE50,000,000t B/ FEXM —HRES
BB
Notes: Mk -
(i) The English name of the above PRC companies is for (i) R R B B9 5 S TR A A Y

identification purpose only.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
associate have been disposed. Please refer to note 8

for details.
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Annual Report 2024

ZRe

(ii) BE_ZTNE+_A=+—HL

FE ZBMERARNEHE-

RIMTEES ©

FIBHE2



21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21.
Summarised financial information

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s material associates is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s consolidated
financial statement prepared in accordance with

HKFRSs.

For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“ECmMFE+"A=+—H
REE AT ZEm (8
MBERRE
MEEBRZERBE AR ZHMBER
BEZEHHIINT o X B E K2
THIERBE AN B RS ERRER 2 B
ENBZ IR EMBBRRMIImZE8E o

BE_ZT_MmE+-_HBH=+—HL
FE

Shenzhen
Shengsiming
Trading Limited
wYIH
TREEE
BRAR
2024
HK$'000
TET
Non-current assets FREBEE =
Current assets MEBEE 5,106
Current liabilities nEas (5,106)
Net assets BETE -
Reconciliation to the Group's AAEERHERATZ
interest in the associates: G SrEalio

Proportion of the Group’s ownership EAREEREFELL 40%
Carrying amount of the investment KRERATE =
Revenue Wz -
Loss for the year FEBE (25,575)
Group's share loss of associates AEBRNEHERFEE (10,230)

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= AL =
e B RRMEE
31 December 2024
“EMFE+"A=+—H
21.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. PREEATIZ#EDS (48)
Summarised financial information (continued) IEEREE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ESE_=&F#+_B=+—81
FE
Shenzhen Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commence Shenzhen
Group Company Shengsiming
Limited Trading Limited
FINTRIE AT 4 St
ETEBERE LR#HE
BRAF BRRAE
2023 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TER
Non-current assets FRBEE 12,181 =
Current assets MEEE 401,985 26,011
Current liabilities V= (91,196) (437)
Net assets BEEFE 322,970 25,574
Reconciliation to the Group's RAEERKEREZ
interest in the associates: BRHR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership EREEEEELA 30% 40%
Carrying amount of the investment RERESHE 96,891 10,230
Revenue Wz 47302 =
Loss for the year FEBE (16,249) (43,983)
Group's share loss of associates AEBRNGHE R EEE (4,875) (17,593)
22. INVENTORIES 22. =8
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET TFAET
Raw material AR = 23,036
Finished goods E L 6,551 140,746
6,551 163,782

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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23.

24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

PROPERTIES FOR SALE 23. HEWE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Properties under development for sale &2 @Y - 398,388

The properties under development for sale in the PRC
are under long-term leases.

TRADE RECEIVABLES 24.
Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sale of goods,
and rental income derived from rental business.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

PENFEERTYESTERAEE

FEUR & 5 AR R
BREZERRTERBHESRKRHE
EXBEEZEETIWA-

REBEHR BB ZRFIZEZAH
ZEREC DA :

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month — @B R 11,848 46,371
1 to 2 months —EWEA 474 5,550
2 to 3 months ME=1E2 = 43,828
Over 3 months BB =1EH - 57,198
12,322 152,947

Less: Allowance for expected credit B ARG EEEEE
losses (113) (26,160)
12,209 126,787

Included in the trade receivables consist of rental

FEWE Z R EIERES - AEEE

receivables. The aging analysis of the Group’s rental WS Z R DU -
receivables are as follows:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Up to 30 days 30B3UR 2,310 7,479

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A H
ARE

31 Dec
-

24.

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2024

“mME+=ZA=+—H

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for expected credit
losses of trade receivables

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised
for trade receivables in accordance with simplified
approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the years ended 31

24,

Hgl'l& E% EETA (llﬁ)
FEIKE ZIRMTAEEHEEREES

BEZE_=_FK_FE-_NFE+_A
—t+—BHLEFEEREEBMBREE
BISE0SRFTE MRS A AW E 7 iR

December 2023 and 2024.

MEESS 2 2 HRMEEHEEE -

Total

4Est

HK$'000

FET

Balance as at 1 January 2023 N_E _=—F—FB—HZ4&R 18,876

Recognition of ECL ERTEEEEE 7,876

Exchange realignment bE AR (592)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 and R_E_=ZF+"A=+—HK

1 January 2024 “EIMF—A—HZ&ER 26,160

Reversal of ECL BOFERAE SRR (837)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEWBAS (Fizks) (25,515)

Exchange realignment PE A% 79

Balance as at 31 December 2024 A _E_MNE+ "B =+—HZ4R (113)

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set

out in note 41.

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

TRHE EBIRsTAsr BRI EE41 ©

25. FAfIRRIE - & R HEMEURRIE

2024 2023
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Prepayments SEANE R 33,937 146 235
Deposits and other receivables & R H A EWRIE 63,678 189,380
97,615 335,615

Less: Allowance for expected credit B TERE EEEEE
losses (33,324) (48,565)
64,291 287,050

11740) China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FAMMIE - R HMEWRRIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (48)
Movement in the allowance for expected WEREMEWSIETEERS B E a1
credit losses of deposits and other receivables BEE
Movement in allowance for ECL that has been BE _ S _-—HK_T_WNE+_A
recognised for deposits and other receivables in —+—HLFEERESETBREE
accordance with general approach set out in HKFRS 9 B SRR — S AL mhin e K E M
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024. FEWERIEE R 2 TAER = SR 1E R #E
o
Total
“act
HK$'000
THET
Balance as at 1 January 2023 A B =F—H B4R 59,715
Reversal of ECL A EISEL Ry 58 = (10,073)
Exchange realignment bE s EE (1,077)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 and RZE2-_=F+"A=+—HkK
1 January 2024 “ETMF—HA—HZ&ER 48,565
Recognition of ECL HTRHAEERE 4,883
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) HEWBAE (H5E8) (19,418)
Exchange realignment bE s EE (706)
Balance as at 31 December 2024 RIE-_NE+ A =+—H2Z 48 33,324

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set
out in note 41.

As at 31 December 2024, approximately
HK$26,027,000 (2023: HK$241,180,000) was paid
as trade deposit and prepayments for trading of food
products.

Rental deposits for the warehouse amounting to
HK$22,183,000 (2023: HK$24,177,000).

TRHE SR A BN 41 -

RZE-@WME+ZB=+—H"
#26,027,0008 Tt (ZE =% :
241,180,000 7T) EXIEFAEE RS
2B REKRENRIE

BEESIZEA22,183,0008 T (T
T =4 124,177,000 7T) °

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

1 o =

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERREZLXEY
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash and bank balances (note) IR& RIR1T4EER 10,644 12,996
Cash and cash equivalents in the FEReERERPNIRER
consolidated statement of BEEEY
cash flows 10,644 12,996

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
amounted to HK$2,007,000 (2023: HK$2,572,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

Note: As at 31 December 2024, there were bank balances
of approximately HK$nil (2023: HK$1,000) freezed
due to litigation.
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, are as
follows:

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H
FEft 8 Z IR KR EAEE
RIREHRENE S RTIZEZ[E
ZARE DT

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within 1 month —@AA 8,831 10,768
1 to 2 months —EWEH 5,674 5,207
2 to 3 months ME=1EA 2,976 2,733
Over 3 months Ba=Ea 379 64,439
17,860 83,147

Bills payables FE 4R - 63,674
17,860 146,821

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 30-day terms (2023: 30-day
terms).

Included in trade payables are construction payables
amounted to approximately HK$105,709,000 as
at 31 December 2023 in which approximately
HK$62,362,000 are defaulted. During 31 December
2024, the defaulted construction payables were
released by completion of restructuring.

As at 31 December 2023, bills payables of
approximately HK$63,674,000 were secured by
investment properties with fair value of approximately
HK$294,831,000 and personal guarantee by
shareholder of the Company and related parties.

All the trade payables and bills payables are
denominated in Renminbi.

BUEZRABTEE  —MRIZ30BR
HH (—7——ﬂ5 30E||ZEHH) /\Dﬁo

AT =F+"HA=+—H ENLE
SR EIEE TFERA105,709,000
HBIT HA4962,362,0008 B EL ©
AT TNE+"H=+—H #EXE
T ITRRATERBAMARRR -

RIZEZ=F+ZA=+—8>Ef
ZIE4963,674,0008 TTHAABELN S
294,831,000 8 TR B ERAAE A
=] A% 3R e A Bt 75 VE LR B A SE (R IR ©

FRERMN B ZRMREMEZERHIUA
RHEtHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HtE(IRIERESER
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other payables Hh (I8 44,405 56,978
Accruals == 6,647 349,340
51,052 406,318

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

Included in other payables are amounted
to approximately HK$21,519,000 (2023:
HK$23,108,000) rental deposits received from the
tenants of logistic warehouse.

Included in the accruals:

i) the default interest of secured bond of
approximately HK$nil (2023: HK$135,360,000)
(note 30q);

i) the default interest of unsecured bond of
approximately HK$nil (2023: HK$10,766,000)
(note 30i);

iii) the default interest of unsecured bond of
approximately HK$nil (2023: HK$42,218,000)
(note 30j),

iv) the default interest of unsecured bond of
approximately HK$nil (2023: HK$141,000)

(note 30k);

V) the default interest of unsecured bond of
approximately HK$nil (2023: HK$31,856,000)
(note 30h);

Vi) the defaulted interest of other loans of
approximately HK$nil (2023: HK$3,449,000)
(note 30¢); and

Vii) the penalties from default construction
payables of approximately HK$nil (2023:
HK$69,486,000) (note 27).

During the year 31 December 2024, the accrued
default interest were released by the completion of

restructuring. Please refer to note 8 for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. EHAaE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET

Receipts in advance from customers BB ERTEWRET LA NIE

in relation to trading of products 7,278 7,872
Receipts in advance from customers — FHIER KMBHEBEWREERIE

in relation to construction and

development - 102,701
7,278 110,573
Movement in contract liabilities for the years ended BE_Z_=—_Fr_ZFT_MNE+ZA
31 December 2023 and 2024: =t+—HBIEFEEZENEEEE !
Construction
Trading of and
products development Total
BEER B -1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FEx
Balance at 1 January 2023 R_EZ=F—H—H
2 28,135 104,700 132,835
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result EFESRREM T AEH
of recognising revenue during the BRZEABA
year that was included in the contract B Z &4
liabilities at the beginning of the year ~ &1{&R/L (28,135) = (28,135)
Increase in contract liabilities excluding &XBEIEN FEEER
amounts recognised as revenue BRABWAZ &5
during the year 7,872 - 7,872
Exchange realignment ERAE = (1,999) (1,999)
Balance at 31 December 2023 and RW_E_=F+_H1
1 January 2024 =+—HERZZZOF
—B—Hz#&&% 7,872 102,701 110,573
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result EFERIREM St AESL
of recognising revenue during the BRZEABA
year that was included in the contract B Z &4
liabilities at the beginning of the year ~ &1{&R/L (7,872) = (7,872)
Increase in contract liabilities excluding &XBEIEN > FEEER
amounts recognised as revenue BRABWAZ &5
during the year 15,034 - 15,034
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEMB AT (HizE8) (7,605) (101,149) (108,754)
Exchange realignment FE R (151) (1,552) (1,703)
Balance at 31 December 2024 AZE_NE+_HA
—t+—Hz#&&% 7,278 = 7,278

FEIEATEEEEZERERAT 175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 o =

31 Dec
=T

30.

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2024
HE+_—_B=+—H
BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

30. RITHREMMEE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Secured bank loans (note a) BIRRIRITEMN
(FyzEa) 22,363 24,686
Unsecured other loans mITHEMER (IEEbES)

(notes b to f) 6,411 58,553
Secured bonds (note g) BIRRES (Wskg) - 109,000
Unsecured bonds (notes h to k) mIIRES (IEEhEk) - 249,414

28,774 441,653
Carrying amounts repayable RiE W ZPT & T B2 H A

within one year based on BR—FRNEENRESEE

scheduled payment dates set out

in the agreement 4,401 439,585
Carrying amounts not repayable BANRBREGHAERE—FAE

within one year from the end BEASREREERR

of reporting period but contain RE®% GInAsRBaRn)

a repayment on demand clause

(shown under current liabilities) 24,373 2,068

28,774 441,653
Less: amounts due within one year B AR AREBEN
shown under current liabilities — RN TR (28,774) (441,653)

Amounts shown under
non-current liabilities

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a

(b)

()

As at 31 December 2023, the secured bank
loans of approximately HK$24,686,000 was
secured by investment properties with fair value
of approximately HK$294,831,000 and personal
guarantee by shareholder of the Company and his
wife and related parties (Note 39(a)(i)).

As at 31 December 2024, the secured bank loan
of approximately HK$22,363,000 was secured by
personal guarantee by shareholder of the Company
and properties owned by shareholders of the
Company (Note 39(a)(iii)).

As at 31 December 2023, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$33,687,000 was borrowed from
Beidahuang Marketing Co. Ltd., the non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group. The
purpose for the loan was purchasing staple food and
liquor wine products. During 31 December 2024, the
unsecured other loan were released by completion of
restructuring.

As at 31 December 2023, unsecured other loans
of approximately HK$22,868,000 was borrowed
from independent third parties and approximately
HK$20,800,000 was matured and overdue for
repayment. The Group has received a winding up
petition issued by an unsecured loanholder for the
debt amount of approximately HK$10,714,000.
During 31 December 2024, the unsecured other
loans and default interest were released by
completion of restructuring. The default interest
amounted to approximately HK$3,449,000 with
default interest rate of 3% to 18% per annum (note
28).

As at 31 December 2023, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$1,998,000 was borrowed from a
shareholder of the Company (Note 39(a)(ii)).

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

30. RITKREMES (@)

MI5E

(a

RIBE_=ZF+"_F=+—H'B
AR T EFN4924,686,00078 7T /5
A 5 E49294,831,00058 TR E
MEEREBERBAAATDREREE
FURKBEE A EHEAER (H5E
39(a)(i)) °

RIEZME+"A=+—H"'BE
IIRIR1T B 4922,363,00078 775
HARBRRZEAERRETAF
IRRER < WEFER (5E39(a)
(iii)) °

RIBEZ=F+"A=+—H"&
R E Mt &R 4933,687,00078 775
EEAERNBERARNIFERRE
BAFEHRMARAT - ZEM
TRAGRBIBRERERAR
RIZE_MFE+—A=+—H &
IR E M E R A E A TR AR °

A B =ZF+_RB=+—H &
R Eth &30 4922,868,000% 7575
BEBBILE =75 &#%320,800,000%
TEEMIARER  AEBE W
-2 EIRIFEREE ARG E
FB49710,714,00058 08 BB %
EFE R _ZE_WE+_-_B=+—
B ®@IEREMERKENNE
RELATHMABR - ZEBNER
3% E18%stEHNENFENA
3,449,00078 7T (FF5£28) ©

WN_E_=F+"B=+—H &
AR E M E 41,998,000 T /5 &
BARRT—&IRE (F5E39()i0) °

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 IR R M EE

31 December 2024

—ETMFE+"A=1+—H

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

4 A
1 o =

30.

(e)

As at 31 December 2024, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$4,401,000 was borrowed from a
related party that shares a common director with the
Group. (note 39(a)(iv)).

As at 31 December 2024, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$2,010,000 was borrowed from an
independent third parties.

As at 31 December 2023, secured bond of
approximately HK$109,000,000 were borrowed from
an independent third party and secured by the equity
interests of two subsidiaries. The secured bond was
matured during the year ended 2019 and as at 31
December 2023 the default interest amounted to
approximately HK$135,360,000 with default interest
rate of 10%-30% per annum (note 28) (the “Default
Secured Bond”). During 31 December 2024, the
Default Secured Bond and its default interest were
released by completion of restructuring.

As at 31 December 2023, unsecured bonds of
approximately HK$64,000,000 was the principal
amount of matured convertible bonds. The default
interest was approximately HK$31,856,000 with
default interest rate of 10% per annum (note 28).
During 31 December 2024, the unsecured bonds and
its default interest were released by completion of
restructuring.
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30.

IRTTREMBEE (&)
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(e)

RIZBE_MFE+ZA=+—H &
IR E M ERRA94,401,0008 575 E
BE—RBAAEREARRERRH
75 o (FEE39(a)(iv)) °

RIBE_MFE+—A=+—H &
MR EAM ERR492,010,0008 575 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

As at 31 December 2023, unsecured bonds of
approximately HK$69,414,000 were borrowed
from independent third parties. Approximately
HK$69,414,000 was defaulted as at 31 December
2023. The Group has received a winding up petition
issued by an unsecured bondholder for the debt
amount of approximately HK$7,198,000 in respect
of approximately HK$6,100,000 of the unsecured
bonds. The default interest was approximately
HK$10,766,000 with default interest rate of 2%
to 6% per annum (Note 28). During 31 December
2024, the unsecured bonds and its default interest
were released by completion of restructuring.

As at 31 December 2023, unsecured bonds of
approximately HK$111,100,000 was the principal
amount of matured convertible bonds. The
unsecured bonds was matured during the year ended
2021 and the default interest was HK$42,218,000
with default interest rate of 12% per annum (Note
28). During 31 December 2024, the unsecured bonds
and its default interest were released by completion
of restructuring.

As at 31 December 2023, unsecured bonds of
approximately HK$4,900,000 was borrowed from
independent third party. The unsecured bonds were
matured. The default interest was approximately
HK$141,000 with default interest of 1% per annum
(note 28). During 31 December 2024, the unsecured
bonds and its default interest were released by
completion of restructuring.

30.

(i)

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

TREMBE (&)
Mok -

(&)

RIEZ=F+"B=+—H"
ﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁw4mom%mﬁ@§
BMYE=H - RIE_=F+"F8
=+—H>#%69,414,00058 TH X
o REE B FE4Y6,100,00058 7T
ZEILEES WE — % EIKRE
ERFBEABLEERE2H B
FB497%7,198,0008 73 « B EF
2% E6%t EMENFENS
10,766,000/ 7t (fi5E28) - &
—WME+ZB=+—H  BEKFE
HEREBHON B R E 45T AL MR
|§$o

RZEZ=F+ZF=+—8>
?&?ﬁﬁ%%%“8111,100,000&%7EJ52%§
AR ES 2 AEE BIKFE
ERBE_T_—FILFEERMm
WEBHENRI12% BELNT B
#42,218,00058 7T (MI5E28) -
“WME+ZB=+—H EIKHF
BEEREBOF ERE AT ME
|§,:_Aﬁo

ATE=E+Z/A=+—8>
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UE=H - EIRHESCEM RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 o =

31 Dec
=T

30.

31.

B F5ER R MY EE
ember 2024
mE+—"A=+—H
BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 30. RITREMEES (&)
The above bank and other borrowings that are FaRITREMEEXUERERS
denominated in currencies other than the functional BETHRE S M DISNM S EHE > 5.5 W
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out T
below:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
RMB AR 28,774 81,989
HK$ BT - 359,664
28,774 441,653
The ranges of interest rates on the Group’s bank and AEESRTEEMESHHXEEN
other borrowings are as follows: T
2024 2023
% %
Secured bank loans BIEFIRITER

(note a) (MyzEa) 3.65 4.80-5.00
Unsecured other loans EITHEMER (EEbES)

(notes b to f) 9.00-12.00 3.00-18.00
Secured bonds (note g) BIRFES (Wskg) Zz 10.00
Unsecured bonds (notes h to k) HMILIRES HEEhEK) F 1.00-12.00
DEFERRED TAX 31. IRIEFRIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MR SRR Rxh Y 25 mM= &
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax TFIRIERIBE EHEEEMEIEHE 7

assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purpose:

MHBEE2RENETZEERBERD
DT -

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets FICRRIEE E (7,885) (5,855)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 17,082 29,928
9,197 24,073
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during
the current and prior years.

31.

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

IRIEFRIE (48)
Kﬁﬁ%&@ﬁiﬁﬁmziﬁ ¢ JIE

Revaluation  Accumulated
of investment losses
property recognised Total
B B2
REME REtEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FTET TER
Deferred tax liabilities at “Z-=F—-H—H
1 January 2023 ZLLﬁEQﬁ 30,415 (5,969) 24,446
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FRFAGEBRENEMNZE
statement of profit or loss and other WARKR ZIELRE
comprehensive income during (M5x12)
the year (note 12) 358 - 358
Exchange realignment ERHE (845) 114 (731)
Deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2023 and R-Z-=F+"A=+—Hk
1 January 2024 “Z_ME-A—-RAZ
EERBEE 29,928 (5,855) 24,073
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FEREFA
statement of profit or loss and other FeEERRHEMZA
comprehensive income during WARERZ RN
the year (note 12) (fzE12) (438) = (438)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEMBAE (H3E8) (11,692) (2,224) (13,916)
Exchange realignment ERHE (716) 194 (522)
Deferred tax liabilities at RIZZME+ZB=1+—HZ
31 December 2024 EEREER 17,082 (7,885) 9,197

Tax losses of approximately HK$4,212,000 was arising
in Mainland China (2023: HK$69,094,000) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

FA R PO 3 AR FR TS5 $81494,212,000
Bt (ZE =4 69,094,000/ 7T) 7]

R—ERAFANBERRRRERRE
FleoeBEMZEHEERIELEREBE
B RRARERBEIKREEEE—K
Rz HEB AR HRRITEERR G
A BRI EEIR B I8 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 o =

31 Dec
-

32.

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2024

“mE+—"B=+—H

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group’s lease liabilities arise from the lease of
properties of 5 to 10 years (2023: 2 to 10 years).
Interest rate underlying for the lease was from 4.97%
10 6.97% (2023: 6.90% to 6.97%) per annum.

At 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the
Group had lease liabilities repayable as follows:

32.

HEaRE
AEBZHEEBEELENRSEI10EFE (T
ETZF I2F105) WYEHEE-HE
HEZEMNRKNF4.97%E6.97% (Z
T =1F 1 6.90%FE6.97%) e

RZE-MFE+"A=+—HkKkZ
—_=F+ZRA=+—8" K%@%Ea
ZHEEERNT:

Present value

of the minimum
lease payments

Total minimum
lease payments

RIEHE RIEHE

fIRRE (RS
2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FTET TERT THET
Within 1 year —ER 16,636 32,408 21,440 43,062
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBEMEA 17,785 16,594 21,440 21,413
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRBLEN 44,898 56,998 50,503 64,239
Over 5 years REME - 5,704 - 5,865
79,319 111,704 93,383 134,579
Less: total future interest expenses B RRF B AR (14,064) (22,875)
Present value of lease liabilities HEABRE 79,319 111,704

Lease obligations denominated in RMB was
approximately HK$31,723,000 as at 31 December
2024 (2023: HK$37,613,000).

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk
with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are
monitored within the Group's treasury function.
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024

“EOmFE+Z“A=+—H
SHARE CAPITAL 33. @7
Shares B
2024 2023 2024 2023
Number Number
(| #E
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T TAT TAET
Authorised: T
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 SREE10BTH
EEk 16,000,000 16,000,000 1,600,000 1,600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBERY
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each SREEC.10ETH
BiEhk
At 1 January A—HA—H 6,332,312 6,313,366 633,231 631,337
Issued for debt restructuring (note b) BB EAMELT
(Fff=Zb) 1,227,880 - 122,788 -
Exercised share option BiTFRERE
(note a) (Fi#5ta) - 18,946 - 1,894
31 December +-R=+—H 7,560,192 6,332,312 756,019 633,231
Note: MtsE -
(a) 18,946,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were (a) HBRER —E—+F /B LBEH

(b)

issued as a result of exercise of share options under
the share options scheme adopted on 9 June 2017 in
which 16,350,000 shares issued on 16 March 2023
and 2,596,000 shares issued on 13 June 2023.

1,227,880,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
were issued as part of the restructuring agreement
dated 25 January 2024. The Company has
allotted and issued 850,000,000 Subscription
shares to the Investor under restructuring
agreement and 377,879,793 scheme shares
to the scheme company under the creditors’
scheme on 4 December 2024. Please refer to
note 8 for further details.

NERES BT EERETERE
1718,946,0000 SR EE0.108 T
Z&@IR > HH16,350,0000% R 1%
RZIEBEZ=F=B+NB#TK
2,596,000 MR T =F8
+=RB%17°

1,227,880,000/% & B¢ E(E0.10%8 7T
ZEREET 1FAHBEA TS

TME—-B-_t+hAZEMABE—
R AATDER T _MNE+—
BUHBREEABZERKREEILE
R #£17850,000,00008 L& RS 15 » I
RIFEEAGTEEFEA Tﬁaé}%&
2%17377,879,793P8 51 I BE 15 o

T IEE SRS
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mE+"ZA=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates two share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group. A share option scheme was adopted by
the Company on 23 May 2007 (“2007 Scheme™)
and terminated on 22 May 2017, and a new share
option scheme (“2017 Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June
2017 ("Adoption Date”). The 2017 Scheme, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2017 Scheme and
under any other schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the date of the passing of the resolution for
the adoption of the 2017 Scheme. The total number
of shares issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each eligible person in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company or having
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

A grant of options may not be made after inside
information has come to the knowledge of the
Company until it has been published. In particular,
no options may be granted during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of the date of the Board meeting for
the approval of the Company’s results for any year,
half-year, quarterly or any other interim period
and the deadline for the Company to publish an
announcement of its results for any year, half-year,
quarterly or any other interim period. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the 2017 Scheme shall
be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price must be at least
the higher of the official closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant, the average of the official
closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant and the
nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

34.
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31 December 2024
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BERGHEESTE (4B)
The following share options were outstanding under FER T B —tE=E BTG
the 2017 Scheme during the year: HARITEE
2024 2023

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price Number of  exercise price Number of
per share options per share options

hEFg I
SkiTEE BREHE SROTRE  BREHE
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
BT T3 BT T3
At 1 January R—B—H 0.10 399,754 0.10 418,700
Lapsed during the year FREXN 0.10 (399,754) - -
Exercised during the year ERITHE - - 0.10 (18,946)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H - - 0.10 399,754

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

R|BER > RTEBRENITEER

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TEEANF :
period are as follows:
2024 “ETTmE
Number of
Grantees options Exercise price* Exercise period
EEA B EHE TEE 171EHA
‘000 HK$ per share
TF1n SRAET
Directors - Nil & 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
5% T —FB+—HE
“ETMFRATH
Other employees - Nil & 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
Hifg & B —FRA+—HE
“ETMFERATH
Consultants - Nil & 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
Eaf T —FB+—HE
“ETMFRATH
- Nil &
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2024 (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Number of share options

e B EmRRMEE
31 December 2024
—EE+_"_B=+—H
34. FERRHESTEI (1B
—TME (@)

BREYE
At Exercised Granted Cancelled Lapsed At Date of Exercise price
Name or category of 1 January during during during the during the 31 December  grant of Exercise period of of share
participant 2024 the year the year year year 2024 share options share options options
® RZZZmE
—E-mE +ZA
SEERANER —-A-H FRTE FREH FREH FREX =+-B BREEHAS BRETES BRETEE
HKS per share
BRET
Directors
=
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RRERE ZBT-fF 2 -FB+-RHE
~A+-H “B-mERATH
900,000 S S = (900,000) =
Other Employees
HitiES
In aggregate 1,854,000 - - - (1,854,000 - 11Jun 2021 11 Jun 2021 to 10 Jun 2024 0.10
it - BT -F5A+-HE
~B+—B ZZMERBTAH
Consultants
B
In aggregate 397,000,000 S S - (397,000,000 - 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
a5t & BT -F/AT-HE
ART—H 2 mERATA
399,754,000 = S - (399,754,000) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2024
—ETMFE+"A=1+—H

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BERGHEESTE (4B)
2023 —E=F
Number of
Grantees options Exercise price* Exercise period
EEA fERiEHE TEE 171EHA
‘000 HK$ per share
15 BRET
Directors 900 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
5% —E_—HFAB+—H=E
“ETMFERA+TH
Other employees 1,854 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
Hithfg& B —HFB+—H=E
—EHWFRBTH
Consultants 397,000 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
B —E_—HFB+—HE
“ETMFERA+TH
399,754 0.10
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to * EHENARBTHAREREAH

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or

other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
—EE+_"_B=+—H

- A S ==
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BERGRESTE (48)
2023 (continued) TEBE-=F (8B
Number of share options
BREHE
At Exercised Granted Cancelled Lapsed At Date of Exercise price
Name or category of 1 January during during during the during the 31 December  grant of Exercise period of of share
participant 2023 the year the year year year 2023 share options share options options
® it it 3
- St +ZA
SEERANER —-A-H FRITE FREH FREH FREXR =+-B BREEHAS BRETES BRETEE
HKS per share
BRET
Directors
=
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 900,000 (900,000) = ~ = - 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
(IS . ZBT-F
~At+-H
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa 900,000 = = ~ = 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RRERE ZBT-fF 2 -FB+-RHE
~A+-H “B-mERATH
1,800,000 (900,000) S = S 900,000
Other Employees
HitiES
In aggregate 19,900,000 (18,046,000) S = S 1,854,000 11 Jun 2021 11 Jun 2021 to 10 Jun 2024 0.10
it ZBT-f BT -F5A+-HE
~B+—8 —EMERATA
Consultants
B
In aggregate 397,000,000 S S = S 397,000,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
st ZST-F ZE-E5A+-RE
ART—H ZB_MERATH
418,700,000 (18,946,000) S = S 399,754,000
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34.

BARS SR M
ember 2024
mE+—"A=+—H
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BERGHEESTE (4B)
The fair value of services received in return for share DS ERE#ERENREZADET
options granted is measured by reference to the RBPIEHERENANESE - ER
fair value of share options granted. The fair value EREAEEREADAEREY B R
of equity-settled share options during the year was Ao_EREpEEEESEEGE &
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial BRI E R G UL R B %
option pricing model, taking into account the terms > FEBEL - PR FFAEHE
and conditions and following assumptions adopted EER
upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:
Grant date
11 June 2021
BB
ZEZ—F
~A+—H
Fair value at measurement date REt2B8ZzANE
(HK$ per share options) (B EBEREET) 0.034
Dividend yield (%) f% B (%) =
Expected volatility (%) TERR R ME(%) 107
Historical volatility (%) & SR 1E(%) 107
Risk-free interest rate (%) % @ f A1) (%) 0.16
Expected life of options (years) BRETEEFEE () 3
Weighted average share price MEEHRE (ERET)
(HK$ per share) 0.10
Closing share price (HK$ per share) W RE (B AT 0.068

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.
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34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
had 399,754,000 share options outstanding
under the 2017 Scheme. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 399,754,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$39,975,000.

The total number of shares available for issue under
the 2017 Scheme is 399,754,000 in 31 December
2023 representing approximately 6.31% of shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured
by the assets of the Group, are included in notes
27 and 30, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

34.

35.

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

RERRfEstEl (48)
ROBRESEEMEERMAALIR
BEREtE-

BE_Z-__"F+°“HA=+—HL
FEC>ARARBEZIZE—t F5tE
5399,754,000 BRI R{TH
EARNBRNERAEBT  BHITE
HRITEERESERAQBEIT
399,754,0008% ZE5ME 48 I% K 3 0 AR 25
39,975,000 7T, ©

RZEZ=F+Z8A=+—8> =%
— T FFHBETAIHEET RN
#3399,754,0008% > 89 (h AR A B R A F
WA BEITRINZ6.31%°

BEEERR
FEBNHEEFRBRRZRITENREF
BO RS GR S IR R 5275300
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36.

37.
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain properties for rental income
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to five years.

As Lessors

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group has
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

36.

mEEERH
AEERBEEHEZHEEETY
FUESHESWA - WEHERES—
ERFHE

ERHEA
R_E_NFEFR_ZFE_=F+2"AH
=+—HB> AERHEBL U TRER
RAENMETIN

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FRN 42,219 54,483
In the second to fifth years F_FEERTF 146,085 32,127
Beyond five years B A E 10,198 847
198,502 87,457

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases
are negotiated for an average term from two to three
years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do
not include contingent rentals.

KEHENREREEMREETHA
EYERNGZEE - HENF IR
BAamE=F > BESRNERNEE
AEESAEE-

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. ﬁzl&ﬂ}%
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Capital expenditure in respect of the ~ BRIEINERNREGETTH
construction cost of properties for WRERPEEZHFEMERER
sale contracted for but not provided A 2 B AR
in the consolidated financial
statement - 7,262

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a
registered scheme under the MPF Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employers and their employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
a rate specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by employees
and capped at HK$1,500 per month.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees employed by the entities in the PRC
are members of the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
entities are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government is to make the
specific contributions under the schemes.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

38.

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H
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4 AR

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“ETMFE+"A=

+—H

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related parties transactions:

(a) Transactions with related parties and
connected transactions

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2023, the bank loan
of HK$24,686,000 (note 30(a)) and bills
payables of HK$63,674,000 (note 27)
were guaranteed by Shenzhen Jianlai
Industrial Co., Ltd. CRIITERKEXE
FR’AF)), a related party of the Group in
which the shareholder of the Company
has beneficial ownership, shareholder of
the Company and his wife.

At 31 December 2023, the unsecured
other loan of HK$1,998,000 (note 30(d))
was borrowed from the shareholder of
the Company.

At 31 December 2024, the bank loan of
HK$22,363,000 was guaranteed by the
shareholder of the Company and their
properties. (note 30(a)).

At 31 December 2024, unsecured other
loan of approximately HK$4,401,000
was borrowed from a related party that
shares a common director with the
Group. (note 30(e)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. B KR H RS REEER (18)
BALANCES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) HERABAZHKRERLERR
2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b FHET FAET
Due to related parties P& 1< B Bt 75 7R 1B
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TR E 10,290 3,900
10,290 3,900

Notes:
(i) An-ex-director of the Company.

The balances with other related parties are

FY5E
(i) RABIRIESE

SHE MR TS 2 A5 bR A IR

unsecured, interest free and repayable on RERBRERER
demand.
Compensation of key management () FEBEABZHM
personnel
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Short term employee benefits ~ 52HRE E&EF 2,854 3,800
Post-employment benefits BER R ER - 51
Total compensation paid to S'ZHYT'IE SEYN ="t
key management personnel 4B%A 2,854 3,851

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EREENE 2 E—FFBH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2024

TEIME+TZA=t—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

40.

RENESTHNEMIA
REBESHR SRR T AKEETR

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T
period are as follows:
Financial assets SREE
2024 2023
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised amortised
cost cost
i g 5
BAFERZ ATk Z
ERMEE THMEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Byt FTHET FHET
Trade receivables FEUEE ZBRTX 24 12,209 126,787
Financial assets included in STATEIFRIA
prepayments, deposits and other & REMEK
receivables MEZETHEE 25 30,354 140,815
Loan receivables EWE= 18 = 194,597
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBEHEY 26 10,644 12,996
53,207 475,195

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024




40.

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. HEHASHERITA (B)
(continued)
Financial liabilities SEiEE
2024 2023
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
sl RN R R A
FERZ HERZ
ERARE ERMEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
By sE THET FHERT
Trade and bills payables BN E SRR ENEE 27 17,860 146,821
Financial liabilities included STAEMBEARIER
in other payables and accruals BHERzEHER 28 51,052 406,318
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 30 28,774 441,653
Amounts due to related parties  FE{TREEE 5 018 39 10,290 3,900
Lease liabilities HEEE 32 79,319 111,704
187,295 1,110,396
The carrying amounts of the above balances LR RETEEAEAAERSE -
approximate to their fair values.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  41. £RIEMBEBEZBEREE

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related
parties, lease liabilities and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

FEEZIESHIAGFERTRAE
& FEIRAE S IR THE & E X
RBRERkBEEEY -ZEETMIAZ
TEENREELERKEERTER
FEEAENBREZRAKENLE
SERMEZEEMEREERER Z
FEMEERBRINEEBPEE
EEo

FEBEMIBEZTEZRRANEE
B NERE s EERBKRABERE
FoBEEMA KB EEERRAER
KR ARAR BRI o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk mainly in relation to variable rate bank balances.
The Group's exposure to fair values interest rate risk is
mainly caused by lease liabilities and fixed-rate bank
and other borrowing. The Group monitors the interest
rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts
the portfolio of bank balances, lease liabilities and
borrowings where necessary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant exposure to cash flow interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of
the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, except for certain bank balances denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“"HKD") and United States
dollars (“USD"). The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange rate risk.

The Group currently does not expect any significant
movements in the exchange rate of USD to HKD and it
is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in RMB.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management monitors
the foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currently exposure should
the need arise.
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, advances
to associates, loan receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and expected credit loss. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 100% (2023: 97%) of
the total financial assets as at 31 December 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

1 o =

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 41, SRIEAMEEZEHERKE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) FEERRE @
Trade receivables (continued) EWE SR (&
Approximately 70.0% and 75.2% of total trade N_E_=ZER_E_NE+_AH
receivables outstanding at 31 December 2023 =+ —BFXEEEKNE S IEHIERE
and 2024 respectively were due from top 5 trade SRAIT70.0% K75 2% 5B B A FEUR
receivables which exposed the Group to concentration BEES W AEB Y EESRMED-
of credit risk.
Past due
Past due from Past due
Not within~ 3110 120 over
past due 30 days days 120 days Total
el el bkl
As at 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+"A=1+—H PNk 30HR  31E120H  #81B120H ast
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate BHEERE (BREERR) X 889%  1248%  2257%  2554%  17.10%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SRAAE (TET) 62,171 9,397 44,545 36,834 152,947
Lifetime ECL (HK'000) 2HBBEERE (T (5,525) (1,173 (10,055) (9,407) (26,160
56,646 8,224 34,490 27,427 126,787
Past due
Past due from  Past due
Not within 3110 120 over
past due 30 days days 120 days Total
bl el bl
As at 31 December 2024 RZE-NE+-A=+-H KiaH 30HR 31E1208 #i81208 st
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate BHEERRE (BHEEEHE) X 092% N/ARER NAFER NATER 0,92%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREAE (TET) 12,322 - - - 12,322
Lifetime ECL (HK'000) 2HEREERE (TET) (113) - - = (113)
12,209 - - - 12,209
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables BE LB EWE R B M ENET

vl

In determining the ECL of the Group's advances to
associates, loan receivables and other receivables, the
management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on general economic conditions
of the relevant industry in which the debtors operate,
value of any pledged assets, financial position of the
debtors and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.

The Group’'s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 97% (2023: 99%) of the
total financial assets as at 31 December 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
“EEFE+ZRB=+—H
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 41. £ HIEAMEET BIEREE (8)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) FEERRE @
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables B\ T8 5 EINE = R B e
(continued) IE (4#8)

As as 31 December 2023
A

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F—IEE 5 EER BMEER wast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTAET TET AT AT

Loan receivables, gross FEl &z 200,738 10,416 89,652 300,806
Less: ECL on loan receivables B ENERZBREE

SE= (13,347) (3,210) (89,652) (106,209)

Loan receivables, net BUWEFE 187,391 7,206 - 194,597

As as 31 December 2024
RZZ2_ME+_A=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

R FIREE A st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT TERT TET THET

Loan receivables, gross el iz = = = =
Less: ECL on loan receivables HENES BREE

SE= - - - -

Loan receivables, net EWERFE - = = =

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRMEE
31 December 2024
“E2Omg+"A=+—H
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 41.
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
(continued)
Movements for ECL of loan receivables are as follows:

TREAREEZ BRREER (8)

EEmRE (8

BERE B BN E T RE MERL

B (#8)

RWERBREEHEEZHNT !

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEER FREER BMER szt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTAT FTHET TAT
At 1 January 2023 R_E_=F—H—H 10,007 3,374 91,145 104,526
Transfer of stages PR EREES S = = =
Net allowance for ECL ERERZEHREE
on loan receivables BlaREFE 3,464 (99) = 3,365
Exchange realignment R (124) (65) (1,493) (1,682)
As at 31 December 2023 and RZBT=F
1 January 2024 +ZR=+—8Bk
B NE-B—H 13,347 3,210 89,652 106,209
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEMBRAE (8 (13,145) (3,161) (88,296) (104,602)
Exchange realignment ER R (202) (49) (1,356) (1,607)
As at 31 December 2024 RZEZmE
+-B=+—H - - - -

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
—ECmE+"A=1+—H
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  41. SFIE[EEIE Y BIEREE (@)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERE (B

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables BE LGB ENEN R EMEK
(continued) IE (4

The major terms of our loan receivable customers BRAEKERELANEIEER (BFR
(including the dates of initial grant, renewal and REH-BEMINPRP - FIERAE
maturity, interest rate and principal amount), the value ) ZDEEIRBREBE -KEEEFS
of asset collateral, and the outstanding loan amounts ERTEHAESEE (TTBEEEE1E))
and accumulated loss allowance of expected credit FtEEBEERTT

losses ("ECL") are summarized as follows:

Gross amount Loan receivable

of loan ECL asat
Loan receivable allowance 20231231, Value of
Initial grant Date of Maturity date Interest principal asat asat net of asset
date of loan loan renewal of loan rate amount 20231231 2023.1231 ECLallowance collateral

KZBZZf gt
g +ZB +ZR=t+-H
12 =+-B2 ZElER

BREL =t-H2  BEGE NRBEER BE
BH%AM BRENAN LEgE]E HE  ERAEE RUEREE  GRAR FiRfE HRRREE
(RMB) (HK'000) (HK'000) (HKO00)  (HKS'000)
(ARH) (FE7m) (F#m) (A7) (FEn

Stage 1 (initial ~ E—ME

recognition) ({5 HERR)

Customer C ZAC 2018.03.09 2023.03.09 2024.03.08 10% 23,000 21811 (1,622) 26,249 51,889
“2-\¥=ARR ZECZEZAAR ZZCMEZRANA

Customer D ZED 2017.04.16 2023.04.14 2024.04.15 10% 22,000 26,660 (1,55) 25,108 49,229
“5-tEmAtAE CECCEMBYMA CERCMEMATEA

Customer E REE 2018.03.2 2023.032 2024.03.01 10% 22,000 26,660 (1,552) 25,108 49273
ZT-\f=BZF IZIZEZFIE ZZIMEZR-A

Customer F RAF 2022.09.07 2023.07.07 2024.07.06 12% 16,000 19,389 (1,128) 18,261 35418
Z3ITEAATH  IECZEAtH ZECMELARH

Customer G ZAG 2020.07.19 2023.07.19 2024.07.18 12% 16,000 19,389 (1,128) 18,261 31,79
“ECRELATAR CECZEtATAR ZBCMEtRYAA

Customer J ZE) 2017.10.20 2023.10.20 2024.10.19 12% 15,000 18,177 (1,058) 17,19 211
ZE2-tEtAZHH ZECZEHAITH ZZIRETATAB

Customer L REL 2018.11.09 2023.11.09 2024.11.08 12% 15,000 18177 (1,058) 17,19 37,374
Z5-\Et-BAR ZECZET-BAH ZECMET-ANA

Other customers  EfIER various various various 1%-12% a 4445 (4,249) 40,166 78618
G G TE TEE

Stage 2 (credit KRR

impaired) (E&HE)

Customer | ZAI 2017.071.22 2023.07.22 2024.07.21 12% 9,000 10416 (3210) 7,206 18,421
e St 3R
tAZ+-A tAZtZA tAZ+-A

FEIEATEEEEZERERAT 203
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=] A =
e B RRMEE
31 December 2024
B2+ _"A=+—H
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 41. ﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁ'&qIEZE$¥i&ﬁ% (ﬁ%)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE @)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables e\ B2 BN B2 F B M E =
(continued) H (#)
Gross amount Loan receivable
of loan ECL asat
Loan receivable allowance 2231231, Value of
Initial grant Date of Maturity date Interest principal asat asat net of asset
date of loan loan renewal of loan rate amount 20231231 2023.12.31 ECLallowance  collateral
Sk St Sk Jnt
KIEIz% +ZF  +IB=t+-H
12 Z+-Bz 2Rl
AR =+-A2 FlES MNRBEE BE
BREH EEERAS ERIEA i ERseE RKEREH Rk BREE HRRER
(RMB) (HK'000) (HK'000) (HK'000)  (HK$'000)
(AE®) (FEn) (FEn) (FEn  (FE0)
Stage 3 (credit- =B
impaired) ([E&HE)
Customer A ZPA 2017.05.18 2019.05.18 2021.05.17 18% 14,250 16,730 (16,730) - 21,504.00
“Z-tERAHN\E ZE-AEREHNE ZEI-FRATtH
Customer A ZEA 2017.06.01 2019.05.18 2021.05.31 12% 19,500 22,893 (22,893) - 30,085.00
“Z-t553A-B  ZE-AERAHN\H ZEZI-F
1R=1-H
Customer A ZEA 2017.06.01 2019.06.01 2021.0531 12% 7,000 8219 (8,219 - 10971.00
Z5-tEXA-B TE-NERB-B B
BE=+-H
Customer A ZPA 2017.11.10 2019.11.10 2021.11.09 18% 13,400 15733 (15,733) - 51,533.00
“2-tEt-B+E ZE-NEH-BTH ZEI-E+-AAE
Customer B ZFB 2019.02.21 2020.02.21 20211231 12% 26,000 26,077 (26,077) - 57513.00
it 2 -t 43 w2
ZRZt-A ZAZ+-H TZR=t-H
TOTAL: 300,806 (106,209) 194,597

it

To the best of the knowledge, information and belief
of the Directors and having made all reasonable
enquiries, each of the borrowers and security providers
and their respective ultimate beneficial owners is a
third party independent of and not connected with
the Company, its connected persons or associates.
All the loans were made under finance leasing
arrangements, with pledged non-current assets valued
at above the principal amount of the loan provided
by the borrowers as collateral to fortify the repayment
obligations of the loans. The pledged non-current
assets used as collaterals are normally machineries
or production lines, the exact types of which would
normally depend on the nature of operating activities
of the collateral providers, ranging from mining
equipment, crane, plastic molding machines or
metallic wiring machines. As the Group is contractually
entitled to enforce the sales of the collaterals if the
loans default, the Board considers that the availability
of the pledged non-current assets collaterals should
provide higher certainty on the recoverability of the
loans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
“EEFE+ZRB=+—H
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 41. £ HIEAMEET BIEREE (8)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) FEERRE @
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables B\ T8 5 EINE = R B e
(continued) IE (4#8)

As as 31 December 2023
ATE_=FE+°"F=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F—MER SR E=[EE “st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TAT TAT TAT

Other receivables, gross HiERIEAE 154,490 = 34,890 189,380
Less: Lifetime ECL on other A EtEREEY
receivables SHEHEE

B8 (13,675) = (34,890) (48,565)

Other receivables, net HEW B %58 140,815 = = 140,815

As as 31 December 2024
RZZZmE+=A=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

B 5 PRER FRE FeHy

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT TERT TAET TAET

Other receivables, gross Al IER R 69,704 - 27,911 97,615
Less: Lifetime ECL on other B HEREIEZ
receivables SHEHEE

B8 (5413) - (27,911) (33,324)

Other receivables, net HihEW B 28 64,291 - - 64,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

31 December 2024
TEIME+TZA=t—H

1 o =

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. £REMRSIBEZEEREE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (@&
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables ) G B2 I B 20 FY B 1=
(continued) IE (#8)
Movements for ECL of other receivables are as follows: HhEWHIETEHR = EEEE88sHn T .
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PRE FIRE BMEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET FET THERT
At 1 January 2023 R_E_=F—HA—H 30,439 S 29,276 59,715
Transfer of stage P ER e (73) = 73 -
(Reversal)/Provision of ECL BHESER BR) /
B (16,173) - 6,100 (10,073)
Exchange realignment ER R (518) - (559) (1,077)
As at 31 December 2023 and R_E_=F
1 January 2024 +ZA=+—-Hk
ZEINE—F—H 13,675 S 34,890 48,565
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEWBAR (H5E8) (13,338) = (6,080) (19,418)
Provision of ECL BHEEHEER 4,883 - - 4,883
Exchange realignment ER R 193 - (899) (706)
As at 31 December 2024 RZIZZMmE
+ZA=+-H 5413 - 2791 33,324

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ra MR RMEE
31 December 2024
—EomEt-A=+—H
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁqi225$%&ﬁ% (,%E)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (@)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables )\ G B2 I B 20 FY B I =
(continueq) 1B (42)
As at 31 December 2023
RZZZ=F+"A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MHEER B EER SR 4Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT THET TAT
Advances to associates, gross e AR B = 98,097 = 98,097
Less: ECL on advances to associates 3 - Bi& AT Rz
BHEERR - (35,446) - (35,446)
Advances to associates, net HE AR BIEEE = 62,651 = 62,651
As at 31 December 2024
RZZ_ME+_A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MEE FPEER B mst
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TERT TERT
Advances to associates, gross HE N RIBE - 3,875 - 3,875
Transfer of stage PR BE - (3,875) 3,875 =
Less: ECL on advances to associates 38 - Bi& AT Rz
REAEEESE - - (3,875) (3,875)

Advances to associates, net

BEADBIFE

REERREXREMERBRAR

2024 F1§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

1 o =

31 December 2024
TEIME+TZA=t—H

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. SRIAMEEZEEREE (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (@)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables BE NGB BN EZ S B M EED
(continued) IE (#8)
Movements for allowance for ECL of advances to MENTRA B EHIERED
associates are as follows: T -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MEE B B=EER 4zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET AT AT AT
As at 1 January 2023 R_E_=&—HF—H = 36,905 - 36,905
Reversal for ECL on advances to = NCI e 2l
associates EEEEBED - (754) = (754)
Exchange realignment EREE = (705) = (705)
As 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=%F
1 January 2024 +ZR=+—Hk
2 mE—-A-H - 35,446 = 35,446
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEMBAT (izs) - (32,753) = (32,753)
Transfer of stage B B = (1,746) 1,746 =
Provision for ECL on advances to =Nt s 1
associates EEEBEE - - 2,173 2,173
Exchange realignment fE R AR - (947) (44) (991)
As 31 December 2024 RZIEZME
+ZBA=+—-H - - 3,875 3,875
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
(continued)

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables are
categorised into the following stages by the Group:

Stage 1

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
have not experienced a significant increase in credit
risk since origination and impairment recognised on
the basis of 12 months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
to customers have experienced a significant increase
in credit risk since origination and impairment is
recognised on the basis of lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs
non credit-impaired).

Stage 3

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables that
are in default and considered credit impaired (Lifetime
ECLs credit impaired).

41.

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

TRHEMRESIEZBEREE (B)

EEmRE (8

BER B BN E T REMERL
1 (#)

ZIK%%IFHHF%’AT@ o R E R
thEWRIAD B U T B ERER
E—MEE

BERAR RN B E R E MRS

B EERBBEEURTL EBEEY
1B 3128 B TRHAE &8 (128878
HHTEI ﬁ)&j?ﬁ) E,J%’—%EEDLMW{EO

Eo
BERARRN BE R ERREMR
HZEERBBELED R IREER
B R EHATAREEEE LEEEHR
BZ2HEREERR NEERDA
Be
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EHRBE AT RN BRERREM
BWRIBREAHREERE (FERE

Z2REREEER) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMEE

1 o =

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
(continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk of advances to
associates, loan and other receivables has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the advances
to associates, loan and other receivables assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is past due for more than 90 days.
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in loan and other receivables from external or
internal credit rating (if available);

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group; and

- the financial asset is past due.

Cash at bank

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk
is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks.

Therefore, ECL rate of cash at bank is assessed to be
close to zero and no provision was made as of 31
December 2023 and 2024.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual

Report 2024

41.

TREAREEZ BRREER (8)

EEmRE (8
BERE B BN E T RE MERL
B (#8)

REHEBE AR BRER R EM
RWRIBEZ EE AR B 7P RSB UK
ERRBEME ZEBSLERNES
HEA KRR S ERD BRTEZBER
BRI R E TR B A FE WRR IR PR H
RZEBHWRR - RIFLENTEE > &
EERA HOBRANKAERARE
EEBRERNEFIERM WHFA)
ETHZBERTAFERTHNH
FEEEME,; HilEMEEDEIBIED
B AERENESF AEEEEES
B EEBREMER 8EBEL
BEREBAMEIUEMEHEE
FIERZAREEER -

BT S RS 5 B A IR 5 75 s
DURAE AN A EEEE L
TEN

—  BWERKHEMEWRIRSINER
HAEMEETAR WA) 2 BIEN
TRHREERIE

- AR WHE EERERREZ
RENBRREHHEHFART
HHNAEBRSEZENEERXR
THEE &

- ZHMBEEBRS-

RITH=E
MEBRETZREMS  EERKERK
BABE LIHREFATHEERY
AUSRTT

It - SR1TIR & 2 R E BB IR ER KT
ERBLAZERBE_T_=FK_
TNFE+"A=+—HILERE
o



41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. £HEMRSIEZEEREE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REEERE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds KAEBMNBARKE M REED T BB
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool B AS T EHESH T AN
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments SHEE WEKEZES R EMEK
and financial assets (e.g., trade and other receivables) ;I8 WEEE A RTEREEEL IR
and projected cash flows from operations. Ee
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance NEBEEBEABRIETESHREM
between continuity of funding and flexibility through S E SRS EERE T
the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities REREHA R ) AEBENR DT B KREE
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the HHzemaEs8ETmT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2024
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest On Within 1to Over undiscounted Carrying
rate demand one year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
T KRR
kS HER —FR —ERfF BALE HERELH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
% FET FERT FERT FERT TER TER
Trade and bills payables ENBZRTRENES - - 17,860 - - 17,860 17,860
Financial liabilities included in &t AEHIAE(TFIER
other payables and accruals ~ EFERZz&RARE - - 51,052 - - 51,052 51,052
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 5.25 24,373 4,855 - - 29,228 28,774
Amounts due to related parties  FE{J BB 7B - - 10,290 - - 10,290 10,290
Lease liabilities HESE 6.98 - 21,440 71,943 - 93,383 79,319
24,373 105,497 71,943 - 201,813 187,295
2023
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest On Within 110 Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate demand one year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
IEFH RER
GRS BRER —ER —E1f BALE RERBLE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FER FET FTERT TR TR TER
Trade and bills payables RN EZEIRELER = = 146,821 = = 146,821 146,821
Financial liabilities included i~ st AE#EMIER
other payables and accruals At ERz SRaE - - 406,318 - - 406,318 406,318
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 13.62 - 499,456 2,350 - 501,806 441,653
Amounts due to related parties & {3 B 5 T IE - - 3,900 - - 3,900 3,900
Lease liabilties BE&E 6.97 = 43,062 85,652 5,865 134,579 111,704
- 1,099,557 88,002 5,865 1193424 1,11039%
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R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2024

mE+"ZA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2024.
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt.
The Group’s policy is to maintain an optimal capital
structure which reduces cost of capital. Net debt
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, bank and other borrowings, amounts due to
related parties and lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to
owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

41.

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H
SREMREEZ BEREE (B)

BEAXEE (@

FEBUBESRLEEX (EFFFEMAFU
BERMERFH GEERBR &
ERHRBERRENEERRE BB
BARNA B FRABIERNE RN
REMRE HtENMRIBERESE
A RIT R EAth & E ~ FE A R 75 7R IR
REEaRE TAZRERREFE
Yo BERCUEABIER AEGEE -
RE|BEHR BEESRLERNT !

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 28,774 441,653
Trade and bills payables FET B Z R ENEE 17,860 146,821
Other payables and accruals HthEAMIBRE &R 51,052 406,318
Amounts due to related parties JFE 1<) BA Bk 0 T 0B 10,290 3,900
Lease liabilities HEaE 79,319 111,704

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERBEEEY (10,644) (12,996)
Net debt B35 176,651 1,097,400
Capital g 226,083 620,011
Capital and net debt BARREFEFRE 402,734 1,717,411
Gearing ratio BEBMB/LEXE 43.86% 64%

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

Inputs to valuation techniques used to measure the
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss had been categorised as level 1 and level 3 within
the fair value hierarchy which is defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2024,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group'’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.
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42,

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from

financing activities.

4= O
177 g = |

— 5 —

—f

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M1 F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2024

mE+"ZA=+—H
42. BMEFBEENEEHK

TEREFRAEEREIHELENER
28 AEREKRIFRTEFH -MET
FELTNEEABETREBURKRTEE

MEBELTEER

Zrb PaN
I =]

MBHREDTOES

MEEFFELENRESRENGRE

Amounts
Bank due to
Lease  and other related
liabilities borrowings parties Total
RITR  EARBS
HEARR - HtEES FIE Hst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET AT FHET TET
As at 1 January 2023 R_E_=ZF—HF—H 151,006 440,044 691 591,741
Financial cost (note 9) BRI ) 8,920 91,633 - 100,553
Interest payable FEEFRIE - (84,124) = (84,124)
Interest paid BAFE = (7,509) = (7,509)
Financing cash outflows MERERH (47,426) (23,753) = (71,179)
Financing cash inflows BERSRA = 27,857 3,209 31,066
Currency translation adjustment S IHEREE (796) (2,495) = (3.291)
As at 31 December 2023 and K_B_=#F+_A=+—H
1 January 2024 RZZE-ME—H—H 111,704 441,653 3,900 557,257
Financial cost (note 9) WEA (FEE9) 6,367 404 = 6,771
Interest payable ERFIE = (296) = (296)
Interest paid 2AFE - (108) = (108)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 8)  HEKBAT (Hi5E8) = (423,757) = (423,757)
Financing cash outflows MERERY (37,813) (13,106) = (50,919)
Financing cash inflows MERERA - 25,233 6,390 31,623
Currency translation adjustment ~ EIAEAE (939) (1,249) = (2,188)
As at 31 December 2024 AZEME+"F=+—H 79,319 28,774 10,290 118,383

REERREXREMERBRAR
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31 December 2024

—ENFE+—RA=+—H
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the major subsidiaries are as follows:

43.

43,

NI NS SE

TENBRATFENT

Place of
incorporation/ Value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MBI, BRTLE/
218 SR S E R AR AEE FARREMEREE AL TELH
Direct Indirect
H# EfE
Most Success Corporation Limited (i)~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 40 Lending of logistic
RIEEZFRAT i) A 10,000 7T facilities
BEMRFE
Ever Gain Hong Kong Development Hong Kong HK$100 60 - Lending of logistic
Limited BN 100 7T facilities
XEERZRERAR THEYRHIE
Shenzhen Ming Jian Gold PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 - 100 Rental business
Industry Limited (i), (iv) e/ HE R AE80,000,00075 HEER
RBEREZEFRAT0 (v)
Shenzhen Huajinhuayin Industry PRC/Mainland China RMB39,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited (i), (iv) E/PE R AR 39,000,0007T REER
FHESEREEFRAE0 (v
Shenzhen Dajin Zhenhe PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 51 Rental business
Industry Limited (iv) FE/ E R AE#10,000,0007T HEEK
FNTEEHENBEERAR (v)
Yunnan Jing Liao Gu PRC/Mainland China USD30,000,000 - 70 Sales of green food
Industry Company Limited (iv) E/PE R 30,000,000 75 products
EEERARERRLT () LA
Notes: P 5T
(i) Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise 0] RFPEZEFMAIEEEDR
under the PRC law. Ho
(ii) Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture (ii) BERBEZEFMATIEEDR
under the PRC law. Fo
(iif) The Company holds majority of members in the (iif) KRBEFEEEEE ZERLINE
board of directors which is the governing body of BB LEEM Bt B H1E
these companies and therefore has the power to BZENTINEREES WA
direct the relevant activities of these companies, and ERZAREBFEREARRENT
is exposed, or the rights, to variable returns from the O BRAENCEZSERE
investment with the investee, and has the power to FHo
affect the amount of those returns.
(iv) The English name of the above PRC companies is for (iv) LAt AR E A B BY B S 44 FBAE (5 R

identification purpose only. Z e

216 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43.
The above table lists the major subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests are set out below:

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024

“ECME+—RA=1+—H
RB RN EE (&)
ERITEERRETEREFEEXEE
AR EFEEFETEMDZAE
REETEMBAR - EFTBIRMEM
MBARZFFEREABTBNR IR

FEEBRBEEAFERERZWEA
Bl Z5FIBEAANT

2024 2023
Percentage of equity interest held by — FEIZERERPIIFRET DL :
non-controlling interests:
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food FYHEA T4 BB RECEE
Distribution Limited BRAE - 50%
Most Success Corporation Limited EREERRAE 60% 60%
2024 2023
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(Loss)/profit for the year allocated to ~ DEFIEERER 2 FE
non-controlling interests: (B8 EH]
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food FINEATTAR BB micix
Distribution Limited BRAE = (1,682)
Most Success Corporation Limited EREERRAE (5,884) 3,829
Accumulated balances of RERE HARFEERER
non-controlling interests REHEER -
at the reporting dates:
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food FYHEA T4 BB RECEE
Distribution Limited ERAE - (9,267)
Most Success Corporation Limited BREEFRAT 21,196 27,080

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2024 F1§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2024
—ETMFE+"A=1+—H

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. MBS ED (48)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TR R LR EBAR 2 EES R
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts BB S EAA B B~
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B :
Most Success
Corporation
Limited
EREE
2024 —EME BIRAA
HK$'000
TERT

Revenue PN 27,260
Total expense Sz 48 %R (37,067)
Loss for the year FEFE (9,807)
Total comprehensive loss FEIHEEBARLE

for the year (9,807)
Current assets MBEE 41,268
Non-current assets JEREEE =
Current liabilities mEmaE 5,942
Non-current liabilities EI =N =
Net cash flows generated from KEEBMBRERE

operating activities 10,772
Net cash flows generated from KEFEEMERENE

investing activities 17
Net cash flows used in MEEEMARESRE SR

financing activities (16,892)
Net decrease in cash RERIREEEYRLFEE

and cash equivalents (6,103)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
—ENFE+—"B=+—H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

43. MRMBATNER (4&)

Shenzhen
Beidahuang
Green Food  Most Success
Distribution Corporation
Limited Limited
wINIE AT
B RmicE (904EES
2023 —E-= BIRAE BRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Revenue WA 59,728 42,131
Total expense B SR 4B %5 (63,093) (35,749)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE (B8 wr (3,365) 6,382
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FE2ME (BB RALELE
for the year (3,479) 6,382
Current assets RENEE 33,236 51,086
Non-current assets EREEE 506 23,805
Current liabilities mEaE 52,275 29,758
Non-current liabilities |G =N S =
Net cash flows generated from KEEEMMERENETREE
operating activities 429 25,199
Net cash flows generated from KRERPASRESNE P
investing activities - 38
Net cash flows used in MEEBTRARESRE 35
financing activities (355) (23,269)
Net increase in cash RERIREEEYIEMNFEEE
and cash equivalents 74 1,968

REERREXREMERBRAR
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mE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2024
—ETMFE+"A=1+—H

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44,

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

TABMBARR R B f#

ERBDRBREPROF BT KRER

of the Company at the end of the reporting period BIE -
includes:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AT RIS 850,777 859,648
Total non-current asset ERHEELEE 850,777 859,648
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FETRRIE ~ 2 R HAFEUL
other receivables I8 17,156 8,564
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY - 2
Total current assets MENEEBEE 17,156 8,566
CURRENT LIABILITIES piE =N
Other borrowings HmEE = 354,764
Other payables and accruals HthE (IR st & A 8,167 301,499
Amounts due to related parties FE 1 BRI EGk 75 7IE 10,290 3,900
Total current liabilities mEaEELE 18,457 660,163
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBERE (1,301) (651,597)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERERRBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 849,476 208,051
Net assets BEFE 849,476 208,051
EQUITY R
Issued capital BEITRA 756,019 633,231
Reserves EX 93,457 (425,180)
Total equity R 4B XA 849,476 208,051
Liu Xiaopeng 2177 iig Ke Xionghan A7) 1 58
Director EE Director BEF

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44, FERATIMEERERREBE @)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Movement of the reserves of the Company is as INNTEEESEU T
follows:
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
R BB IR RitE8 ek
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
i3 FHT TER FHET THT
At 1 January 2023 KoZ-=£-F-8 1,663,459 648 (1,984,546) (320,439)
Loss for the year FEFB - - (102,847) (102,847)
Exercised share options EfTfERBRE (1,347) (547) = (1,894)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=#+"A=+—-H 1,662,112 101 (2,087,393) (425,180)
Profit for the year FERH - - 518,738 518,738
Lapsed share options BRMBRE - (101) - (101)
At 31 December 2024 RIZ-mE+-B=+-8 1,662,112 = (1,568,655) 93,457
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman RIEFESEEATE &E5]) » KAT
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of B EBRNESIEHIS KT AR
the Company are distributable to the shareholders of R IEREBEEZDIKKREBR &
the Company provided that immediately following REIBAERNEZENHEXBER
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be FEIEANETS ©

distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

FEIEATEEEERZERERAT 221
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 IR R M EE

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZHE=+—H
LITIGATION

4 A
1 o =

45.

()

(i)

HCA 1867 of 2015

On 18 August 2015, the Company received a
writ of summons issued from the High Court
of Hong Kong (the “"Writ”) relating to a claim
by Mr. Qu Shuncai (“"Mr. Qu”), a former
Director of the Company. Pursuant to the Writ,
Mr. Qu claims against the Company for the
sum of HK$6,069,000 being damages for the
Company’s wrongful refusal of the issue of
2,500,000 shares of the Company to him upon
his exercise of the share options. The trial was
heard before Judge from 8 December 2022
to 14 December 2022, and on 10 February
2023, it was adjudicated by the Court that the
Company shall pay damages to the Plaintiff,
assessed at HK$4,394,000, and costs. The
Company has decided to appeal against the
said judgment, and thus the Company filed a
Notice of Appeal on 6 March 2023.

HCA 1948 of 2019

On 24 October 2019, the Company received a
writ of summons (under HCA 1948 of 2019)
issued on behalf of Gemini Funds Limited for
an order to direct the Company to deliver
up the share certificate of 5,000,000 (Bonus)
Shares issued in January 2016 and damages
to be assessed. The said Gemini Funds Limited
has also taken out an application for summary
judgment against the Company returnable
before a Master of the High Court on 9 April
2020. The legal representative of the Company
filed an Acknowledgment of Service on 6
November 2019, and the Company has filed a
notice to the Court to oppose the application
by the said Plaintiff to enter judgment against
the Company. The hearing was heard before a
Judge on 21 January 2021 and pursuant to the
Judgement, the Company delivered up the said
share certificate to the Plaintiff on 24 March
2021. At the same time, the Company filed a
Notice to Appeal on 18 February 2021.
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45.

46.

47.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LITIGATION (continued)

(iii) CACV 71 of 2023
On 6 March 2023, the Company filed a Notice
of Appeal to the Court to appeal against the
Judgment of HCA 1867 of 2015 that the
quantum of damages be HK$2,944,000.00
only.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year presentation. These
reclassification have no impact on the Group’s loss
for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the total
equity as at 31 December 2024.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2025.

45.

46.

47.

R E B HRR MR

31 December 2024
“EINF+ZBE=+—H

ahvah (48)

(i) —EBZ=fCACV 71
K_v__ﬁ BB &R
iR X EFEME
MHZZ—HFHCA 1867%
RIBH L ZBRBESER
2,944,000.0058 T °

ttﬁs*c%&ff—
ETHEREFEENDEURTELE
EE2y ZEEMOBEHAEENREE
—ETNE+-_A=+t—HLEEEZ
%E&E:g_m¢+:ﬁz+—a
2 R AR ER G R

HERSMBRE
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited

TERBEFERBERLEHREEZRER
BE -BERFERED DEREETE
REZUBRER LEFBEERY EHNH

financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, 8o
is set out below.
RESULTS e |
Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+—-HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET FET FET
(restated)
(=51
Revenue KA 182,085 219,729 930,276 928,785 859,095
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRIRET (B51R) /aF (30,899) (22,115) (224,271) (170,130) 7,681
Income tax (expenses)/credit Fi81 (%) /1E% 2,802 (1,003) 1,872 (7,160) (2,224)
(Loss)/profit for the year (518 /) (28,097) (23,118) (222,399) (177,290) 5,457
(Loss)/profit attributable to: TR (B518) /&7
Owners of the parent BREEBA (25,548) (31,525) (218,450) (170,916) 14,778
Non-controlling interests JeiER R (2,549) 8,407 (3,949) (6,374) (9,321)
(28,097) (23,118) (222,399) (177,290) 5,457
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EE - BERIEER#ER
As at 31 December
®+-ZB=+—-8
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TERT FER TER TERT
TOTAL ASSETS BEHRE 442,947 1,862,232 1,944,974 2,880,051 2,994,530
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (204,042) (1,250,995) (1,159,340) (1,775,655) (1,723,857
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JEER R (12,822) 8,774 16,178 24,284 14,526
226,083 620,011 801,812 1,128,680 1,285,199
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